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INVESTMENT MANAGER’S REPORT

2024 was another positive year for risk assets driven by unexpected economic growth in the US. and the start
of interest rate cuts by central banks in Europe and the US. Developed market central banks began to
normalize their policies in 2024 but resilient growth and the last mile in fighting inflation proved harder than
markets anticipated and markets lowered their expectations for the pace of rate cuts in the US. Over the year,
the combination of a strengthening dollar and rising yields put pressure on global investment-grade bonds.
Elsewhere credit spreads continued to tighten and the narrative of US exceptionalism contributed to the US
Dollar achieving its strongest annual since 2001. Commodities faced some challenges due to weak demand in
China but concerns regarding the US fiscal outlook drove gold prices up resulting in a remarkable annual return
of +27.2%.

United States

The U.S. stock market powered higher in 2024 with the major equity benchmarks posting double-digit returns
amidst a positive backdrop of strong economic activity, robust corporate earnings growth and easing
monetary policy by global central banks. Economic data showing strong GDP growth (+2.7% YoY), low
unemployment (4.1%), increased consumer spending (+3.7%), and falling inflation (core-PCE +2.8% YoY)
removed any recession fears lingering from the prior year’s rate hiking cycle (+525bps). Corporate profits
accompanied the rising economic tide with S&P 500 earnings expected to grow 9.4% in 2024 and 14.8% in
2025, according to FactSet. Many believe the Federal Reserve (the Fed) is seemingly on track to successfully
manage a “soft landing” — bringing down inflation without triggering a recession, which is no easy feat. After
a couple of years of aggressive rate hikes to combat high inflation, the Fed shifted its approach in 2024 and
began cutting rates. While inflation has yet to reach the Federal Reserve’s 2% threshold, the central bank
implemented three interest rate cuts during the year: a larger half-percent cut in September, followed by two
smaller quarter-point reductions in November and December. This brought the federal funds rate down from
its range of 5.25-5.50% at the start of the year to 4.25-4.50% by year’s end. Consumer spending remained
supported by a healthy labour market, wages and appreciating real estate and portfolio values. In 2024, the
top performing Nasdag Composite (+29.6%), Nasdag-100 (25.9%), and S&P 500 (+25%) indices were propelled
higher from another gangbuster year by the Magnificent Seven (+67.3%). Over the last two years, the broad-
based S&P 500 had a total return of 57.8%, its strongest two-year return in over 25 years (1998) and fifth best
since at least 1970 (54 years). The Nasdag-100 gained 95.3% for its fifth best two-year return since inception
(38 years), while the Magnificent Seven Index had a two-year return of 246.4%. The so-called "Magnificent
Seven" maintained their dominance, generating outsized gains. They now account for one-third of the S&P
500's market capitalization and more than four-fifths of the benchmark index's 2024 performance. U.S. equity
is commanding a bigger piece of world equities, with only FOUR names now representing one-fifth of the
global stock market pie. Any single one of the big tech stocks — Apple, Nvidia, Amazon and Microsoft — have a
higher market capitalization than Japan, the UK, France or Canada. To put this in perspective, those countries
are members of the G-7 — the world’s most prominent developed economies. Apple has the same market
capitalization as Japan, the world’s third-largest economy. Notably 2024 saw another year of narrow market
performance, with only 31% of S&P 500 stocks outperforming. While this is an improvement over last year's
27%, such a narrow market has not been seen since 1998 and 1999. Smaller caps performed well on an
absolute basis with the S&P Midcap 400 (+13.9%) and Russell 2000 (+11.5%) registering double-digit gains,
albeit each index meaningfully underperformed the large, market-cap weighted indices. They did however
perform more in line with the S&P 500 equal weight (+13%) and Nasdaq 100 equal weight (+7.3%) indices.
Accordingly, large-cap growth represented by the Russell 1000 Growth Index (+33.4%) meaningfully
outperformed small-cap growth (+15.1%), large-cap value (+14.3%), and small-cap value (+8%). Ten of 11
large-cap sectors finished higher in 2024 including four gaining more than 30%. The top performers were
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INVESTMENT MANAGER’S REPORT (continued)
United States (continued)

Communications (+40.2%), Technology (36.6%), Financials (+30.5%), and Discretionary (+30.1%). At the other
end of the performance spectrum were Materials

Even though inflation remained a bit higher than expected, the US economy demonstrated its strength in
2024, supported in particular by the IRA Act. This momentum is expected to continue into 2025, driven by
anticipated deregulation and tax cuts following Trump's victory in the presidential election. It is worth noting
that the Fed officials now expect to cut rates by just a half point in 2025. Beyond summer spike, volatility
behaviour is consistent with a cyclical extension scenario. After a summer spike to 65 (5 August intraday), the
VIX came back down and even more after US elections. The same happened to High Yields spreads which
rebounded briefly just above the 400 bp mark before coming back below 300bp.

Europe

European economic momentum weakened significantly throughout the year. Flash purchasing managers’
index (PMI) survey data for December showed that the eurozone private sector ended the year still in
contraction. The manufacturing sector was particularly hard-hit by a confluence of factors: high energy costs,
stifling regulations, and intense competition from China. Political turmoil in France and Germany,
characterised by fiscal pressures and the rise of populist parties, further fractured the political consensus.
Compounding these challenges was increased competition from Chinese firms benefiting from state subsidies
in numerous areas, particularly in the automotive industry. The divergence between the old continent and the
rest of the word widened further amid political crisis in the two largest economies in the eurozone, France
and Germany. This combination of economic weakness and limited Al exposure hampered European equity
performance. As a result, the MSCI Europe Index returned 8.59% for 2024, underscoring the extent of the
underperformance. It was headlined by the Banks sector which posted an impressive +20% return for the year,
almost twice as good as the next nearest sector, industrials. With interest rates having moved up sharply in
the wake of the pandemic, resulting from inflationary forces, banks were able to earn a healthy net interest
income spread from both new loans and a repricing their considerable back book of assets. Naturally, the most
rate-sensitive companies benefitted to the greatest degree: Spanish, Italian and UK banks. In addition, credit
quality remained benign as European consumers’ high savings rates accumulated during the pandemic
continued and businesses remained prudent in their spending and investment plans. 2024 was almost a
perfect year for the European banking sector. Elsewhere, the Aerospace & Defence sector posted a second
straight year of excellent performance thanks to on-going conflicts in the Ukraine, Middle East and indications
from the incoming Trump administration that NATO countries would need to increase their defence spending
meaningfully, thereby relying less on the US to act as a military backstop.

However, disparities between national indices were pronounced, with the French CAC 40 down 2.15% and the
German DAX up 18.85%. Moreover, intra-sector performance gaps were extremely high. For example, the
luxury sector, which represents a significant portion of the CAC 40, saw Hermés International gain over 20%
(including dividends), while Kering collapsed by more than 35%. European smaller companies didn’t perform
as well as larger companies over the year, but the MSCI Europe ex UK Small Cap Index was still in positive
territory. European market underperformance largely stems from uncertainties around fragile economic
growth, rising tariffs, and political instability in Europe - all factors widely recognized by investors. This raises
the question of whether this underperformance is set to continue, given the historically high valuation gap
between European and U.S. markets and Europe’s economic strengths. Real wages continue to grow amid a
healthy labor market, while excess savings only await a return of confidence to be unleashed. Conversely, with
a P/E of 22.2 and projected EPS growth of 15%, the U.S. market appears vulnerable to economic weakness or
normalization of Al-related growth rates.
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INVESTMENT MANAGER’S REPORT (continued)
Europe (continued)

UK was a mixed bag for investors to digest. Smaller companies were the best performing part of the UK market,
delivering returns of 13.78%, followed by larger companies, represented by the FTSE 100, with a return of
9.66%.

Volatility has been subdued during much of 2024 with significant spikes in mid-August and to a lesser extent
in mid-December, with a combination of high market levels and nervousness with respect to inflation and
central bank policy driving market sell offs — these periods of elevated volatility were relatively short lived.

Asia

In Asia, China continued to grapple with a slowing economy, characterised by falling property prices and weak
consumer confidence. The initial policy response failed to impress investors. However, a more cohesive policy
announcement in September bolstered market confidence, suggesting that 2025 would finally bring the
necessary stimulus to reignite economic growth, sparking expectations that 2025 might bring the stimulus
needed to achieve the minimum acceptable GDP growth rate in response to US tariffs. This helped propel the
Shanghai Composite index to a 12.67% gain for 2024 while the Hang Seng surged 17.67%. 2024 was the year
when investors recognised a regime change in the Japanese economy, reflected in the Nikkei 225 Average
Index registering its highest level in March after its last peak some 35 years ago. Contrary to initial market
consensus, mild inflation continued where Consumer Price Inflation (CPI) remained above the Bank of Japan’s
inflation target of 2%, leading to the decision to end an eight-year-long zero interest rate policy in March. This
was followed by a rate hike in July, with further hikes expected ahead. Japan’s structural issue of labour
shortages suggest that wage increases and mild inflation can continue. Meanwhile, optimism surrounding the
end of deflation in Japan, alongside a weak yen and corporate reforms, buoyed the Nikkei 225, which returned
19.22%, making the land of the rising sun the second-best performing major equity market of the year. It's
been quite a roller coaster ride—from the record all-time highs and never-ending optimism to concerns about
an economic slowdown, FlIs selling like there’s no tomorrow and eventual correction. It was an eventful year
for markets. The Nifty 50 had its ups and downs, but it still closed the year with a solid gain of over 10.5%.
The broader markets did even better—both the Midcap and Small-cap indices rose by more than 20%, while
the Microcap index stood out with an impressive 32% increase.

Bond Market

Investors have poured a record $600 billion into global bond funds this year, taking advantage of some of the
highest yields in decades ahead of an uncertain 2025. Fixed Income. Strong risk asset performance carried
over into fixed income markets. High yield bonds were the top performing sector for the fourth year in the
row as a combination of high all-in yields and tightening spreads boosted returns to over 8%. Longer duration
investment grade credit underperformed against backdrop of rising government bond yields. European
government bonds outperformed US Treasuries as the weaker economic outlook translated into greater
confidence in the downward direction for interest rates, though the high starting yield did partially cushion
US Treasuries which still delivered positive returns of 0.6% over the year. The first half of 2024 saw broad
based disinflation and over the summer central banks felt confident they could start normalising policy.
However, the last mile proved harder than markets anticipated and, outside of Europe, investors pared back
their hopes for rate cuts. Against this backdrop, global government bonds returned -3.1% over 2024. UK Gilts
were the worst performing sector as the long duration of UK debt made it particularly sensitive to rising yields.
Japanese bonds also underperformed as the Bank of Japan became the final major central bank to end
negative interest rates, as well as ending yield curve control, at its March meeting. On the opposite end of the
spectrum, economic weakness meant European bonds outperformed. The problem was concentrated in
Germany while activity remained relatively strong in the European periphery.
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INVESTMENT MANAGER’S REPORT (continued)
Bond Market (continued)

This allowed peripheral spreads to tighten and Italian bonds were the best performing sector with returns of
5.3% over 2024. The collapse of two French governments sparked investor concerns about the trajectory for
French debt. French spreads widened by 30bps relative to Germany and are now wider than Spanish spreads
for the first time since the global financial crisis.

Indian Bond

The softening of US treasury yields and resumption of FPI debt flows led the initial softening of yields in the
previous month. Even as treasury yields moved up over the second half of the month, larger than anticipated
dividend transfer by the RBI to the government enabled domestic yields to be delinked from treasuries. Fiscal
consolidation and good demand- supply balance have been the key factor supporting a softer bias in
government security yields. The larger than anticipated dividend transfer had raised hopes about a further cut
in market borrowings. This sentiment was further supported by exit polls showing a comfortable
parliamentary majority for the BJP led NDA. With election outcomes being contrary to expectations, the recent
uptick in bond vyields have been driven by fears of fiscal loosening at the margin driven by potential
compulsions of a coalition government. Given that the revised FY24 fiscal deficit stands at 5.60%, the
announced consolidation towards 4.5% over the coming 2 years can be expected to continue. A moderate
reduction from the announced 5.10% can still be possible while providing for any additional spending. In this
context, considering the long election schedule, government departments including state government’s being
able to spend the budgeted allocations over the remaining 9 months is a challenge. India’s improving growth
and fiscal outlook has recently been validated by the rating outlook change by S&P. Given that fiscal discipline
has been the hallmark of budget announcements in the recent years, unwinding of the same is unlikely given
the overall macro ramifications.



Share class

Amundi S&P 500 Equal Weight ESG Leaders
UCITS ETF USD (ACC)

Amundi MSCI World UCITS ETF USD (DIST)
AMUNDI MSCI ACWI SRI PAB UCITS ETF
USD(ACC)

Amundi S&P Global Communication Services
ESG UCITS ETF EUR (ACC)

Amundi S&P Global Communication Services
ESG UCITS ETF EUR (DIST)

Amundi S&P Global Consumer Discretionary
ESG UCITS ETF EUR (ACC)

Amundi S&P Global Consumer Discretionary
ESG UCITS ETF EUR (DIST)

Amundi S&P Global Consumer Staples ESG
UCITS ETF EUR (ACC)

Amundi S&P Global Consumer Staples ESG
UCITS ETF EUR (DIST)
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Performance
of share class*

10.64%

18.73%

10.47%

35.93%

35.92%

29.57%

29.56%

9.58%

9.59%

*Performance year is from 1 January 2024 to 31 December 2024.

Benchmark Performance of
the benchmark*

S&P 500 Equal Weight ESG Leaders Select

Index 10.45%
MSCI World Index 18.67%
MSCI ACWI SRI Filtered PAB Index 10.51%

The S&P Developed Ex-Korea

LargeMidCap Sustainability Enhanced

Communication Services Index 35.98%
The S&P Developed Ex-Korea

LargeMidCap Sustainability Enhanced

Communication Services Index 35.98%
The S&P Developed Ex-Korea

LargeMidCap Sustainability Enhanced

Consumer Discretionary Index 29.63%
The S&P Developed Ex-Korea

LargeMidCap Sustainability Enhanced

Consumer Discretionary Index 29.63%
The S&P Developed Ex-Korea

LargeMidCap Sustainability Enhanced

Consumer Staples Index 9.57%
The S&P Developed Ex-Korea

LargeMidCap Sustainability Enhanced

Consumer Staples Index 9.57%

Performance
difference

0.19%

0.06%

(0.04%)

(0.05%)

(0.06%)

(0.06%)

(0.07%)

0.01%

0.02%

Realised
Tracking Error

0.06%

0.10%

0.07%

0.08%

0.08%

0.11%

0.11%

0.04%

0.04%

Anticipated
Tracking Error

1%

1%

1%

1%

1%

1%

1%

1%

1%



Share class

Amundi S&P Global Energy Carbon Reduced
UCITS ETF EUR (ACC)

Amundi S&P Global Energy Carbon Reduced
UCITS ETF EUR (DIST)

Amundi S&P Global Financials ESG UCITS ETF
EUR (ACC)

Amundi S&P Global Financials ESG UCITS ETF
EUR (DIST)

Amundi S&P Global Health Care ESG UCITS
ETF EUR (ACC)

Amundi S&P Global Health Care ESG UCITS
ETF EUR (DIST)

Amundi S&P Global Industrials ESG UCITS ETF
EUR (ACC)

Amundi S&P Global Industrials ESG UCITS ETF
EUR (DIST)

Amundi S&P Global Information Technology
ESG UCITS ETF EUR (ACC)

Amundi S&P Global Information Technology
ESG UCITS ETF EUR (DIST)
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INVESTMENT MANAGER’S REPORT (continued)

Performance Benchmark Performance
of share class* of the
benchmark*
The S&P Developed Ex-Korea LargeMidCap
10.14% Sustainability Enhanced Energy Index 9.84%
The S&P Developed Ex-Korea LargeMidCap
10.16% Sustainability Enhanced Energy Index 9.84%
The S&P Developed Ex-Korea LargeMidCap
34.81% Sustainability Enhanced Financials Index 34.61%
The S&P Developed Ex-Korea LargeMidCap
34.79% Sustainability Enhanced Financials Index 34.61%
The S&P Developed Ex-Korea LargeMidCap
7.83% Sustainability Enhanced Health Care Index 7.76%
The S&P Developed Ex-Korea LargeMidCap
7.82%  Sustainability Enhanced Health Care Index 7.76%
The S&P Developed Ex-Korea LargeMidCap
17.14% Sustainability Enhanced Industrials Index 17.43%
The S&P Developed Ex-Korea LargeMidCap
17.12% Sustainability Enhanced Industrials Index 17.43%

The S&P Developed Ex-Korea LargeMidCap
Sustainability Enhanced Information
39.37% Technology Index 39.52%
The S&P Developed Ex-Korea LargeMidCap
Sustainability Enhanced Information
39.37% Technology Index 39.52%

*Performance year is from 1 January 2024 to 31 December 2024.

Performance
difference
0.30%

0.32%

0.20%

0.18%

0.07%

0.06%
(0.29%)

(0.31%)

(0.15%)

(0.15%)

Realised
Tracking
Error
0.11%
0.11%
0.05%
0.06%
0.04%
0.04%

0.51%

0.51%

0.02%

0.02%

Anticipated
Tracking Error
1%

1%

1%

1%

1%

1%

1%

1%

1%

1%



Share class

Amundi S&P Global Materials ESG UCITS ETF
EUR (ACC)

Amundi S&P Global Materials ESG UCITS ETF
EUR (DIST)

Amundi S&P Global Utilities ESG UCITS ETF
EUR (ACC)

Amundi S&P Global Utilities ESG UCITS ETF
EUR (DIST)

Amundi MSCI USA ESG Leaders Extra UCITS
ETF USD (ACC)

Amundi S&P Small Cap 600 ESG UCITS ETF
USD (DIST)

Amundi S&P 500 Equal Weight ESG Leaders
UCITS ETF EUR Hedged (ACC)

Amundi MSCI World ESG Leaders UCITS ETF
USD (ACC)

Amundi MSCI USA ESG Leaders UCITS ETF
USD (ACC)
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Performance
of share class*

0.09%

0.09%

10.59%

10.58%

0.00%

8.96%

8.65%

16.46%

19.89%

*Performance year is from 1 January 2024 to 31 December 2024.

Benchmark

The S&P Developed Ex-Korea LargeMidCap
Sustainability Enhanced Materials Index
The S&P Developed Ex-Korea LargeMidCap
Sustainability Enhanced Materials Index
The S&P Developed Ex-Korea LargeMidCap
Sustainability Enhanced Utilities Index

The S&P Developed Ex-Korea LargeMidCap
Sustainability Enhanced Utilities Index
MSCI USA Select ESG Rating & Trend
Leaders Index

S&P SmallCap 600 ESG+ Index

S&P 500 Equal Weight ESG Leaders Select
Index

MSCI World ESG Leaders Select 5% Issuer
Capped Index

MSCI USA ESG Leaders Select 5% Issuer
Capped Index
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Performance
of the
benchmark *

0.18%

0.18%

9.67%

9.67%

0.00%

9.57%

8.39%

16.43%

19.88%

Performance
difference

(0.09%)
(0.09%)
0.92%
0.91%
0.00%
(0.61%)
0.26%
0.03%

0.01%

Realised
Tracking Error

0.14%
0.14%
0.24%
0.24%
0.03%
0.32%
0.09%
0.05%

0.05%

Anticipated
Tracking Error

1%
1%
1%
1%
1%
1%
1%
1%

1%



Share class

Amundi MSCI USA ESG Leaders UCITS ETF
EUR Hedged (ACC)

Amundi MSCI USA SRI Climate Net Zero
Ambition PAB UCITS ETF EUR (ACC)

Amundi MSCI USA SRI Climate Net Zero
Ambition PAB UCITS ETF EUR Hedged (ACC)
Amundi S&P 500 ESG UCITS ETF EUR (ACC)
Amundi S&P 500 ESG UCITS ETF EUR Hedged
(ACC)

Amundi MSCI USA ESG Climate Net Zero
Ambition CTB UCITS ETF EUR (ACC)

Amundi MSCI USA ESG Climate Net Zero
Ambition CTB UCITS ETF EUR (DIST)

Amundi MSCI USA ESG Leaders Extra UCITS
ETF USD (DIST)

Amundi S&P 500 Climate Net Zero Ambition
PAB UCITS ETF EUR Hedged (ACC)

Amundi S&P 500 Climate Net Zero Ambition
PAB UCITS ETF USD (ACC)
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Performance
of the
benchmark *

Performance Benchmark

of share class*

MSCI USA ESG Leaders Select 5% Issuer

18.02% Capped Index 17.87%
13.10% MSCI USA SRI Filtered PAB Index 12.99%
4.22% MSCI USA SRI Filtered PAB Index 3.97%
32.42% S&P 500 ESG+ Index 32.37%
22.07% S&P 500 ESG+ Index 22.04%
32.10% MSCI USA ESG Broad CTB Select Index 31.91%
32.09% MSCI USA ESG Broad CTB Select Index 31.91%
MSCI USA Select ESG Rating & Trend
53.00% Leaders Index 52.77%
S&P 500 Net Zero 2050 Paris-Aligned ESG+
24.21% Index 24.13%
S&P 500 Net Zero 2050 Paris-Aligned ESG+
26.26% Index 26.16%

*Performance year is from 1 January 2024 to 31 December 2024.
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Performance
difference

0.15%

0.11%

0.25%
0.05%

0.03%

0.19%

0.18%

0.23%

0.08%

0.10%

Realised
Tracking Error

0.09%
0.03%

0.08%
0.04%

0.09%
0.03%
0.03%
0.03%
0.10%

0.03%

Anticipated
Tracking Error
1%

1%

1%
1%

1%
1%
1%
1%
1%

1%



Share class

Amundi S&P 500 Climate Net Zero Ambition
PAB UCITS ETF USD (DIST)

Amundi MSCI World Climate Net Zero
Ambition PAB UCITS ETF USD (ACC)

Amundi MSCI World ESG Climate Net Zero
Ambition CTB UCITS ETF EUR (ACC)

Amundi MSCI World ESG Climate Net Zero
Ambition CTB UCITS ETF EUR (DIST)
AMUNDI MSCI World SRI Climate Net Zero
Ambition PAB UCITS ETF EUR (ACC)A
AMUNDI MSCI World SRI Climate Net Zero
Ambition PAB UCITS ETF EUR Hedged (ACC)?

Amundi MSCI World UCITS ETF USD (ACC)*
AMUNDI MSCI World SRI Climate Net Zero
Ambition PAB UCITS ETF USD (DIST)*M
Amundi Prime All Country World UCITS ETF
USD (ACC)AAA

AMUNDI MSCI USA UCITS ETF USD (ACC)AAAA

AMUNDI ETF ICAV
ANNUAL REPORT AND SWISS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

INVESTMENT MANAGER’S REPORT (continued)

Performance Benchmark Performance
of share class* of the
benchmark*

S&P 500 Net Zero 2050 Paris-Aligned ESG+

26.25% Index 26.16%
MSCI World Climate Paris Aligned Filtered
17.99% Index 18.07%
25.73% MSCIl World ESG Broad CTB Select Index 25.81%
25.75% MSCIl World ESG Broad CTB Select Index 25.81%
16.03% MSCI World SRI Filtered PAB Index 16.05%
10.76% MSCI World SRI Filtered PAB Index 10.61%
19.72% MSCI World Index 19.60%
8.29% MSCI World SRI Filtered PAB Index 8.29%
Solactive GBS Global Markets Large & Mid
6.46% Cap Index 6.58%
Solactive GBS United States Large & Mid
25.05% Cap Index Net TR 24.86%

*Performance year is from 01 January 2024 to 31 December 2024.

12

Performance
difference

0.09%
(0.08%)
(0.08%)
(0.06%)
(0.02%)

0.15%
(0.12%)

0.00%
(0.12%)

0.19%

Realised
Tracking Error

0.03%
0.06%
0.05%
0.05%
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A

N/A

Anticipated
Tracking Error

1%
1%
1%
1%
1%
1%
1%
1%
1%

1%



AMUNDI ETF ICAV
ANNUAL REPORT AND SWISS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

INVESTMENT MANAGER’S REPORT (continued)

Share class Performance Benchmark Performance Performance Realised Anticipated

of share class* of the difference Tracking Tracking Error

benchmark* Error**
Solactive GBS United States Large & Mid

AMUNDI MSCI USA UCITS ETF USD (DIST)AAAA 25.05% Cap Index Net TR 24.86% 0.19% N/A 1%
Amundi MSCI World ESG Leaders UCITS ETF MSCI World ESG Leaders Select 5% Issuer
EUR Hedged (ACC)AAAAA 10.85% Capped Index 10.77% 0.08% N/A 1%
Amundi Prime All Country World UCITS ETF Solactive GBS Global Markets Large & Mid
USD (DIST)AAAAAA 14.04% Cap Index 13.83% 0.21% N/A 1%
Amundi MSCI USA ESG Leaders Extra UCITS MSCI USA Select ESG Rating & Trend
ETF EUR Hedged (ACC)ANAAAA 1.96% Leaders Index 1.95% 0.01% N/A 1%

AThe share class was launched on 17 January 2024.
ANThe share class was launched on 1 February 2024.
AMThe share class was launched on 21 February 2024.
ANAAThe share class was launched on 5 March 2024.
ANAAAThe share class was launched on 25 April 2024.
ANANAAThe share class was launched on 5 June 2024.
AAMANANThe share class was launched on 17 October 2024.

*Performance year is from launch to 31 December 2024.

**Realised Tracking Error is calculated based on one-year performance history of the sub-fund. Therefore, as the sub-funds as at 31 December 2024 have less than one-year performance history since launch,
Realised Tracking Error data has not been included. Future financial statements will include Realised Tracking Error data for sub-funds after one year from launch.
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Assets

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
- Transferable securities

- Financial derivative instruments
Cash collateral pledged
Receivables for securities sold
Due from brokers

Due from shareholders
Dividends receivable

Other assets

Interest receivable from financial assets at fair value

through profit or loss
Total assets

Liabilities
Current liabilities
Bank overdraft

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

- Financial derivative instruments
Cash collateral received

Payables for securities purchased
Due to brokers

Dividends payable

Due to shareholders

Other liabilities

Liabilities (excluding net assets attributable to holders

of redeemable participating shares)
Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares

AMUNDI ETF ICAV

ANNUAL REPORT AND SWISS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As at 31 December 2024

Statement of financial position

AMUNDI S&P 500 EQUAL AMUNDI S&P 500 EQUAL AMUNDI MSCI AMUNDI MSCI

WEIGHT ESG LEADERS UCITS WEIGHT ESG LEADERS UCITS WORLD UCITS WORLD UCITS

ETF ETF ETF ETF

31 December 2024 31 December 2023 31 December 2024 31 December 2023

Notes uUsD uUsD usbD uUsD
3(h) 7,365,751 2,632,682 21,662,442 713,893
7 2,714,379,232 738,657,073 3,619,193,652 180,965,516

7 23,442 488,336 241 11,775

- - - 135

3 (i) 1,926,307 192,306 6,786,407 171,317
- - 1,036,882 9,347,360

4,788,575 1,275,369 2,686,648 218,151

2,514 2,515 352,992 23,455

2,728,485,821 743,248,281 3,651,719,264 191,451,602

7 1,455,954 21,658 386,430 -

- - - 435,085

677,474 180,442 369,211 30,413

- 3,171,505 1,036,882 -

531,834 157,905 458,626 32,553

2,665,262 3,531,510 2,251,149 498,051

2,725,820,559 739,716,771 3,649,468,115 190,953,551

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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AMUNDI ETF ICAV
ANNUAL REPORT AND SWISS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As at 31 December 2024

Statement of financial position
AMUNDI MSCI ACWI

(continued)
AMUNDI MSCI ACWI

AMUNDI S&P GLOBAL

AMUNDI S&P GLOBAL

SRI PAB UCITS SRI PAB UCITS COMMUNICATION SERVICES COMMUNICATION SERVICES
ETF ETF ESG UCITS ETF ESG UCITS ETF
31 December 2024 31 December 2023 31 December 2024 31 December 2023
Assets Notes usD uUsD EUR EUR
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 3(h) 85,784 196,311 3,899,717 155,420
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
- Transferable securities 7 75,595,971 71,854,758 296,867,120 104,786,753
- Financial derivative instruments 7 - 9,381 1,943 5,718
Cash collateral pledged - - - -
Receivables for securities sold - - - -
Due from brokers 3 (i) 224,892 81,322 297,162 99,886
Due from shareholders - - - -
Dividends receivable 80,396 111,299 234,605 76,346
Other assets 19,477 10,018 74,712 8,133
Interest receivable from financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss - - - -
Total assets 76,006,520 72,263,089 301,375,259 105,132,256
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Bank overdraft - - - -
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
- Financial derivative instruments 7 11,020 - 43,288 5
Cash collateral received - - - -
Payables for securities purchased - - 3,231,839 60,255
Due to brokers - - - -
Dividends payable 10,957 19,579 49,018 15,421
Due to shareholders - - - -
Other liabilities 26,839 34,207 68,851 29,853
Liabilities (excluding net assets attributable to holders
of redeemable participating shares) 48,816 53,786 3,392,996 105,534
Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares 75,957,704* 72,209,303 297,982,263 105,026,722

*Classified as equity (see note 8)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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Assets

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
- Transferable securities

- Financial derivative instruments
Cash collateral pledged
Receivables for securities sold
Due from brokers

Due from shareholders
Dividends receivable

Other assets

Interest receivable from financial assets at fair value

through profit or loss
Total assets

Liabilities
Current liabilities
Bank overdraft

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

- Financial derivative instruments
Cash collateral received

Payables for securities purchased
Due to brokers

Dividends payable

Due to shareholders

Other liabilities

Liabilities (excluding net assets attributable to holders

of redeemable participating shares)
Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares

AMUNDI ETF ICAV

ANNUAL REPORT AND SWISS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As at 31 December 2024

Statement of financial position (continued)

AMUNDI S&P GLOBAL

AMUNDI S&P GLOBAL

AMUNDI S&P GLOBAL

AMUNDI S&P GLOBAL

CONSUMER DISCRETIONARY CONSUMER DISCRETIONARY CONSUMER STAPLES ESG CONSUMER STAPLES ESG

ESG UCITS ETF ESG UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF

31 December 2024 31 December 2023 31 December 2024 31 December 2023

Notes EUR EUR EUR EUR
3(h) 23,722,746 125,788 682,949 133,746
7 370,795,243 190,347,717 205,896,426 168,454,602

7 2,254 6,239 707 6,372
6,999,279 - - -

3 (i) 256,672 103,803 75,192 61,102
121,076 61,689 267,904 448,677

94,443 46,882 25,171 24,666

401,991,713 190,692,118 206,948,349 169,129,165

7 30,310 1,610 24,239 -
3,686,554 - - _

18,395 8,487 40,237 67,762

26,676,954 - - -

75,162 53,898 43,607 44,165

30,487,375 63,995 108,083 111,927

371,504,338 190,628,123 206,840,266 169,017,238

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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Assets

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
- Transferable securities

- Financial derivative instruments
Cash collateral pledged
Receivables for securities sold
Due from brokers

Due from shareholders
Dividends receivable

Other assets

Interest receivable from financial assets at fair value

through profit or loss
Total assets

Liabilities
Current liabilities
Bank overdraft

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

- Financial derivative instruments
Cash collateral received

Payables for securities purchased
Due to brokers

Dividends payable

Due to shareholders

Other liabilities

Liabilities (excluding net assets attributable to holders

of redeemable participating shares)
Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares

AMUNDI ETF ICAV

ANNUAL REPORT AND SWISS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As at 31 December 2024

Statement of financial position (continued)

AMUNDI S&P GLOBAL
ENERGY CARBON REDUCED

AMUNDI S&P GLOBAL

ENERGY CARBON REDUCED

AMUNDI S&P GLOBAL
FINANCIALS ESG

AMUNDI S&P GLOBAL
FINANCIALS ESG

UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF

31 December 2024 31 December 2023 31 December 2024 31 December 2023

Notes EUR EUR EUR EUR
3(h) 375,720 4,721,995 589,953 147,005
7 194,819,591 255,051,979 554,107,922 82,590,731

7 1,162 9,314 2,121 4,961
577,018 - - -

3 (i) 279,158 215,778 575,280 112,438
241,708 216,631 491,815 82,266

305,220 157,110 206,972 39,469

196,599,577 260,372,807 555,974,063 82,976,870

7 11,695 - 29,587 1,150
599,037 4,395,711 - 65,323

25,071 13,742 90,769 14,130

54,166 97,172 139,334 23,486

689,969 4,506,625 259,690 104,089

195,909,608 255,866,182 555,714,373 82,872,781

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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Assets

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
- Transferable securities

- Financial derivative instruments
Cash collateral pledged
Receivables for securities sold
Due from brokers

Due from shareholders
Dividends receivable

Other assets

Interest receivable from financial assets at fair value

through profit or loss
Total assets

Liabilities
Current liabilities
Bank overdraft

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

- Financial derivative instruments
Cash collateral received

Payables for securities purchased
Due to brokers

Dividends payable

Due to shareholders

Other liabilities

Liabilities (excluding net assets attributable to holders

of redeemable participating shares)
Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares

AMUNDI ETF ICAV

ANNUAL REPORT AND SWISS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As at 31 December 2024

Statement of financial position (continued)

AMUNDI S&P GLOBAL

AMUNDI S&P GLOBAL

AMUNDI S&P GLOBAL

AMUNDI S&P GLOBAL

HEALTH CARE ESG HEALTH CARE ESG INDUSTRIALS ESG INDUSTRIALS ESG

UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF

31 December 2024 31 December 2023 31 December 2024 31 December 2023

Notes EUR EUR EUR EUR
3(h) 3,948,308 163,689 2,125,660 180,384
7 245,970,660 99,992,306 334,907,185 133,474,146

7 236 6,713 3,152 10,952
1,932,013 - 4,007,017 -

3 (i) 48,319 42,688 231,949 119,331
150,468 76,837 384,130 186,959

35,834 10,817 65,334 33,204

252,085,838 100,293,050 341,724,427 134,004,976

7 9,067 - 26,737 -
4,337,371 - 5,345,127 -

17,652 7,165 47,851 26,426

1,355,977 - - -

58,113 28,460 62,457 36,928

5,778,180 35,625 5,482,172 63,354

246,307,658 100,257,425 336,242,255 133,941,622

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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Assets

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
- Transferable securities

- Financial derivative instruments
Cash collateral pledged
Receivables for securities sold
Due from brokers

Due from shareholders
Dividends receivable

Other assets

Interest receivable from financial assets at fair value

through profit or loss
Total assets

Liabilities
Current liabilities
Bank Overdraft

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

- Financial derivative instruments
Cash collateral received

Payables for securities purchased
Due to brokers

Dividends payable

Due to shareholders

Other liabilities

Liabilities (excluding net assets attributable to holders

of redeemable participating shares)
Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares

AMUNDI ETF ICAV

ANNUAL REPORT AND SWISS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As at 31 December 2024

Statement of financial position (continued)

AMUNDI S&P GLOBAL

AMUNDI S&P GLOBAL

AMUNDI S&P GLOBAL

AMUNDI S&P GLOBAL

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY MATERIALS ESG MATERIALS ESG

ESG UCITS ETF ESG UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF

31 December 2024 31 December 2023 31 December 2024 31 December 2023

Notes EUR EUR EUR EUR
3(h) 463,372 127,706 180,523 655,300
7 440,394,683 213,498,891 117,122,439 90,709,436

7 - 12,918 471 9,700

- 957,993 - 91,668

3 (i) 481,282 255,306 84,478 66,621
- 1,002,869 - -

85,611 40,882 70,048 145,069

17,454 12,740 61,162 26,705

441,442,402 215,909,305 117,519,121 91,704,499

7 31,222 605 13,310 65

- 1,963,612 - 683,431

12,779 6,097 14,469 13,050

82,111 58,940 29,242 25,741

126,112 2,029,254 57,021 722,287

441,316,290 213,880,051 117,462,100 90,982,212

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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Assets

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
- Transferable securities

- Financial derivative instruments
Cash collateral pledged
Receivables for securities sold
Due from brokers

Due from shareholders
Dividends receivable

Other assets

Interest receivable from financial assets at fair value

through profit or loss
Total assets

Liabilities
Current liabilities
Bank overdraft

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

- Financial derivative instruments
Cash collateral received

Payables for securities purchased
Due to brokers

Dividends payable

Due to shareholders

Other liabilities

Liabilities (excluding net assets attributable to holders

of redeemable participating shares)
Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares

AMUNDI ETF ICAV

ANNUAL REPORT AND SWISS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As at 31 December 2024

Statement of financial position (continued)

AMUNDI S&P GLOBAL

AMUNDI S&P GLOBAL

AMUNDI MSCI USA ESG

AMUNDI MSCI USA ESG

UTILITIES ESG UCITS ETF UTILITIES ESG UCITS ETF LEADERS EXTRA UCITS ETF LEADERS EXTRA UCITS ETF

31 December 2024 31 December 2023 31 December 2024 31 December 2023

Notes EUR EUR usD usD
3(h) 209,674 329,214 3,626,503 3,216,908
7 106,506,438 59,635,450 1,032,496,582 800,016,129

7 707 1,647 - 108,260

3 (i) 129,103 47,393 1,338,196 297,903
R - 1,032,480 -

483,654 191,805 662,054 691,363

72,713 28,164 - 170

107,402,289 60,233,673 1,039,155,815 804,330,733

7 3,602 1,060 180,507 -

- 164,820 - -

29,574 17,922 96,827 97,494

- - 1,032,497 -

38,069 17,469 160,527 104,314

71,245 201,271 1,470,358 201,808

107,331,044 60,032,402 1,037,685,457 804,128,925

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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Assets

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
- Transferable securities

- Financial derivative instruments
Cash collateral pledged
Receivables for securities sold
Due from brokers

Due from shareholders
Dividends receivable

Other Assets

Interest receivable from financial assets at fair value

through profit or loss
Total assets

Liabilities
Current liabilities
Bank Overdraft

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

- Financial derivative instruments
Cash collateral received

Payables for securities purchased
Due to brokers

Dividends payable

Due to shareholders

Other liabilities

Liabilities (excluding net assets attributable to holders

of redeemable participating shares)

Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares

*Classified as equity (see note 8)

AMUNDI ETF ICAV

ANNUAL REPORT AND SWISS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As at 31 December 2024

Statement of financial position (continued)

AMUNDI S&P SMALL CAP 600

AMUNDI S&P SMALL CAP 600

AMUNDI MSCI WORLD ESG

AMUNDI MSCI WORLD ESG

ESG UCITS ETF ESG UCITS ETF LEADERS UCITS ETF LEADERS UCITS ETF

31 December 2024 31 December 2023 31 December 2024 31 December 2023

Notes usD usD usD usD
3(h) 960,389 574,011 4,161,974 1,402,643
7 418,854,493 91,124,751 2,414,067,317 858,117,778

7 - 21,738 538,567 43,670

- - 1,500,000 -

157,130 - 3,004,291 997,525

3 (i) 377,439 63,549 2,499,778 390,184
572,784 125,606 1,821,396 767,132

122 - 207,618 27,409

420,922,357 91,909,655 2,427,800,941 861,746,341

7 47,508 - 2,963,418 -

- - 5,434,403 998,669

85,624 18,609 234,032 105,426

148,931 47,516 473,992 234,422

282,063 66,125 9,105,845 1,338,517

420,640,294* 91,843,530 2,418,695,096 860,407,824

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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Assets

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
- Transferable securities

- Financial derivative instruments
Cash collateral pledged
Receivables for securities sold
Due from brokers

Due from shareholders
Dividends receivable

Other assets

Interest receivable from financial assets at fair value

through profit or loss
Total assets

Liabilities
Current liabilities
Bank overdraft

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

- Financial derivative instruments
Cash collateral received

Payables for securities purchased
Due to brokers

Dividends payable

Due to shareholders

Other liabilities

Liabilities (excluding net assets attributable to holders

of redeemable participating shares)

Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares

AMUNDI ETF ICAV

ANNUAL REPORT AND SWISS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As at 31 December 2024

Statement of financial position (continued)

AMUNDI MSCI USA ESG

AMUNDI MSCI USA ESG

AMUNDI S&P 500 ESG UCITS

AMUNDI S&P 500 ESG UCITS

LEADERS UCITS ETF LEADERS UCITS ETF ETF ETF

31 December 2024 31 December 2023 31 December 2024 31 December 2023

Notes usD usD usD usD
3(h) 777,505 9,859,153 6,786,592 12,476,910
7 1,414,265,703 2,741,620,201 6,508,052,615 3,222,535,248

7 372,841 4,305,770 167,059 9,223,328

9 14,680,000 - 14,060,000 -

- - - 999,485

3 (i) 1,475,910 1,408,517 5,874,210 2,128,318
_ . - 1,110,375

969,183 2,061,635 4,918,966 3,032,143

47,361 34,199 8,888 1,387

1,432,588,503 2,759,289,475 6,539,868,330 3,251,507,194

785,326 - - -

7 17,539,337 104,625 21,703,867 614,224

- - - 994,185

132,809 262,634 694,506 418,008

316,943 624,230 587,083 861,177

18,774,415 991,489 22,985,456 2,887,594

1,413,814,088

2,758,297,986

6,516,882,874

3,248,619,600

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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AMUNDI ETF ICAV
ANNUAL REPORT AND SWISS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As at 31 December 2024

Assets

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
- Transferable securities

- Financial derivative instruments
Cash collateral pledged
Receivables for securities sold
Due from brokers

Due from shareholders
Dividends receivable

Other assets

Interest receivable from financial assets at fair value

through profit or loss
Total assets

Liabilities
Current liabilities
Bank overdraft

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

- Financial derivative instruments
Cash collateral received

Payables for securities purchased
Due to brokers

Dividends payable

Due to shareholders

Other liabilities

Liabilities (excluding net assets attributable to holders

of redeemable participating shares)
Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares

Statement of financial position (continued)

AMUNDI MSCI USA SRI
CLIMATE NET ZERO AMBITION

AMUNDI MSCI USA SRI
CLIMATE NET ZERO AMBITION

AMUNDI MSCI USA ESG
CLIMATE NET ZERO AMBITION

AMUNDI MSCI USA ESG
CLIMATE NET ZERO AMBITION

PAB UCITS ETF PAB UCITS ETF CTB CTB

31 December 2024 31 December 2023 31 December 2024 31 December 2023

Notes uUsD uUsD usbD usbD
3(h) 3,572,306 1,569,298 3,256,708 1,406,992
7 1,470,105,893 6,039,980,286 5,427,075,802 1,836,657,104

7 85,956 2,681,862 - 140,220

9 3,030,000 - - -
1,195,153 - - -

3 (i) 5,691,299 2,288,435 2,803,011 315,765
(2,541) - - -

1,606,403 6,348,386 3,998,003 2,605,410

19,721 109 5,951 49,845

1,485,304,190 6,052,868,376 5,437,139,475 1,841,175,336

7 4,180,131 153,932 270,285 -
1,192,228 - - -

245,539 966,780 553,207 414,207

- 9,610,671 - -

483,899 1,403,727 510,719 181,558

6,101,797 12,135,110 1,334,211 595,765

1,479,202,393

6,040,733,266

5,435,805,264

1,840,579,571

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

23



Assets

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
- Transferable securities

- Financial derivative instruments
Cash collateral pledged
Receivables for securities sold
Due from brokers

Due from shareholders
Dividends receivable

Other assets

Interest receivable from financial assets at fair value

through profit or loss
Total assets

Liabilities
Current liabilities
Bank Overdraft

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

- Financial derivative instruments
Cash collateral received

Payables for securities purchased
Due to brokers

Dividends payable

Due to shareholders

Other liabilities

Liabilities (excluding net assets attributable to holders

of redeemable participating shares)
Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares

AMUNDI ETF ICAV

ANNUAL REPORT AND SWISS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As at 31 December 2024

Statement of financial position (continued)

AMUNDI S&P 500 CLIMATE
NET ZERO AMBITION PAB

AMUNDI S&P 500 CLIMATE
NET ZERO AMBITION PAB

AMUNDI MSCI WORLD ESG
CLIMATE NET ZERO AMBITION

AMUNDI MSCI WORLD ESG
CLIMATE NET ZERO AMBITION

UCITS ETF UCITS ETF CTB UCITS ETF CTB UCITS ETF

31 December 2024 31 December 2023 31 December 2024 31 December 2023

Notes uUsD uUsD usbD usbD
3(h) 20,570,626 11,839,383 3,546,523 1,173,539
7 5,218,473,401 2,707,501,336 1,596,187,951 1,126,963,478

7 68,983 5,182,051 357 11,699

- 1,100,037 2,580,119 -

3 (i) 6,046,354 935,747 2,791,038 265,284
- 6,993,520 - -

3,093,961 2,928,510 1,428,996 963,547

- 2,110 283,411 541,374

5,248,253,325

2,736,482,694

1,606,818,395

1,129,918,921

7 12,412,459 138,397 193,131 -
- 1,094,206 - 1,020

451,244 433,932 185,865 163,172

- 1,085,865 - -

516,647 260,768 335,759 180,214

13,380,350 3,013,168 714,755 344,406

5,234,872,975

2,733,469,526

1,606,103,640

1,129,574,515

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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AMUNDI ETF ICAV
ANNUAL REPORT AND SWISS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As at 31 December 2024

Statement of financial position (continued)

AMUNDI MSCI WORLD
CLIMATE NET ZERO AMBITION

AMUNDI MSCI WORLD
CLIMATE NET ZERO AMBITION

AMUNDI MSCI WORLD SRI
CLIMATE NET ZERO AMBITION

AMUNDI PRIME ALL COUNTRY

PAB UCITS ETF PAB UCITS ETF PAB UCITS ETFA WORLD UCITS ETFAA

31 December 2024 31 December 2023 31 December 2024 31 December 2024
Assets Notes usD usD usD usD
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 3 (h) 10,869,583 - 1,113,685 3,654,333
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
- Transferable securities 7 1,363,952,445 409,763,452 4,176,602,199 2,127,767,168
- Financial derivative instruments 7 - 11,740 1,344,372 -
Cash collateral pledged - - 3,560,000 -
Receivables for securities sold - - 2,599,711 2,268,972
Due from brokers 3 (i) 1,042,875 550,599 5,260,642 1,393,145
Due from shareholders - - - 1,038,005
Dividends receivable 1,175,913 567,279 4,428,718 2,056,316
Other assets 174,195 470,192 935,201 101,778
Interest receivable from financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss - - - -
Total assets 1,377,215,011 411,363,262 4,195,844,528 2,138,279,717
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Bank Overdraft - 83,048 - -
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
- Financial derivative instruments 7 139,812 - 6,565,081 124,176
Cash collateral received - - - -
Payables for securities purchased - - - 4,713,373
Due to brokers - - - -
Dividends payable 166,927 94,300 532,808 289,285
Due to shareholders - - - 1,038,008
Other liabilities 148,441 114,300 943,868 206,657
Liabilities (excluding net assets attributable to holders
of redeemable participating shares) 455,180 291,648 8,041,757 6,371,499
Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares 1,376,759,831* 411,071,614 4,187,802,771 2,131,908,218

AThe sub-fund was launched on 2 February 2024.
ANThe sub-fund was launched on 22 February 2024
*Classified as equity (see note 8)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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Assets

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
- Transferable securities

- Financial derivative instruments
Cash collateral pledged
Receivables for securities sold
Due from brokers

Due from shareholders
Dividends receivable

Other assets

Interest receivable from financial assets at fair value

through profit or loss
Total assets

Liabilities
Current liabilities
Bank overdraft

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

- Financial derivative instruments
Cash collateral received

Payables for securities purchased
Due to brokers

Dividends payable

Due to shareholders

Other liabilities

Liabilities (excluding net assets attributable to holders

of redeemable participating shares)

Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares

AThe sub-fund was launched on 6 March 2024.

AMUNDI ETF ICAV
ANNUAL REPORT AND SWISS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As at 31 December 2024

Statement of financial position (continued)
AMUNDI MSCI USA UCITS

ETFA
31 December 2024

Notes usD
3 (h) 1,446,009
7 518,328,141

7 65

3 (i) 234,748
267,515

520,276,478

7 22,945
37,873

22,145

82,963

520,193,515

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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AMUNDI ETF ICAV
ANNUAL REPORT AND SWISS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As at 31 December 2024

Statement of financial position (continued)

The financial statement was approved by the Board of Directors of the ICAV on 23 April 2025 and signed on its behalf by:

Adrian Waters Graham Fox

23 April 2025
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Notes
Income
Interest income
Interest from financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss
Dividend income
Other income
Net (loss)/gain on financial assets and liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss 7
Net (loss)/gain on foreign exchange
Total (loss)/income

Expenses

Management fees 4
Other expenses

Total operating expenses

Operating (loss)/profit
Finance costs
Distributions to redeemable participating shareholders

Interest expense

(Loss)/profit for the financial year after distribution and
before withholding tax

Less: Withholding tax 3 (m)
Less: Capital gains tax 3 (k)

(Decrease)/increase in net assets attributable to holders
of redeemable participating shares from operations

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

AMUNDI ETF ICAV
ANNUAL REPORT AND SWISS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

Statement of comprehensive income

AMUNDI S&P 500 EQUAL AMUNDI S&P 500 EQUAL AMUNDI MSCI AMUNDI MSCI
WEIGHT ESG LEADERS UCITS WEIGHT ESG LEADERS UCITS WORLD UCITS WORLD UCITS
ETF ETF ETF ETF

31 December 2024 31 December 2023 31 December 2024 31 December 2023

uUsD uUsD usbD uUsD

128,358 16,262 408,607 6,146

26,274,769 8,970,335 47,198,459 2,382,354

21,652 21,141 46,493 387

10,268,388 31,279,954 412,968,822 22,311,964

(27,570) 5,366 231,443 75,268

36,665,597 40,293,058 460,853,824 24,776,119

2,212,024 690,947 3,192,971 140,878

436,355 140,485 585,626 74,211

2,648,379 831,432 3,778,597 215,089

34,017,218 39,461,626 457,075,227 24,561,030

- - (13,438,545) (92,326)

(33,219) (5) (3,219) (118)

33,983,999 39,461,621 443,633,463 24,468,586

(3,730,245) (1,267,214) (5,748,405) (284,570)

30,253,754 38,194,407 437,885,058 24,184,016
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Income

Interest income

Interest from financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss

Dividend income

Other income

Net (loss)/gain on financial assets and liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss

Net (loss)/gain on foreign exchange

Total (loss)/income

Expenses

Management fees

Other expenses

Total operating expenses

Operating (loss)/profit

Finance costs
Distributions to redeemable participating shareholders
Interest expense

(Loss)/profit for the financial year after distribution and
before withholding tax

Less: Withholding tax
Less: Capital gains tax

(Decrease)/increase in net assets attributable to
holders of redeemable participating shares from
operations

AMUNDI ETF ICAV

ANNUAL REPORT AND SWISS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

Statement of comprehensive income (continued)

AMUNDI MSCI AMUNDI MSCI AMUNDI S&P GLOBAL AMUNDI S&P GLOBAL

ACWI SRI PAB UCITS ACWI SRI PAB UCITS COMMUNICATION SERVICES COMMUNICATION SERVICES

ETF ETF ESG UCITS ETF ESG UCITS ETF

31 December 2024 31 December 2023 31 December 2024 31 December 2023

Notes uUsD uUsD EUR EUR
5,483 991 15,790 3,365

1,442,256 888,158 3,485,900 932,359

502 82 13,701 4,961

7 6,947,415 8,994,860 64,728,299 32,053,352
(32,905) (30,922) 746,297 148,981

8,362,751 9,853,169 68,989,987 33,143,018

4 159,715 85,743 447,457 166,325
21,533 32,817 188,828 27,328

181,248 118,560 636,285 193,653

8,181,503 9,734,609 68,353,702 32,949,365

B - (17,324) (6,798)

(662) (1,964) (26,343) (1,654)

8,180,841 9,732,645 68,310,035 32,940,913

3(m) (185,475) (118,215) (405,597) (130,924)
3 (k) (5,309) (13,241) - -
7,990,057 9,601,189 67,904,438 32,809,989

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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Notes
Income
Interest income
Interest from financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss
Dividend income
Other income
Net (loss)/gain on financial assets and liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss 7
Net (loss)/gain on foreign exchange
Total (loss)/income

Expenses

Management fees 4
Other expenses

Total operating expenses

Operating (loss)/profit
Finance costs
Distributions to redeemable participating shareholders

Interest expense

(Loss)/profit for the financial year after distribution and
before withholding tax

Less: Withholding tax 3 (m)
Less: Capital Gains tax

(Decrease)/increase in net assets attributable to holders
of redeemable participating shares from operations

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

AMUNDI ETF ICAV
ANNUAL REPORT AND SWISS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

Statement of comprehensive income (continued)
AMUNDI S&P GLOBAL AMUNDI S&P GLOBAL

AMUNDI S&P GLOBAL

AMUNDI S&P GLOBAL

CONSUMER DISCRETIONARY CONSUMER DISCRETIONARY CONSUMER STAPLES ESG CONSUMER STAPLES ESG
ESG UCITS ETF ESG UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF

31 December 2024 31 December 2023 31 December 2024 31 December 2023
EUR EUR EUR EUR

9,915 1,938 12,012 821

3,906,092 1,983,063 5,115,101 2,457,052

2,418 10,649 2,394 22,298

79,728,300 27,559,969 12,445,890 (4,877,551)
(248,268) 197,364 244,695 275,560
83,398,457 29,752,983 17,820,092 (2,121,820)
499,865 252,294 360,305 168,964

133,397 62,333 240,239 155,063

633,262 314,627 600,544 324,027
82,765,195 29,438,356 17,219,548 (2,445,847)
(30,304) (2,376) (101,461) (31,284)

(4,041) (137) (2,172) (87)

82,730,850 29,435,843 17,115,915 (2,477,218)
(452,422) (233,506) (662,352) (308,570)
82,278,428 29,202,337 16,453,563 (2,785,788)
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AMUNDI ETF ICAV
ANNUAL REPORT AND SWISS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

Statement of comprehensive income (continued)

AMUNDI S&P GLOBAL AMUNDI S&P GLOBAL AMUNDI S&P GLOBAL AMUNDI S&P GLOBAL
ENERGY CARBON REDUCED ENERGY CARBON REDUCED FINANCIALS ESG FINANCIALS ESG
UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF
31 December 2024 31 December 2023 31 December 2024 31 December 2023
Notes EUR EUR EUR EUR
Income
Interest income 33,713 10,945 38,203 2,714
Interest from financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss - - - -
Dividend income 11,080,789 6,569,084 10,564,246 2,379,728
Other income 81,366 4,771 27,908 2,431
Net gain/(loss) on financial assets and liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss 7 12,328,219 (7,966,558) 86,486,936 7,054,822
Net (loss)/gain on foreign exchange 25,256 674,768 (696,675) (52,749)
Total income/(loss) 23,549,343 (706,990) 96,420,618 9,386,946
Expenses
Management fees 4 462,396 275,891 649,643 125,720
Other expenses 280,909 369,397 474,487 24,257
Total operating expenses 743,305 645,288 1,124,130 149,977
Operating profit/(loss) 22,806,038 (1,352,278) 95,296,488 9,236,969
Finance costs
Distributions to redeemable participating shareholders (95,699) (7,325) (43,880) (3,912)
Interest expense (13,797) (681) (6,958) (179)
Profit/(loss) for the financial year after distribution and
before withholding tax 22,696,542 (1,360,284) 95,245,650 9,232,878
Less: Withholding tax 3(m) (1,120,602) (676,147) (1,110,949) (256,299)

Less: Capital Gains tax - - - -

Increase/(decrease) in net assets attributable to holders
of redeemable participating shares from operations 21,575,940 (2,036,431) 94,134,701 8,976,579

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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AMUNDI ETF ICAV

ANNUAL REPORT AND SWISS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

Statement of comprehensive income (continued)

AMUNDI S&P GLOBAL

AMUNDI S&P GLOBAL

AMUNDI S&P GLOBAL

AMUNDI S&P GLOBAL

HEALTH CARE ESG HEALTH CARE ESG INDUSTRIALS ESG INDUSTRIALS ESG
UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF
31 December 2024 31 December 2023 31 December 2024 31 December 2023
Notes EUR EUR EUR EUR
Income
Interest income 28,810 2,250 14,932 7,060
Interest from financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss - - - -
Dividend income 4,760,657 1,811,068 4,984,957 2,326,355
Other income 271 1,075 538 6,852
Net (loss)/gain on financial assets and liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss 7 9,473,821 1,649,003 35,525,024 17,501,404
Net (loss)/gain on foreign exchange 450,305 102,437 33,637 207,421
Total (loss)/income 14,713,864 3,565,833 40,559,088 20,049,092
Expenses
Management fees 4 456,100 167,993 474,469 203,073
Other expenses 205,361 20,713 171,794 41,554
Total operating expenses 661,461 188,706 646,263 244,627
Operating (loss)/profit 14,052,403 3,377,127 39,912,825 19,804,465
Finance costs
Distributions to redeemable participating shareholders (65,738) (688) (43,295) (7,010)
Interest expense (1,006) (230) (750) (1,536)
(Loss)/profit for the financial year after distribution and
before withholding tax 13,985,659 3,376,209 39,868,780 19,795,919
Less: Withholding tax 3 (m) (732,415) (279,385) (555,555) (278,065)

Less: Capital Gains tax - - - -

(Decrease)/increase in net assets attributable to
holders of redeemable participating shares from
operations 13,253,244 3,096,824 39,313,225 19,517,854

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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Notes
Income
Interest income
Interest from financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss
Dividend income
Other income
Net (loss)/gain on financial assets and liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss 7
Net (loss)/gain on foreign exchange
Total (loss)/income

Expenses

Management fees 4
Other expenses

Total operating expenses

Operating (loss)/profit
Finance costs
Distributions to redeemable participating shareholders

Interest expense

(Loss)/profit for the financial year after distribution and
before withholding tax

Less: Withholding tax 3 (m)
Less: Capital Gains tax

(Decrease)/increase in net assets attributable to holders
of redeemable participating shares from operations

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

AMUNDI ETF ICAV
ANNUAL REPORT AND SWISS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

Statement of comprehensive income (continued)
AMUNDI S&P GLOBAL AMUNDI S&P GLOBAL

INFORMATION INFORMATION AMUNDI S&P GLOBAL AMUNDI S&P GLOBAL
TECHNOLOGY ESG UCITS TECHNOLOGY ESG UCITS MATERIALS ESG MATERIALS ESG
ETF ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF

31 December 2024 31 December 2023 31 December 2024 31 December 2023
EUR EUR EUR EUR

12,518 3,185 12,716 1,582

2,450,479 1,684,142 3,162,306 1,761,334

1,299 1,799 1,252 4,236

99,423,339 79,358,318 (3,559,175) 5,382,026
(87,861) 120,191 (94,681) 209,831
101,799,774 81,167,635 (477,582) 7,359,009
625,904 335,147 213,502 108,268

47,529 12,818 158,029 89,664

673,433 347,965 371,531 197,932
101,126,341 80,819,670 (849,113) 7,161,077
(157,879) (2,588) (86,498) (6,677)

(14) (86) (1,859) (357)

100,968,448 80,816,996 (937,470) 7,154,043
(338,794) (232,904) (239,217) (129,484)
100,629,654 80,584,092 (1,176,687) 7,024,559
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Notes
Income
Interest income
Interest from financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss
Dividend income
Other income
Net (loss)/gain) on financial assets and liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss 7
Net (loss)/gain on foreign exchange
Total (loss)/income

Expenses

Management fees 4
Other expenses

Total operating expenses

Operating (loss)/profit
Finance costs
Distributions to redeemable participating shareholders

Interest expense

(Loss)/profit for the financial year after distribution and
before withholding tax

Less: Withholding tax 3 (m)
Less: Capital Gains tax

(Decrease)/increase in net assets attributable to holders
of redeemable participating shares from operations

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

AMUNDI ETF ICAV
ANNUAL REPORT AND SWISS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

Statement of comprehensive income (continued)
AMUNDI S&P GLOBAL AMUNDI S&P GLOBAL

AMUNDI MSCI USA ESG

AMUNDI MSCI USA ESG

UTILITIES ESG UCITS ETF UTILITIES ESG UCITS ETF LEADERS EXTRA UCITS ETF LEADERS EXTRA UCITS ETF
31 December 2024 31 December 2023 31 December 2024 31 December 2023
EUR EUR usD usD

21,151 300 109,699 16,204

4,527,315 1,817,158 12,588,051 4,679,079

9,920 284 14,794 8,077

9,693,360 (1,245,699) 199,932,634 98,535,694

180,438 89,952 (10,996) 93
14,432,184 661,995 212,634,182 103,239,147
216,465 81,324 1,258,171 338,043

425,747 61,080 192,823 55,502

642,212 142,404 1,450,994 393,545
13,789,972 519,591 211,183,188 102,845,602
(228,627) (6,187) (294,369) -

(2,274) (229) - B}

13,559,071 513,175 210,888,819 102,845,602
(389,345) (163,718) (1,796,830) (674,388)
13,169,726 349,457 209,091,989 102,171,214

34



AMUNDI ETF ICAV

ANNUAL REPORT AND SWISS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

Statement of comprehensive income (continued)

AMUNDI S&P SMALL CAP 600

AMUNDI S&P SMALL CAP 600

AMUNDI MSCI WORLD ESG

AMUNDI MSCI WORLD ESG

ESG UCITS ETF ESG UCITS ETF LEADERS UCITS ETF LEADERS UCITS ETF
31 December 2024 31 December 2023 31 December 2024 31 December 2023
Notes usD usD usD usD
Income
Interest income 19,771 11,019 144,843 15,823
Interest from financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss - - - -
Dividend income 3,179,632 1,335,616 28,857,381 4,883,505
Other income 655 639 39,206 1,439
Net (loss)/gain on financial assets and liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss 7 (1,363,619) 9,951,837 181,789,392 59,789,704
Net (loss)/gain on foreign exchange (15) 22 93,688 590,857
Total (loss)/income 1,836,424 11,299,133 210,924,510 65,281,328
Expenses
Management fees 4 626,514 271,108 3,104,099 520,782
Other expenses 41,281 3,537 728,399 225,407
Total operating expenses 667,795 274,645 3,832,498 746,189
Operating (loss)/profit 1,168,629 11,024,488 207,092,012 64,535,139
Finance costs
Distributions to redeemable participating shareholders (1,135,504) - - -
Interest expense - - (4,700) (5,445)
(Loss)/profit for the financial year after distribution and
before withholding tax 33,125 11,024,488 207,087,312 64,529,694
Less: Withholding tax 3(m) (456,422) (196,514) (3,426,193) (595,892)
Less: Capital Gains tax - - - -
(Decrease)/increase in net assets attributable to
holders of redeemable participating shares from
operations (423,297) 10,827,974 203,661,119 63,933,802

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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Income

Interest income

Interest from financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss

Dividend income

Other income

Net (loss)/gain on financial assets and liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss

Net (loss)/gain on foreign exchange

Total (loss)/income

Expenses

Management fees

Other expenses

Total operating expenses

Operating (loss)/profit

Finance costs
Distributions to redeemable participating shareholders
Interest expense

(Loss)/profit for the financial year after distribution and
before withholding tax

Less: Withholding tax
Less: Capital Gains tax

(Decrease)/increase in net assets attributable to
holders of redeemable participating shares from
operations

AMUNDI ETF ICAV

ANNUAL REPORT AND SWISS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

Statement of comprehensive income (continued)

AMUNDI MSCI USA ESG

AMUNDI MSCI USA ESG

AMUNDI S&P 500 ESG UCITS

AMUNDI S&P 500 ESG UCITS

LEADERS UCITS ETF LEADERS UCITS ETF ETF ETF

31 December 2024 31 December 2023 31 December 2024 31 December 2023

Notes usD usD usD usD
292,480 55,724 475,975 58,503

21,193,953 10,200,719 72,614,697 9,385,822

50,509 - 76,368 1,373

7 244,359,686 173,019,404 919,601,439 290,398,720
(223,433) 84,937 (365,399) (17,446)

265,673,195 183,360,784 992,403,080 299,826,972

4 2,521,104 1,041,120 7,454,073 1,033,173
326,229 69,492 597,926 83,494

2,847,333 1,110,612 8,051,999 1,116,667

262,825,862 182,250,172 984,351,081 298,710,305

(86,192) (1,411) (19,884) -

262,739,670 182,248,761 984,331,197 298,710,305

3(m) (2,960,348) (1,448,366) (10,351,574) (1,357,164)
259,779,322 180,800,395 973,979,623 297,353,141

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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Income

Interest income

Interest from financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss

Dividend income

Other income

Net (loss)/gain on financial assets and liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss

Net (loss)/gain on foreign exchange

Total income

Expenses

Management fees

Other expenses

Total operating expenses

Operating profit
Finance costs
Distributions to redeemable participating shareholders

Interest expense

(Loss)/profit for the financial period after distribution
and before withholding tax

Less: Withholding tax
Less: Capital Gains tax

(Decrease)/increase in net assets attributable to holders

of redeemable participating shares from operations

AMUNDI ETF ICAV

ANNUAL REPORT AND SWISS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

Statement of comprehensive income (continued)

AMUNDI MSCI USA SRI
CLIMATE NET ZERO AMBITION

AMUNDI MSCI USA SRI
CLIMATE NET ZERO AMBITION

AMUNDI MSCI USA ESG
CLIMATE NET ZERO AMBITION

AMUNDI MSCI USA ESG
CLIMATE NET ZERO AMBITION

PAB UCITS ETF PAB UCITS ETF CTB CTB

31 December 2024 31 December 2023 31 December 2024 31 December 2023

Notes usD uUsD uUsD usbD
279,114 21,155 167,384 1,955

46,501,431 15,987,233 58,615,873 3,313,252

64,242 70 11,712 4,962

7 196,890,140 723,874,128 814,339,695 104,018,633
(208,945) (5,442) (93,067) 22,386

243,525,982 739,877,144 873,041,597 107,361,188

4 5,907,153 1,403,727 3,313,089 181,557
613,559 29,528 380,450 22,556

6,520,712 1,433,255 3,693,539 204,113

237,005,270 738,443,889 869,348,058 107,157,075

- - (14,658,921) -

(20,993) (7,624) (2,905) (4)

236,984,277 738,436,265 854,686,232 107,157,071

3(m) (6,654,556) (2,412,607) (8,385,643) (519,466)
230,329,721 736,023,658 846,300,589 106,637,605

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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Income

Interest income

Interest from financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss

Dividend income

Other income

Net (loss)/gain on financial assets and liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss

Net (loss)/gain on foreign exchange

Total income

Expenses

Management fees

Other expenses

Total operating expenses

Operating profit

Finance costs
Distributions to redeemable participating shareholders
Interest expense

(Loss)/profit for the financial period after distribution
and before withholding tax

Less: Withholding tax
Less: Capital Gains tax

(Decrease)/increase in net assets attributable to
holders of redeemable participating shares from
operations

AMUNDI ETF ICAV

ANNUAL REPORT AND SWISS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

Statement of comprehensive income (continued)

AMUNDI S&P 500 CLIMATE
NET ZERO AMBITION PAB

AMUNDI S&P 500 CLIMATE
NET ZERO AMBITION PAB

AMUNDI MSCI WORLD ESG
CLIMATE NET ZERO AMBITION

AMUNDI MSCI WORLD ESG
CLIMATE NET ZERO AMBITION

UCITS ETF UCITS ETF CTB UCITS ETF CTB UCITS ETF

31 December 2024 31 December 2023 31 December 2024 31 December 2023

Notes uUsD usbD usbD usbD
440,489 4,717 99,047 -

54,398,241 5,060,833 24,270,674 1,183,392

70,828 2,574 12,760 -

7 855,658,407 133,654,761 182,479,964 51,000,738
(127,236) 35,445 (659,742) 111,508

910,440,729 138,758,330 206,202,703 52,295,638

4 4,090,959 260,768 2,840,332 180,798
362,763 14,800 373,063 173,509

4,453,722 275,568 3,213,395 354,307

905,987,007 138,482,762 202,989,308 51,941,331

(19,876,649) - (18,616) -

(28,323) - (28,407) -

886,082,035 138,482,762 202,942,285 51,941,331

3(m) (7,910,372) (753,781) (3,085,889) (193,993)
878,171,663 137,728,981 199,856,396 51,747,338

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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Income

Interest income

Interest from financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss

Dividend income

Other income

Net (loss)/gain on financial assets and liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss

Net (loss)/gain on foreign exchange

Total income

Expenses

Management fees

Other expenses

Total operating expenses

Operating profit

Finance costs
Distributions to redeemable participating shareholders
Interest expense

(Loss)/profit for the financial period after distribution
and before withholding tax

Less: Withholding tax
Less: Capital Gains tax

(Decrease)/increase in net assets attributable to holders
of redeemable participating shares from operations
AThe sub-fund was launched on 2 February 2024.

AAThe sub-fund was launched on 22 February 2024.

AMUNDI ETF ICAV

ANNUAL REPORT AND SWISS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

Statement of comprehensive income (continued)

AMUNDI MSCI WORLD
CLIMATE NET ZERO

AMUNDI MSCI WORLD
CLIMATE NET ZERO AMBITION

AMUNDI MSCI WORLD SRI
CLIMATE NET ZERO AMBITION

AMUNDI PRIME ALL COUNTRY

AMBITION PAB UCITS ETF PAB UCITS ETF PAB UCITS ETFA WORLD UCITS ETFAA

31 December 2024 31 December 2023 31 December 2024 31 December 2024

Notes uUsD usbD usbD usbD
63,611 - 185,429 70,635

13,529,406 624,793 82,655,343 17,103,750

8,897 35 52,119 5,858

7 95,860,471 33,199,673 451,173,273 92,524,689
728,042 178,809 (1,422,294) 298,365

110,190,427 34,003,310 532,643,870 110,003,297

4 1,752,836 114,299 8,288,117 676,305
387,050 187,050 625,396 950,692

2,139,886 301,349 8,913,513 1,626,997

108,050,541 33,701,961 523,730,357 108,376,300

(16,152) - (69,346) (9,628)

108,034,389 33,701,961 523,661,011 108,366,672

3 (m) (1,775,336) (100,083) (10,611,827) (2,082,953)
B - - (92,716)

106,259,053 33,601,878 513,049,184 106,191,003

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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Income

Interest income

Interest from financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss

Dividend income

Other income

Net (loss)/gain on financial assets and liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss

Net (loss)/gain on foreign exchange

Total income

Expenses

Management fees

Other expenses

Total operating expenses

Operating profit

Finance costs
Distributions to redeemable participating shareholders
Interest expense

(Loss)/profit for the financial period after distribution
and before withholding tax

Less: Withholding tax
Less: Capital Gains tax

(Decrease)/increase in net assets attributable to holders
of redeemable participating shares from operations
AThe sub fund was launched on 6 March 2024.

AMUNDI ETF ICAV
ANNUAL REPORT AND SWISS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

Statement of comprehensive income (continued)
AMUNDI MSCI USA UCITS
ETFA
31 December 2024
Notes uUsb

17,219

1,948,055
2,427

7 14,513,175
(60)
16,480,816

4 56,168
55,413
111,581

16,369,235

16,369,235

3 (m) (276,716)

16,092,519

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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AMUNDI ETF ICAV
ANNUAL REPORT AND SWISS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

Statement of changes in net assets attributable to holders of redeemable participating shares

Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares at the start of the financial year

(Decrease)/increase in net assets attributable to holders
of redeemable participating shares from operations

Proceeds from redeemable participating shares issued
Redemption of redeemable participating shares

Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares at the end of the financial year

AMUNDI S&P 500 EQUAL AMUNDI S&P 500 EQUAL AMUNDI MSCI AMUNDI MSCI
WEIGHT ESG LEADERS UCITS WEIGHT ESG LEADERS UCITS WORLD UCITS WORLD UCITS
ETF ETF ETF ETF

31 December 2024 31 December 2023 31 December 2024 31 December 2023

uUsD uUsD uUsD uUsD

739,716,771 342,065,830 190,953,551 11,655,371

30,253,754 38,194,407 437,885,058 24,184,016

2,986,124,996 892,386,614 3,408,878,438 166,447,864
(1,030,274,962) (532,930,080) (388,248,932) (11,333,700)
2,725,820,559 739,716,771 3,649,468,115 190,953,551
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AMUNDI ETF ICAV

ANNUAL REPORT AND SWISS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

Statement of changes in net assets attributable to holders of redeemable participating shares (continued)

Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares at the start of the financial year

(Decrease)/increase in net assets attributable to holders
of redeemable participating shares from operations

Proceeds from redeemable participating shares issued
Redemption of redeemable participating shares

Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares at the end of the financial year

*Classified as equity (see note 8)

AMUNDI MSCI ACWI

AMUNDI MSCI ACWI

AMUNDI S&P GLOBAL

AMUNDI S&P GLOBAL

SRI PAB UCITS SRI PAB UCITS COMMUNICATION SERVICES COMMUNICATION SERVICES

ETF ETF ESG UCITS ETF ESG UCITS ETF

31 December 2024 31 December 2023 31 December 2024 31 December 2023
uUsD uUsD EUR EUR

72,209,303 22,005,827 105,026,722 73,480,602
7,990,057 9,601,189 67,904,438 32,809,989
19,174,723 51,823,287 344,713,154 44,013,400
(23,416,379) (11,221,000) (219,662,051) (45,277,269)
75,957,704* 72,209,303 297,982,263 105,026,722

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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AMUNDI ETF ICAV

ANNUAL REPORT AND SWISS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

Statement of changes in net assets attributable to holders of redeemable participating shares (continued)

Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares at the start of the financial year

(Decrease)/increase in net assets attributable to holders
of redeemable participating shares from operations

Proceeds from redeemable participating shares issued
Redemption of redeemable participating shares

Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares at the end of the financial year

AMUNDI S&P GLOBAL

AMUNDI S&P GLOBAL

AMUNDI S&P GLOBAL

AMUNDI S&P GLOBAL

CONSUMER DISCRETIONARY CONSUMER DISCRETIONARY CONSUMER STAPLES ESG CONSUMER STAPLES ESG
ESG UCITS ETF ESG UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF

31 December 2024 31 December 2023 31 December 2024 31 December 2023

EUR EUR EUR EUR

190,628,123 83,604,793 169,017,238 39,432,685

82,278,428 29,202,337 16,453,563 (2,785,788)

192,789,291 99,492,533 151,886,936 152,831,813

(94,191,504) (21,671,540) (130,517,471) (20,461,472)

371,504,338 190,628,123 206,840,266 169,017,238

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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AMUNDI ETF ICAV
ANNUAL REPORT AND SWISS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

Statement of changes in net assets attributable to holders of redeemable participating shares (continued)

Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares at the start of the financial year

(Decrease)/increase in net assets attributable to holders
of redeemable participating shares from operations

Proceeds from redeemable participating shares issued
Redemption of redeemable participating shares

Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares at the end of the financial year

AMUNDI S&P GLOBAL
ENERGY CARBON REDUCED

AMUNDI S&P GLOBAL
ENERGY CARBON REDUCED

AMUNDI S&P GLOBAL
FINANCIALS ESG UCITS

AMUNDI S&P GLOBAL
FINANCIALS ESG UCITS

UCITS ETF UCITS ETF ETF ETF

31 December 2024 31 December 2023 31 December 2024 31 December 2023
EUR EUR EUR EUR

255,866,182 24,115,372 82,872,781 49,179,887
21,575,940 (2,036,431) 94,134,701 8,976,579
160,681,199 371,235,736 745,180,271 34,706,380
(242,213,713) (137,448,495) (366,473,380) (9,990,065)
195,909,608 255,866,182 555,714,373 82,872,781
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AMUNDI ETF ICAV

ANNUAL REPORT AND SWISS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

Statement of changes in net assets attributable to holders of redeemable participating shares (continued)

Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares at the start of the financial year

(Decrease)/increase in net assets attributable to holders
of redeemable participating shares from operations

Proceeds from redeemable participating shares issued
Redemption of redeemable participating shares

Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares at the end of the financial year

AMUNDI S&P GLOBAL
HEALTH CARE ESG UCITS

AMUNDI S&P GLOBAL
HEALTH CARE ESG UCITS

AMUNDI S&P GLOBAL
INDUSTRIALS ESG UCITS

AMUNDI S&P GLOBAL
INDUSTRIALS ESG UCITS

ETF ETF ETF ETF

31 December 2024 31 December 2023 31 December 2024 31 December 2023
EUR EUR EUR EUR

100,257,425 78,375,895 133,941,622 90,055,244
13,253,244 3,096,824 39,313,225 19,517,854
339,731,280 32,687,797 254,107,377 65,680,185
(206,934,291) (13,903,091) (91,119,969) (41,311,661)
246,307,658 100,257,425 336,242,255 133,941,622

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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AMUNDI ETF ICAV
ANNUAL REPORT AND SWISS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

Statement of changes in net assets attributable to holders of redeemable participating shares (continued)

AMUNDI S&P GLOBAL AMUNDI S&P GLOBAL AMUNDI S&P GLOBAL AMUNDI S&P GLOBAL
INFORMATION INFORMATION MATERIALS ESG UCITS MATERIALS ESG UCITS
TECHNOLOGY ESG UCITS ETF  TECHNOLOGY ESG UCITS ETF ETF ETF
31 December 2024 31 December 2023 31 December 2024 31 December 2023
EUR EUR EUR EUR
Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares at the start of the financial year 213,880,051 172,167,943 90,982,212 14,008,497
(Decrease)/increase in net assets attributable to holders
of redeemable participating shares from operations 100,629,654 80,584,092 (1,176,687) 7,024,559
Proceeds from redeemable participating shares issued 218,409,802 38,411,699 143,356,234 92,028,469
Redemption of redeemable participating shares (91,603,217) (77,283,683) (115,699,659) (22,079,313)
Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares at the end of the financial year 441,316,290 213,880,051 117,462,100 90,982,212

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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AMUNDI ETF ICAV
ANNUAL REPORT AND SWISS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

Statement of changes in net assets attributable to holders of redeemable participating shares (continued)

AMUNDI S&P GLOBAL AMUNDI S&P GLOBAL AMUNDI MSCI USA ESG AMUNDI MSCI USA ESG
UTILITIES ESG UCITS ETF UTILITIES ESG UCITS ETF LEADERS EXTRA UCITS ETF LEADERS EXTRA UCITS ETF
31 December 2024 31 December 2023 31 December 2024 31 December 2023
EUR EUR usD usD
Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares at the start of the financial year 60,032,402 29,491,996 804,128,925 275,869,102
(Decrease)/increase in net assets attributable to holders
of redeemable participating shares from operations 13,169,726 349,457 209,091,989 102,171,214
Proceeds from redeemable participating shares issued 287,920,449 42,306,980 815,771,658 619,988,461
Redemption of redeemable participating shares (253,791,533) (12,116,031) (791,307,115) (193,899,852)
Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares at the end of the financial year 107,331,044 60,032,402 1,037,685,457 804,128,925

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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AMUNDI ETF ICAV
ANNUAL REPORT AND SWISS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

Statement of changes in net assets attributable to holders of redeemable participating shares (continued)

AMUNDI S&P SMALL CAP AMUNDI S&P SMALL CAP AMUNDI MSCI WORLD ESG AMUNDI MSCI WORLD ESG

600 ESG UCITS ETF 600 ESG UCITS ETF LEADERS UCITS ETF LEADERS UCITS ETF
31 December 2024 31 December 2023 31 December 2024 31 December 2023
uUsD uUsD uUsD uUsD
Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares at the start of the financial year 91,843,530 - 860,407,824 -
(Decrease)/increase in net assets attributable to holders of
redeemable participating shares from operations (423,297) 10,827,974 203,661,119 63,933,802
Proceeds from redeemable participating shares issued 344,805,702 92,800,160 1,456,480,909 836,234,995
Redemption of redeemable participating shares (15,585,641) (11,784,604) (101,854,756) (39,760,973)
Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares at the end of the financial year 420,640,294* 91,843,530 2,418,695,096 860,407,824

*Classified as equity (see note 8)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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ANNUAL REPORT AND SWISS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

Statement of changes in net assets attributable to holders of redeemable participating shares (continued)

AMUNDI MSCI USA ESG AMUNDI MSCI USA ESG AMUNDI S&P 500 ESG UCITS AMUNDI S&P 500 ESG UCITS
LEADERS UCITS ETF LEADERS UCITS ETF ETF ETF

31 December 2024 31 December 2023 31 December 2024 31 December 2023
uUsD usbD usbD usbD

Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable

participating shares at the start of the financial year

(Decrease)/increase in net assets attributable to holders
of redeemable participating shares from operations

Proceeds from redeemable participating shares issued

Redemption of redeemable participating shares

Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares at the end of the financial year

2,758,297,986

259,779,322
1,039,780,322

(2,644,043,542)

180,800,395
2,714,139,784

(136,642,193)

3,248,619,600

973,979,623
4,254,668,908

(1,960,385,257)

297,353,141
3,218,477,224

(267,210,765)

1,413,814,088

2,758,297,986

6,516,882,874

3,248,619,600
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AMUNDI ETF ICAV
ANNUAL REPORT AND SWISS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

Statement of changes in net assets attributable to holders of redeemable participating shares (continued)

Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares at the start of the financial year

(Decrease)/increase in net assets attributable to holders
of redeemable participating shares from operations

Proceeds from redeemable participating shares issued
Redemption of redeemable participating shares

Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares at the end of the financial year

AMUNDI MSCI USA SRI
CLIMATE NET ZERO AMBITION

AMUNDI MSCI USA SRI
CLIMATE NET ZERO AMBITION

AMUNDI MSCI USA ESG
CLIMATE NET ZERO

AMUNDI MSCI USA ESG
CLIMATE NET ZERO

(5,185,522,074)

(218,940,063)

(579,708,503)

PAB UCITS ETF PAB UCITS ETF AMBITION CTB UCITS ETF AMBITION CTB UCITS ETF

31 December 2024 31 December 2023 31 December 2024 31 December 2023
uUsD usD uUsD usbD
6,040,733,266 - 1,840,579,571 -
230,329,721 736,023,658 846,300,589 106,637,605
393,661,480 5,523,649,671 3,328,633,607 1,787,574,120

(53,632,154)

1,479,202,393

6,040,733,266

5,435,805,264

1,840,579,571
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ANNUAL REPORT AND SWISS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

Statement of changes in net assets attributable to holders of redeemable participating shares (continued)

Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares at the start of the financial year

(Decrease)/increase in net assets attributable to holders
of redeemable participating shares from operations

Proceeds from redeemable participating shares issued
Redemption of redeemable participating shares

Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares at the end of the financial year

AMUNDI S&P 500 CLIMATE
NET ZERO AMBITION PAB

AMUNDI S&P 500 CLIMATE
NET ZERO AMBITION PAB

AMUNDI MSCI WORLD ESG
CLIMATE NET ZERO AMBITION

AMUNDI MSCI WORLD ESG
CLIMATE NET ZERO AMBITION

(564,081,874)

(84,365,902)

(580,393,124)

UCITS ETF UCITS ETF CTB UCITS ETF CTB UCITS ETF

31 December 2024 31 December 2023 31 December 2024 31 December 2023
uUsD uUsD usbD usbD
2,733,469,526 - 1,129,574,515 -
878,171,663 137,728,981 199,856,396 51,747,338
2,187,313,660 2,680,106,447 857,065,853 1,197,466,854

(119,639,677)

5,234,872,975

2,733,469,526

1,606,103,640

1,129,574,515
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For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

Statement of changes in net assets attributable to holders of redeemable participating shares (continued)

Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares at the start of the financial year

(Decrease)/increase in net assets attributable to holders
of redeemable participating shares from operations

Proceeds from redeemable participating shares issued
Redemption of redeemable participating shares

Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares at the end of the financial year

AThe sub-fund was launched on 2 February 2024.
ANThe sub-fund was launched on 22 February 2024.
*Classified as equity (see note 8)

AMUNDI MSCI WORLD
CLIMATE NET ZERO AMBITION

AMUNDI MSCI WORLD
CLIMATE NET ZERO AMBITION

AMUNDI MSCI WORLD SRI
CLIMATE NET ZERO AMBITION

AMUNDI PRIME ALL COUNTRY

(122,867,195)

(565,492,614)

(2,511,921,898)

PAB UCITS ETF PAB UCITS ETF PAB UCITS ETFA WORLD UCITS ETFAA

31 December 2024 31 December 2023 31 December 2024 31 December 2024
uUsD uUsD usbD usbD

411,071,614 - - -
106,259,053 33,601,878 513,049,184 106,191,003
982,296,359 942,962,350 6,186,675,485 2,104,122,257

(78,405,042)

1,376,759,831*

411,071,614

4,187,802,771

2,131,908,218
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For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

Statement of changes in net assets attributable to holders of redeemable participating shares (continued)
AMUNDI MSCI USA UCITS

ETFA
31 December 2024
uUsD
Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares at the start of the financial year -
(Decrease)/increase in net assets attributable to holders
of redeemable participating shares from operations 16,092,519
Proceeds from redeemable participating shares issued 591,024,149
Redemption of redeemable participating shares (86,923,153)
Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares at the end of the financial year 520,193,515

AThe sub-fund was launched on 6 March 2024.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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Statement of cash flows

AMUNDI S&P 500 EQUAL AMUNDI S&P 500 EQUAL AMUNDI MSCI AMUNDI MSCI
WEIGHT ESG LEADERS UCITS WEIGHT ESG LEADERS UCITS WORLD UCITS WORLD UCITS
ETF ETF ETF ETF
31 December 2024 31 December 2023 31 December 2024 31 December 2023
uUsD uUsD uUsD uUsD
Cashflows from operating activities
(Decrease)/increase in assets attributable to holders of
redeemable participating shares 30,253,754 38,194,407 437,885,058 24,184,016
Adjustment for:
Dividend income (26,274,769) (8,970,335) (47,198,459) (2,382,354)
Distributions to holders of redeemable shares - - 13,438,545 92,326
Interest income (128,358) (16,262) (408,607) (6,146)
Interest expense 33,219 5 3,219 118
Withholding taxes 3,730,245 1,267,214 5,748,405 284,570

Capital gains taxes

Change in financial assets and liabilities:
Decrease/(increase) in financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss
(Decrease)/increase in financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss
(Decrease)/increase in due from brokers
(Increase)/decrease in due to brokers
Increase/(decrease) in payables for securities purchased
Decrease/(increase) in receivables for securities sold
(Decrease)/increase in dividends payable
(Decrease)/increase in accrued management and administration
fees payable
Decrease/(increase) in other assets

- Increase in interest receivable
(Decrease)/increase in other liabilities

Dividend income received
Interest income received
Interest paid

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

(1,975,257,265)

1,434,296
(1,734,001)

497,032

269,647
1

104,282
22,761,563

128,358
(33,219)
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(397,887,191)

17,188
(106,004)

(4,623,605)

105,763

98,539

21,905

8,183,591
16,262
(5)

(3,438,216,602)

386,430
(6,615,090)
(435,085)
135
338,798

352,199
(329,537)

73,874
44,729,962

408,607
(3,219)

(169,384,995)

(300)
(158,406)
435,085
(129)
28,255

24,016
(23,039)

6,782
2,179,181

6,146
(118)



AMUNDI ETF ICAV
ANNUAL REPORT AND SWISS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

Statement of cash flows (continued)

AMUNDI S&P 500 EQUAL AMUNDI S&P 500 EQUAL AMUNDI MSCI AMUNDI MSCI

WEIGHT ESG LEADERS UCITS WEIGHT ESG LEADERS UCITS WORLD UCITS WORLD UCITS

ETF ETF ETF ETF

31 December 2024 31 December 2023 31 December 2024 31 December 2023

uUsD uUsD usD uUsD

Capital gains Tax paid - - - -
Withholding tax paid (3,730,245) (1,267,214) (5,748,405) (284,570)

Net cash provided by/used in operating activities

Cashflows from financing activities

(1,947,945,460)

(364,965,742)

(2,995,589,772)

(144,999,562)

Distributions paid to holders of redeemable shares - - (13,438,545) (92,326)
Proceeds from issuance of redeemable shares 2,986,124,996 892,386,614 3,408,878,438 166,447,864
Redemption of redeemable shares (1,030,274,962) (532,930,080) (388,248,932) (11,333,700)
(Increase)/decrease in due from shareholders - 3,101,934 8,310,478 (9,347,360)
Increase/(decrease) in due to shareholders (3,171,505) 3,171,505 1,036,882 -
Net cash used in/provided by financing activities 1,952,678,529 365,729,973 3,016,538,321 145,674,478
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents 4,733,069 764,231 20,948,549 674,916
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the financial year 2,632,682 1,868,451 713,893 38,977
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the financial year 7,365,751 2,632,682 21,662,442 713,893
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the financial year is

comprised of:

Cash at bank 7,365,751 2,632,682 21,662,442 713,893
Bank Overdraft - - - -
Supplementary information:

Interest income received 128,358 16,262 408,607 6,146
Interest expense paid (33,219) (5) (3,219) (118)
Dividends income received 22,761,563 8,183,591 44,729,962 2,179,181
Dividend paid 497,032 105,763 338,798 (64,071)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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Cashflows from operating activities
(Decrease)/increase in assets attributable to holders of
redeemable participating shares

Adjustment for:

Dividend income

Distributions to holders of redeemable shares

Interest income

Interest expense

Withholding taxes

Capital gains tax

Change in financial assets and liabilities:

Decrease/(increase) in financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss

Increase/(Decrease) in financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss

Decrease/(increase) in due from brokers

Increase/(decrease) in due to brokers

Increase/(decrease) in payables for securities purchased
Decrease/(increase) in receivables for securities sold
(Decrease)/increase in dividends payable

(Decrease)/increase cash collateral pledged

(Decrease)/increase in accrued management and administration
fees payable

Decrease/(increase) in other assets

Decrease/ (increase) in interest receivable

(Decrease)/increase in other liabilities

Dividend income received
Interest income received
Interest paid

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

AMUNDI ETF ICAV

ANNUAL REPORT AND SWISS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

Statement of cash flows (continued)

AMUNDI MSCI ACWI

AMUNDI MSCI ACWI

AMUNDI S&P GLOBAL

AMUNDI S&P GLOBAL

SRI PAB UCITS SRI PAB UCITS COMMUNICATION SERVICES COMMUNICATION SERVICES
ETF ETF ESG UCITS ETF ESG UCITS ETF

31 December 2024 31 December 2023 31 December 2024 31 December 2023
uUsD usbD EUR EUR
7,990,057 9,601,189 67,904,438 32,809,989
(1,442,256) (888,158) (3,485,900) (932,359)
- - 17,324 6,798

(5,483) (991) (15,790) (3,365)

662 1,964 26,343 1,654
185,475 118,215 405,597 130,924
5,309 13,241 - -
(3,731,832) (61,171,240) (192,076,592) (31,389,759)
11,020 (1,260) 43,283 (358)
(143,570) (71,341) (197,276) (75,974)

- (52,700) 3,171,584 60,255

(8,622) 16,207 33,597 7,742
(7,713) 17,495 16,265 14,428
(9,459) (9,635) (66,579) (5,666)

345 14,908 22,733 4,146
1,473,159 795,354 3,327,641 890,941
5,483 991 15,790 3,365

(662) (1,964) (26,343) (1,654)
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Statement of cash flows (continued)

AMUNDI MSCI ACWI SRI PAB

AMUNDI MSCI ACWI SRI PAB

AMUNDI S&P GLOBAL

AMUNDI S&P GLOBAL

UCITS UCITS COMMUNICATION SERVICES COMMUNICATION SERVICES
ETF ETF ESG UCITS ETF ESG UCITS ETF
31 December 2024 31 December 2023 31 December 2024 31 December 2023
uUsD uUsD EUR EUR
Capital gains Tax paid (5,309) (13,241) -
Withholding tax paid (185,475) (118,215) (405,597) (130,924)
Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities 4,131,129 (51,749,181) (121,289,482) 1,390,183
Cashflows from financing activities
Distributions paid to holders of redeemable shares - - (17,324) (6,798)
Proceeds from issuance of redeemable shares 19,174,723 51,823,287 344,713,154 44,013,400
Redemption of redeemable shares (23,416,379) (11,221,000) (219,662,051) (45,277,269)
(Increase)/decrease in due from shareholders - 11,307,421 - -
Increase/(decrease) in due to shareholders - - - -
Net cash (used in)/provided by financing activities (4,241,656) 51,909,708 125,033,779 (1,270,667)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (110,527) 160,527 3,744,297 119,516
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the financial year 196,311 35,784 155,420 35,904
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the financial year 85,784 196,311 3,899,717 155,420
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the financial year is
comprised of:
Cash at bank 85,784 196,311 3,899,717 155,420
Supplementary information:
Interest income received 5,483 991 15,790 3,365
Interest expense paid (662) (1,964) (26,343) (1,654)
Dividends income received 1,473,159 795,354 3,327,641 890,941
Dividend paid (8,622) 16,207 33,597 944

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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Statement of cash flows (continued)

AMUNDI S&P GLOBAL

AMUNDI S&P GLOBAL

AMUNDI S&P GLOBAL

AMUNDI S&P GLOBAL

CONSUMER DISCRETIONARY CONSUMER DISCRETIONARY CONSUMER STAPLES ESG CONSUMER STAPLES ESG
ESG UCITS ETF ESG UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF
31 December 2024 31 December 2023 31 December 2024 31 December 2023
EUR EUR EUR EUR
Cashflows from operating activities
(Decrease)/increase in assets attributable to holders of
redeemable participating shares 82,278,428 29,202,337 16,453,563 (2,785,788)
Adjustment for:
Dividend income (3,906,092) (1,983,063) (5,115,101) (2,457,052)
Distributions to holders of redeemable shares 30,304 2,376 101,461 31,284
Interest income (9,915) (1,938) (12,012) (821)
Interest expense 4,041 137 2,172 87
Withholding taxes 452,422 233,506 662,352 308,570
Capital gains taxes - - - -
Change in financial assets and liabilities:
Decrease/(increase) in financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss (180,443,541) (106,930,715) (37,436,159) (129,126,506)
Increase/(decrease) in financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss 28,700 (8,693) 24,239 (2,037)
Decrease/(increase) in due from brokers (152,869) (67,777) (14,090) (42,903)
Increase/(decrease) in due to brokers - - - -
Increase/(decrease) in payables for securities purchased 3,686,554 - - -
Decrease/(increase) in receivables for securities sold (6,999,279) - - -
(Decrease)/increase in dividends payable 9,908 (7,277) (27,525) 58,463
(Decrease)/increase cash collateral pledged - - - -
(Decrease)/increase in accrued management and administration
fees payable 9,487 33,432 (12,935) 32,079
Decrease/(increase) in other assets (47,561) (45,632) (505) (24,326)
Decrease/ (increase) in interest receivable - - - -
(Decrease)/increase in other liabilities 11,777 7,486 12,377 6,134
Dividend income received 3,846,705 2,027,152 5,295,874 2,069,665
Interest income received 9,915 1,938 12,012 821
Interest paid (4,041) (137) (2,172) (87)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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Statement of cash flows (continued)

AMUNDI S&P GLOBAL

AMUNDI S&P GLOBAL

AMUNDI S&P GLOBAL

AMUNDI S&P GLOBAL

CONSUMER DISCRETIONARY CONSUMER DISCRETIONARY CONSUMER STAPLES ESG CONSUMER STAPLES ESG
ESG UCITS ETF ESG UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF
31 December 2024 31 December 2023 31 December 2024 31 December 2023
EUR EUR EUR EUR
Withholding tax paid (452,422) (233,506) (662,352) (308,570)
Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities (101,647,479) (77,770,374) (20,718,801) (132,240,987)
Cashflows from financing activities
Distributions paid to holders of redeemable shares (30,304) (2,376) (101,461) (31,284)
Proceeds from issuance of redeemable shares 192,789,291 99,492,533 151,886,936 152,831,813
Redemption of redeemable shares (94,191,504) (21,671,540) (130,517,471) (20,461,472)
(Increase)/decrease in due from shareholders - - - -
Increase/(decrease) in due to shareholders 26,676,954 - - -
Net cash (used in)/provided by financing activities 125,244,437 77,818,617 21,268,004 132,339,057
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 23,596,958 48,243 549,203 98,070
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the financial year 125,788 77,545 133,746 35,676
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the financial year 23,722,746 125,788 682,949 133,746
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the financial year is
comprised of:
Cash at bank 23,722,746 125,788 682,949 133,746
Bank overdraft - - - -
Supplementary information:
Interest income received 9,915 1,938 12,012 821
Interest expense paid (4,041) (137) (2,172) (87)
Dividends income received 3,846,705 2,027,152 5,295,874 2,069,665
Dividends paid 9,908 (9,653) (27,525) 27,179

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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Statement of cash flows (continued)
AMUNDI S&P GLOBAL AMUNDI S&P GLOBAL
ENERGY CARBON REDUCED  ENERGY CARBON REDUCED

Cashflows from operating activities

Increase/(decrease) in assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares

Adjustment for:

Dividend income

Distributions to holders of redeemable shares

Interest income

Interest expense

Withholding taxes

Capital gain taxes

Change in financial assets and liabilities:

Decrease/(increase) in financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss

Increase/(decrease) in financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss

Decrease/(increase) in due from brokers

Increase/(decrease) in due to brokers

(Decrease)/increase in payables for securities purchased
Decrease/(increase) in receivables for securities sold
(Decrease)/increase dividends payable

(Decrease)/increase cash collateral pledged

(Decrease)/increase in accrued management and administration
fees payable

Decrease/(increase) in other assets

Decrease/ (increase) in interest receivable

(Decrease)/increase in other liabilities

Dividend income received
Interest income received
Interest paid

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

AMUNDI S&P GLOBAL
FINANCIALS ESG

AMUNDI S&P GLOBAL
FINANCIALS ESG

60

UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF
31 December 2024 31 December 2023 31 December 2024 31 December 2023
EUR EUR EUR EUR
21,575,940 (2,036,431) 94,134,701 8,976,579
(11,080,789) (6,569,084) (10,564,246) (2,379,728)
95,699 7,325 43,880 3,912
(33,713) (10,945) (38,203) (2,714)
13,797 681 6,958 179
1,120,602 676,147 1,110,949 256,299
60,240,540 (231,000,370) (471,514,351) (33,573,348)
11,695 (225) 28,437 (693)
(63,380) (198,745) (462,842) (37,215)
(3,796,674) 4,395,711 (65,323) 65,323
(577,018) - - -
11,329 9,486 76,639 3,717
(63,278) 80,124 70,713 12,897
(148,110) (153,352) (167,503) (37,997)
20,272 13,496 45,135 3,262
11,055,712 6,379,013 10,154,697 2,345,315
33,713 10,945 38,203 2,714
(13,797) (681) (6,958) (179)
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Statement of cash flows (continued)

AMUNDI S&P GLOBAL ENERGY

AMUNDI S&P GLOBAL

ENERGY CARBON REDUCED

AMUNDI S&P GLOBAL
FINANCIALS ESG

AMUNDI S&P GLOBAL
FINANCIALS ESG

CARBON REDUCED UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF
31 December 2024 31 December 2023 31 December 2024 31 December 2023
EUR EUR EUR EUR
Withholding tax paid (1,120,602) (676,147) (1,110,949) (256,299)
Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities 77,281,938 (229,073,052) (378,220,063) (24,617,976)
Cashflows from financing activities
Distributions paid to holders of redeemable shares (95,699) (7,325) (43,880) (3,912)
Proceeds from issuance of redeemable shares 160,681,199 371,235,736 745,180,271 34,706,380
Redemption of redeemable shares (242,213,713) (137,448,495) (366,473,380) (9,990,065)
(Increase)/decrease in due from shareholders - - - 1,617,093
Increase/(decrease) in due to shareholders - - - (1,617,088)
Net cash (used in)/provided by financing activities (81,628,213) 233,779,916 378,663,011 24,712,408
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (4,346,275) 4,706,864 442,948 94,432
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the financial year 4,721,995 15,131 147,005 52,573
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the financial year 375,720 4,721,995 589,953 147,005
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the financial year is
comprised of:
Cash at bank 375,720 4,721,995 589,953 147,005
Bank Overdraft - - - -
Supplementary information:
Interest income received 33,713 10,945 38,203 2,714
Interest expense paid (13,797) (681) (6,958) (179)
Dividends income received 11,055,712 6,379,013 10,154,697 2,345,315
Dividends paid 11,329 2,161 76,639 (195)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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Statement of cash flows (continued)

AMUNDI S&P GLOBAL

AMUNDI S&P GLOBAL

AMUNDI S&P GLOBAL AMUNDI S&P GLOBAL INDUSTRIALS ESG INDUSTRIALS ESG
HEALTH CARE ESG UCITS ETF HEALTH CARE ESG UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF
31 December 2024 31 December 2023 31 December 2024 31 December 2023
EUR EUR EUR EUR
Cashflows from operating activities
(Decrease)/increase in assets attributable to holders of
redeemable participating shares 13,253,244 3,096,824 39,313,225 19,517,854
Adjustment for:
Dividend income (4,760,657) (1,811,068) (4,984,957) (2,326,355)
Distributions to holders of redeemable shares 65,738 688 43,295 7,010
Interest income (28,810) (2,250) (14,932) (7,060)
Interest expense 1,006 230 750 1,536
Withholding taxes 732,415 279,385 555,555 278,065
Capital gains taxes - - - -
Change in financial assets and liabilities:
Decrease/(increase) in financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss (145,971,877) (21,743,610) (201,425,239) (43,669,215)
Increase/(decrease) in financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss 9,067 (2,699) 26,737 (1,046)
Decrease/(increase) in due from brokers (5,631) (6,465) (112,618) (45,838)
Increase/(decrease) in due to brokers - - - -
Increase/(decrease) in payables for securities purchased 4,337,371 - 5,345,127 (30,243)
(Increase)/decrease in receivables for securities sold (1,932,013) - (4,007,017) 30,536
(Decrease)/increase dividends payable 10,487 1,638 21,425 9,803
(Decrease)/increase cash collateral pledged - - - -
(Decrease)/increase in accrued management and administration
fees payable 9,035 12,687 12,156 13,022
Decrease/(increase) in other assets (25,017) (10,359) (32,130) (32,716)
(Decrease)/increase in other liabilities 20,618 3,953 13,373 5,129
Dividend income received 4,687,026 1,792,300 4,787,786 2,256,989
Interest income received 28,810 2,250 14,932 7,060
Interest paid (1,006) (230) (750) (1,536)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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Statement of cash flows (continued)

AMUNDI S&P GLOBAL HEALTH

AMUNDI S&P GLOBAL

AMUNDI S&P GLOBAL

AMUNDI S&P GLOBAL

CARE ESG HEALTH CARE ESG INDUSTRIALS ESG INDUSTRIALS ESG
UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF
31 December 2024 31 December 2023 31 December 2024 31 December 2023
EUR EUR EUR EUR
Capital gains Tax paid - - - -
Withholding tax paid (732,415) (279,385) (555,555) (278,065)
Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities (130,302,609) (18,666,111) (160,998,837) (24,265,070)
Cashflows from financing activities
Distributions paid to holders of redeemable shares (65,738) (688) (43,295) (7,010)
Proceeds from issuance of redeemable shares 339,731,280 32,687,797 254,107,377 65,680,185
Redemption of redeemable shares (206,934,291) (13,903,091) (91,119,969) (41,311,661)
(Increase)/decrease in due from shareholders - 1,637,760 - -
Increase/(decrease) in due to shareholders 1,355,977 (1,637,760) - -
Net cash (used in)/provided by financing activities 134,087,228 18,784,018 162,944,113 24,361,514
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 3,784,619 117,907 1,945,276 96,444
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the financial year 163,689 45,782 180,384 83,940
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the financial year 3,948,308 163,689 2,125,660 180,384
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the financial year is
comprised of:
Cash at bank 3,948,308 163,689 2,125,660 180,384
Bank overdraft - - - -
Supplementary information:
Interest income received 28,810 2,250 14,932 7,060
Interest expense paid (1,006) (230) (750) (1,536)
Dividends income received 4,687,026 1,792,300 4,787,786 2,256,989
Dividends paid 10,487 950 21,425 2,793

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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Statement of cash flows (continued)

AMUNDI S&P GLOBAL

AMUNDI S&P GLOBAL

AMUNDI S&P GLOBAL

AMUNDI S&P GLOBAL

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY MATERIALS ESG MATERIALS ESG
ESG UCITS ETF ESG UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF
31 December 2024 31 December 2023 31 December 2024 31 December 2023
EUR EUR EUR EUR
Cashflows from operating activities
(Decrease)/increase in assets attributable to holders of
redeemable participating shares 100,629,654 80,584,092 (1,176,687) 7,024,559
Adjustment for:
Dividend income (2,450,479) (1,684,142) (3,162,306) (1,761,334)
Distributions to holders of redeemable shares 157,879 2,588 86,498 6,677
Interest income (12,518) (3,185) (12,716) (1,582)
Interest expense 14 86 1,859 357
Withholding taxes 338,794 232,904 239,217 129,484
Capital gain taxes - - - -
Change in financial assets and liabilities:
Decrease/(increase) in financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss (226,882,874) (41,594,829) (26,403,774) (76,743,765)
Increase/(decrease) in financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss 30,617 (18,723) 13,245 65
Decrease/(increase) in due from brokers (225,976) (145,597) (17,857) (52,955)
Increase/(decrease) in due to brokers - - - -
(Decrease)/increase in payables for securities purchased (1,963,612) 1,963,612 (683,431) 683,431
Decrease/(increase) in receivables for securities sold 957,993 (957,993) 91,668 (91,668)
Increase/(decrease) dividends payable 6,682 (2,694) 1,419 11,295
(Decrease)/increase cash collateral pledged - - - -
(Decrease)/increase in accrued management and administration
fees payable 11,512 23,853 (6,798) 20,062
Decrease/(increase) in other assets (4,714) (12,367) (34,457) (26,451)
Decrease/ (increase) in interest receivable
(Decrease)/increase in other liabilities 11,659 8,187 10,299 3,575
Dividend income received 2,405,750 1,682,083 3,237,327 1,626,331
Interest income received 12,518 3,185 12,716 1,582
Interest paid (14) (86) (1,859) (357)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

64



AMUNDI ETF ICAV
ANNUAL REPORT AND SWISS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

Statement of cash flows (continued)

AMUNDI S&P GLOBAL

AMUNDI S&P GLOBAL

AMUNDI S&P GLOBAL

AMUNDI S&P GLOBAL

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY MATERIALS ESG MATERIALS ESG
ESG UCITS ETF ESG UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF
31 December 2024 31 December 2023 31 December 2024 31 December 2023
EUR EUR EUR EUR
Withholding tax paid (338,794) (232,904) (239,217) (129,484)
Net cash (used in)/provided by operating activities (127,315,909) 39,848,070 (28,044,854) (69,300,178)
Cashflows from financing activities
Distributions paid to holders of redeemable shares (157,879) (2,588) (86,498) (6,677)
Proceeds from issuance of redeemable shares 218,409,802 38,411,699 143,356,234 92,028,469
Redemption of redeemable shares (91,603,217) (77,283,683) (115,699,659) (22,079,313)
Decrease/(increase) in due from shareholders 1,002,869 (1,002,869) - -
Increase/(decrease) in due to shareholders
Net cash provided by/(used in) financing activities 127,651,575 (39,877,441) 27,570,077 69,942,479
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 335,666 (29,371) (474,777) 642,301
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the financial year 127,706 157,077 655,300 12,999
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the financial year 463,372 127,706 180,523 655,300
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the financial year is
comprised of:
Cash at bank 463,372 127,706 180,523 655,300
Supplementary information:
Interest income received 12,518 3,185 12,716 1,582
Interest expense paid (14) (86) (1,859) (357)
Dividends income received 2,405,750 1,682,083 3,237,327 1,626,331
Dividends paid 6,682 (5,282) 1,419 4,618

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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Statement of cash flows (continued)

AMUNDI S&P GLOBAL

AMUNDI S&P GLOBAL

AMUNDI MSCI USA ESG

AMUNDI MSCI USA ESG

UTILITIES ESG UTILITIES ESG LEADERS EXTRA LEADERS EXTRA
UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF
31 December 2024 31 December 2023 31 December 2024 31 December 2023
EUR EUR usb uUsD
Cashflows from operating activities
(Decrease)/increase in assets attributable to holders of
redeemable participating shares 13,169,726 349,457 209,091,989 102,171,214
Adjustment for:
Dividend income (4,527,315) (1,817,158) (12,588,051) (4,679,079)
Distributions to holders of redeemable shares 228,627 6,187 294,369 -
Interest income (21,151) (300) (109,699) (16,204)
Interest expense 2,274 229 - -
Withholding taxes 389,345 163,718 1,796,830 674,388
Capital gain taxes - - - -
Change in financial assets and liabilities:
Decrease/(increase) in financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss (46,870,048) (30,300,451) (232,372,193) (524,754,233)
Increase/(decrease) in financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss 2,542 (491) 180,507 (3,995)
(Increase)/decrease in due from brokers (81,710) 4,641 (1,040,293) (236,303)
Increase/(decrease) in due to brokers - - - -
(Decrease)/increase in payables for securities purchased (164,820) 164,820 - -
Decrease/(increase) in receivables for securities sold - - - -
(Decrease)/increase dividends payable 11,652 6,519 (667) 46,046
(Decrease)/increase cash collateral pledged - - - -
(Decrease)/increase in accrued management and administration
fees payable (154) 10,616 18,406 58,702
Decrease/(increase) in other assets (44,549) (27,766) 170 (170)
(Decrease)/increase in other liabilities 20,754 2,426 37,807 22,487
Dividend income received 4,235,466 1,711,403 12,617,360 4,258,033
Interest income received 21,151 300 109,699 16,204

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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Statement of cash flows (continued)

AMUNDI S&P GLOBAL

AMUNDI S&P GLOBAL

AMUNDI MSCI USA ESG

AMUNDI MSCI USA ESG

UTILITIES ESG UTILITIES ESG LEADERS EXTRA LEADERS EXTRA
UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF
31 December 2024 31 December 2023 31 December 2024 31 December 2023
EUR EUR usb usD
Interest paid (2,274) (229) - -
Withholding tax paid (389,345) (163,718) (1,796,830) (674,388)
Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities (34,019,829) (29,889,797) (23,760,596) (423,117,298)
Cashflows from financing activities
Distributions paid to holders of redeemable shares (228,627) (6,187) (294,369) -
Proceeds from issuance of redeemable shares 287,920,449 42,306,980 815,771,658 619,988,461
Redemption of redeemable shares (253,791,533) (12,116,031) (791,307,115) (193,899,852)
(Increase)/decrease in due from shareholders - - (1,032,480) -
(Decrease)/increase in due to shareholders - - 1,032,497 -
Net cash (used in)/provided by financing activities 33,900,289 30,184,762 24,170,191 426,088,609
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (119,540) 294,965 409,595 2,971,311
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the financial year 329,214 34,249 3,216,908 245,597
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the financial year 209,674 329,214 3,626,503 3,216,908
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the financial year is
comprised of:
Cash at bank 209,674 329,214 3,626,503 3,216,908
Bank overdraft - - - -
Supplementary information:
Interest income received 21,151 300 109,699 16,204
Interest expense paid (2,274) (229) - -
Dividends income received 4,235,466 1,711,403 12,617,360 4,258,033
Dividends paid 11,652 332 (667) 46,046

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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Cashflows from operating activities
(Decrease)/increase in assets attributable to holders of
redeemable participating shares

Adjustment for:

Dividend income

Distributions to holders of redeemable shares

Interest income

Interest expense

Withholding taxes

Capital Gains taxes

Change in financial assets and liabilities:

Decrease/(increase) in financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss

Increase/(decrease) in financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss

Decrease/(increase) in due from brokers

Increase/(decrease) in due to brokers

(Decrease)/increase in payables for securities purchased
(Increase)/ Decrease in receivables for securities sold
(Decrease)/increase in dividends payable

(Decrease)/increase cash collateral pledged

(Decrease)/increase in accrued management and administration
fees payable

Increase in other assets

(Decrease)/increase in other liabilities

Dividend income received
Interest income received
Interest paid

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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Statement of cash flows (continued)

AMUNDI S&P SMALL

AMUNDI S&P SMALL

AMUNDI MSCI WORLD ESG

AMUNDI MSCI WORLD ESG

CAP 600 ESG CAP 600 ESG LEADERS UCITS ETF LEADERS UCITS ETF
UCITS ETF UCITS ETF

31 December 2024 31 December 2023 31 December 2024 31 December 2023

uUsD uUsD usbD uUsD

(423,297) 10,827,974 203,661,119 63,933,802

(3,179,632) (1,335,616) (28,857,381) (4,883,505)

1,135,504 - - -

(19,771) (11,019) (144,843) (15,823)

- - 4,700 5,445

456,422 196,514 3,426,193 595,892

(327,708,004) (91,146,489) (1,556,444,436) (858,161,448)

47,508 - 2,963,418 -

(313,890) (63,549) (2,109,594) (390,184)

- - 4,435,734 998,669

(157,130) - (2,006,766) (997,525)

67,015 18,609 128,606 105,426

- - (1,500,000) -

86,408 44,121 154,178 189,781

(122) - (180,209) (27,409)

15,007 3,395 85,392 44,641

2,732,454 1,210,010 27,803,117 4,116,373

19,771 11,019 144,843 15,823

_ - (4,700) (5,445)
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Statement of cash flows (continued)

AMUNDI S&P SMALL

AMUNDI S&P SMALL

CAP 600 ESG CAP 600 ESG AMUNDI MSCI WORLD ESG AMUNDI MSCI WORLD ESG
UCITS ETF UCITS ETF LEADERS UCITS ETF LEADERS UCITS ETF
31 December 2024 31 December 2023 31 December 2024 31 December 2023
uUsD usD usD uUsD
Withholding tax paid (456,422) (196,514) (3,426,193) (595,892)
Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities (327,698,179) (80,441,545) (1,351,866,822) (795,071,379)
Cashflows from financing activities
Distributions paid to holders of redeemable shares (1,135,504) - - -
Proceeds from issuance of redeemable shares 344,805,702 92,800,160 1,456,480,909 836,234,995
Redemption of redeemable shares (15,585,641) (11,784,604) (101,854,756) (39,760,973)
(Increase)/decrease in due from shareholders - - - -
(Decrease)/increase in due to shareholders - - - -
Net cash (used in)/provided by financing activities 328,084,557 81,015,556 1,354,626,153 796,474,022
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents 386,378 574,011 2,759,331 1,402,643
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the financial year 574,011 - 1,402,643 -
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the financial year 960,389 574,011 4,161,974 1,402,643
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the financial year is
comprised of:
Cash at bank 960,389 574,011 4,161,974 1,402,643
Bank overdraft - -
Supplementary information:
Interest income received 19,771 11,019 144,843 15,823
Interest expense paid - - (4,700) (5,445)
Dividends income received 2,732,454 1,210,010 27,803,117 4,116,373
Dividends Paid 67,015 18,609 128,606 105,426

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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Statement of cash flows (continued)

AMUNDI MSCI USA ESG

AMUNDI MSCI USA ESG

AMUNDI S&P 500 ESG

AMUNDI S&P 500 ESG

LEADERS UCITS ETF LEADERS UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF
31 December 2024 31 December 2023 31 December 2024 31 December 2023
usD usD usD usD
Cashflows from operating activities
(Decrease)/increase) in assets attributable to holders of
redeemable participating shares 259,779,322 180,800,395 973,979,623 297,353,141
Adjustment for:
Dividend income (21,193,953) (10,200,719) (72,614,697) (9,385,822)
Distributions to holders of redeemable shares - - - -
Interest income (292,480) (55,724) (475,975) (58,503)
Interest expense 86,192 1,411 19,884 -
Withholding taxes 2,960,348 1,448,366 10,351,574 1,357,164

Capital Gains taxes

Change in financial assets and liabilities:

Decrease/(increase) in financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss

(Decrease)/increase in financial liabilities at fair value through

1,331,287,427

(2,745,925,971)

(3,276,461,098)

(3,231,758,576)

profit or loss 17,434,712 104,625 21,089,643 614,224
Decrease/(increase) in due from brokers (67,393) (1,408,517) (3,745,892) (2,128,318)
Increase/(decrease) in due to brokers - - - -
(Decrease)/increase in payables for securities purchased - - (994,185) 994,185
Decrease/(increase) in receivables for securities sold - - 999,485 (999,485)
(Decrease)/increase in dividends payable (129,825) 262,634 276,498 418,008
(Decrease)/increase cash collateral pledged (14,680,000) - (14,060,000) -
(Decrease)/increase in accrued management and administration

fees payable (411,957) 521,801 (487,099) 741,189
Decrease/(increase) in other assets (13,162) (34,199) (7,501) (1,387)
(Decrease)/increase in other liabilities 104,670 102,429 213,005 119,988
Dividend income received 22,286,405 8,139,084 70,727,874 6,353,679
Interest income received 292,480 55,724 475,975 58,503
Interest paid (86,192) (1,411) 21,089,643 614,224

Capital gains Tax paid

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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Statement of cash flows (continued)

AMUNDI MSCI USA ESG

AMUNDI MSCI USA ESG

AMUNDI S&P 500 ESG UCITS

AMUNDI S&P 500 ESG

LEADERS UCITS ETF LEADERS UCITS ETF ETF UCITS ETF

31 December 2024 31 December 2023 31 December 2024 31 December 2023

uUsD uUsD usD uUsD

Withholding tax paid (2,960,348) (1,448,366) (19,884) (1,357,164)
Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities 1,594,396,246 (2,567,638,438) (10,351,574) (2,937,679,174)

Cashflows from financing activities

Distributions paid to holders of redeemable shares
Proceeds from issuance of redeemable shares
Redemption of redeemable shares
(Increase)/decrease in due from shareholders
(Decrease)/increase in due to shareholders

Net cash (used in)/provided by financing activities

1,039,780,322
(2,644,043,542)

2,714,139,784
(136,642,193)

4,254,668,908
(1,960,385,257)
1,110,375

3,218,477,224
(267,210,765)
(1,110,375)

(1,604,263,220)

2,577,497,591

2,295,394,026

2,950,156,084

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (9,866,974) 9,859,153 (5,690,318) 12,476,910
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the financial year 9,859,153 - 12,476,910 -
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the financial year (7,821) 9,859,153 6,786,592 12,476,910
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the financial year is

comprised of:

Cash at bank 777,505 9,859,153 6,786,592 12,476,910
Bank overdraft (785,326) - - -
Supplementary information:

Interest income received 292,480 55,724 475,975 58,503
Interest expense paid (86,192) (1,411) (19,884) -
Dividends income received 22,286,405 8,139,084 70,727,874 6,353,679
Dividends Paid (129,825) 262,634 276,498 418,008

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements



Cashflows from operating activities
(Decrease)/increase in assets attributable to holders of
redeemable participating shares

Adjustment for:

Dividend income

Distributions to holders of redeemable shares

Interest income

Interest expense

Withholding taxes

Capital Gains taxes

Change in financial assets and liabilities:

Decrease/(increase) in financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

(Decrease)/increase in financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss

Decrease/(increase) in due from brokers

Increase/(decrease) in due to brokers

(Decrease)/increase in payables for securities purchased
Decrease/(increase) in receivables for securities sold
(Decrease)/increase dividends payable

(Decrease)/increase cash collateral pledged
(Decrease)/increase in accrued management and administration
fees payable

Decrease/(increase) in other assets

Decrease/ (increase) in interest receivable
(Decrease)/increase in other liabilities

Dividend income received
Interest income received

AMUNDI ETF ICAV

ANNUAL REPORT AND SWISS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

Statement of cash flows (continued)

AMUNDI MSCI USA SRI
CLIMATE NET ZERO

AMUNDI MSCI USA SRI
CLIMATE NET ZERO AMBITION

AMUNDI MSCI USA ESG
CLIMATE NET ZERO AMBITION

AMUNDI MSCI USA ESG
CLIMATE NET ZERO AMBITION

AMBITION PAB UCITS ETF PAB UCITS ETF CTB UCITS ETF CTB UCITS ETF
31 December 2024 31 December 2023 31 December 2024 31 December 2023

usD usD usD usD

230,329,721 736,023,658 846,300,589 106,637,605

(46,501,431) (15,987,233) (58,615,873) (3,313,252)

R - 14,658,921 -

(279,114) (21,155) (167,384) (1,955)

20,993 7,624 2,905 4

6,654,556 2,412,607 8,385,643 519,466

4,572,470,299

4,026,199
(3,402,864)
1,192,228
(1,195,153)
(721,241)
(3,030,000)

(1,142,621)
(19,612)

222,793

51,243,414
279,114

(6,042,662,148)

153,932
(2,288,435)

966,780

1,209,620
(109)

194,107

9,638,847
21,155

(3,590,278,478)

270,285
(2,487,246)

139,000

153,965
43,894

175,196

57,223,280
167,384

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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Statement of cash flows (continued)

AMUNDI MSCI USA SRI
CLIMATE NET ZERO AMBITION

AMUNDI MSCI USA SRI
CLIMATE NET ZERO AMBITION

AMUNDI MSCI USA ESG
CLIMATE NET ZERO

AMUNDI MSCI USA ESG
CLIMATE NET ZERO AMBITION

PAB UCITS ETF PAB UCITS ETF AMBITION CTB UCITS ETF CTB UCITS ETF

31 December 2024 31 December 2023 31 December 2024 31 December 2023

uUsD uUsD uUsD uUsD

Interest paid (20,993) (7,624) (2,905) (4)
Withholding tax paid (6,654,556) (2,412,607) (8,385,643) (519,466)

Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities

Cashflows from financing activities
Distributions paid to holders of redeemable shares

4,803,471,732

(5,312,750,981)

(2,732,416,467)

(1,732,534,974)

(14,658,921)

Proceeds from issuance of redeemable shares 393,661,480 5,523,649,671 3,328,633,607 1,787,574,120
Redemption of redeemable shares (5,185,522,074) (218,940,063) (579,708,503) (53,632,154)
Decrease/(increase) in due from shareholders 2,541 - - -
(Decrease)/increase in due to shareholders (9,610,671) 9,610,671 - -

Net cash (used in)/provided by financing activities

(4,801,468,724)

5,314,320,279

2,734,266,183

1,733,941,966

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 2,003,008 1,569,298 1,849,716 1,406,992
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the financial year 1,569,298 - 1,406,992 -
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the financial year 3,572,306 1,569,298 3,256,708 1,406,992
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the financial year is

comprised of:

Cash at bank 3,572,306 1,569,298 3,256,708 1,406,992
Bank overdraft - - - -
Supplementary information:

Interest income received 279,114 21,155 167,384 1,955
Interest expense paid (20,993) (7,624) (2,905) (4)
Dividends income received 51,243,414 9,638,847 57,223,280 707,842
Dividend paid (721,241) 966,780 139,000 414,207

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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Cashflows from operating activities
(Decrease)/increase in assets attributable to holders of
redeemable participating shares

Adjustment for:

Dividend income

Distributions to holders of redeemable shares

Interest income

Interest expense

Withholding taxes

Capital gain taxes

Change in financial assets and liabilities:

Decrease/(increase) in financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss

(Decrease)/increase in financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss

Decrease/(increase) in due from brokers

Increase/(decrease) in due to brokers

(Decrease)/increase in payables for securities purchased
Decrease/(increase) in receivables for securities sold
(Decrease)/increase dividends payable

(Decrease)/increase cash collateral pledged

(Decrease)/increase in accrued management and administration
fees payable

Decrease/(increase) in other assets

(Decrease)/increase in other liabilities

Dividend income received
Interest income received

AMUNDI ETF ICAV
ANNUAL REPORT AND SWISS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

Statement of cash flows (continued)

AMUNDI S&P 500 CLIMATE
NET ZERO AMBITION PAB

AMUNDI S&P 500 CLIMATE
NET ZERO AMBITION PAB

AMUNDI MSCI WORLD ESG
CLIMATE NET ZERO AMBITION

AMUNDI MSCI WORLD ESG
CLIMATE NET ZERO AMBITION

UCITS ETF UCITS ETF CTB UCITS ETF CTB UCITS ETF

31 December 2024 31 December 2023 31 December 2024 31 December 2023
uUsD uUsD uUsD usbD

878,171,663 137,728,981 199,856,396 51,747,338
(54,398,241) (5,060,833) (24,270,674) (1,183,392)
19,876,649 - 18,616 -
(440,489) (4,717) (99,047) -

28,323 - 28,407 -

7,910,372 753,781 3,085,889 193,993

(2,505,858,997)

12,274,062
(5,110,607)
(1,094,206)
1,100,037
17,312

155,340
2,110
100,539

54,232,790
440,489

(2,712,683,387)

138,397
(935,747)
1,094,206

(1,100,037)

433,932

193,707
(2,110)
67,061

2,132,323
4,717

(469,213,131)

193,131
(2,525,754)
(1,020)
(2,580,119)
22,693

98,814
257,963
56,731

23,805,225
99,047

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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Statement of cash flows (continued)

AMUNDI S&P 500 CLIMATE
NET ZERO AMBITION PAB

AMUNDI S&P 500 CLIMATE
NET ZERO AMBITION PAB

AMUNDI MSCI WORLD ESG
CLIMATE NET ZERO AMBITION

AMUNDI MSCI WORLD ESG
CLIMATE NET ZERO AMBITION

UCITS ETF UCITS ETF CTB UCITS ETF CTB UCITS ETF

31 December 2024 31 December 2023 31 December 2024 31 December 2023

uUsD usD usD usD

Interest paid (28,323) - (28,407) -
Capital gains Tax paid - - - -
Withholding tax paid (7,910,372) (753,781) (3,085,889) (193,993)

Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities

Cashflows from financing activities
Distributions paid to holders of redeemable shares
Proceeds from issuance of redeemable shares

(1,600,531,549)

(2,577,993,507)

(274,281,129)

(1,076,653,638)

(19,876,649)
2,187,313,660

2,680,106,447

(18,616)
857,065,853

1,197,466,854

Redemption of redeemable shares (564,081,874) (84,365,902) (580,393,124) (119,639,677)
Decrease/(increase) in due from shareholders 6,993,520 (6,993,520) - -
(Decrease)/increase in due to shareholders (1,085,865) 1,085,865 - -

Net cash (used in)/provided by financing activities 1,609,262,792 2,589,832,890 276,654,113 1,077,827,177
Net (Decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents 8,731,243 11,839,383 2,372,984 1,173,539
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the financial year 11,839,383 - 1,173,539 -
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the financial year 20,570,626 11,839,383 3,546,523 1,173,539
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the financial year is

comprised of:

Cash at bank 20,570,626 11,839,383 3,546,523 1,173,539
Bank overdraft - - - -
Supplementary information:

Interest income received 440,489 4,717 99,047 -
Interest expense paid (28,323) - (28,407) -
Dividends income received 54,232,790 2,132,323 23,805,225 219,845
Dividend paid 17,312 433,932 22,693 163,172

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements



Cashflows from operating activities
(Decrease)/increase in assets attributable to holders of
redeemable participating shares

Adjustment for:

Dividend income

Distributions to holders of redeemable shares

Interest income

Interest expense

Withholding taxes

Capital gains taxes

Change in financial assets and liabilities:

Decrease/(increase) in financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss

(Decrease)/increase in financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss

Decrease/(increase) in due from brokers

Increase/(decrease) in due to brokers

(Decrease)/increase in payables for securities purchased
Decrease/(increase) in receivables for securities sold
(Decrease)/increase dividends payable

(Decrease)/increase cash collateral pledged

(Decrease)/increase in accrued management and administration
fees payable

Decrease/(increase) in other assets

(Decrease)/increase in other liabilities

Dividend income received
Interest income received
Interest paid

AMUNDI ETF ICAV

ANNUAL REPORT AND SWISS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

Statement of cash flows (continued)

AMUNDI MSCI WORLD
CLIMATE NET ZERO

AMUNDI MSCI WORLD
CLIMATE NET ZERO AMBITION

AMUNDI MSCI WORLD SRI
CLIMATE NET ZERO AMBITION

AMUNDI PRIME ALL COUNTRY

AMBITION PAB UCITS ETF PAB UCITS ETF PAB UCITS ETFA WORLD UCITS ETFAA
31 December 2024 31 December 2023 31 December 2024 31 December 2024

uUsD uUsD uUsD usbD

106,259,053 33,601,878 513,049,184 106,191,003

(13,529,406) (624,793) (82,655,343) (17,103,750)

(63,611) - (185,429) (70,635)

16,152 - 69,346 9,628

1,775,336 100,083 10,611,827 2,082,953

- - - 92,716

(954,177,253)

139,812
(492,276)

72,627

(6,466)
295,997
40,607

12,920,772
63,611
(16,152)

(409,775,192)

(550,599)

94,300

102,870
(470,192)
11,430

57,514

(4,177,946,571)

6,565,081
(5,260,642)
(2,599,711)

532,808
(3,560,000)

727,258
(935,201)
216,610

78,226,625
185,429
(69,346)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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(2,127,767,168)

124,176
(1,393,145)
4,713,373
(2,268,972)
289,285

132,825
(101,778)
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70,635
(9,628)
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Statement of cash flows (continued)

AMUNDI MSCI WORLD
CLIMATE NET ZERO

AMUNDI MSCI WORLD
CLIMATE NET ZERO AMBITION

AMUNDI MSCI WORLD SRI
CLIMATE NET ZERO AMBITION

AMUNDI PRIME ALL COUNTRY

AMBITION PAB UCITS ETF PAB UCITS ETF PAB UCITS ETFA WORLD UCITS ETFAA

31 December 2024 31 December 2023 31 December 2024 31 December 2024

uUsD usD usD usD

Capital gains Tax paid - - - (92,716)

Withholding tax paid (1,775,336) (100,083) (10,611,827) (2,082,953)

Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities (848,476,533) (377,552,784) (3,673,639,902) (2,022,062,885)
Cashflows from financing activities

Proceeds from issuance of redeemable shares 982,296,359 942,962,350 6,186,675,485 2,104,122,257

Redemption of redeemable shares (122,867,195) (565,492,614) (2,511,921,898) (78,405,042)
Decrease/(increase) in due from shareholders - - - (1,038,005)
(Decrease)/increase in due to shareholders - - - 1,038,008

Net cash (used in)/provided by financing activities 859,429,164 377,469,736 3,674,753,587 2,025,717,218
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 10,952,631 (83,048) 1,113,685 3,654,333
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the financial year (83,048) - - -
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the financial year 10,869,583 (83,048) 1,113,685 3,654,333
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the financial year is

comprised of:

Cash at bank 10,869,583 - 1,113,685 3,654,333
Bank overdraft - (83,048) - -
Supplementary information:

Interest income received 63,611 - 185,429 70,635
Interest expense paid (16,152) - (69,346) (9,628)
Dividends income received 12,920,772 57,514 78,226,625 15,047,434
Dividend paid 72,627 94,300 532,808 289,285

AThe sub-fund was launched on 2 February 2024.
AAThe sub-fund was launched on 22 February 2024.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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Statement of cash flows (continued)
AMUNDI MSCI USA UCITS

ETFA
31 December 2024
uUsD
Cashflows from operating activities
(Decrease)/increase in assets attributable to holders of
redeemable participating shares 16,092,519
Adjustment for:
Dividend income (1,948,055)
Interest income (17,219)
Interest expense -
Withholding taxes 276,716
Capital gains taxes -
Change in financial assets and liabilities:
Decrease/(increase) in financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss (518,328,206)
(Decrease)/increase in financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss 22,945
Decrease/(increase) in due from brokers (234,748)

Increase/(decrease) in due to brokers -
(Decrease)/increase in payables for securities purchased -
Decrease/(increase) in receivables for securities sold -
(Decrease)/increase dividends payable 37,873
(Decrease)/increase cash collateral pledged -
(Decrease)/increase in accrued management and administration

fees payable 10,742
Decrease/(increase) in other assets -
Decrease/ (increase) in interest receivable -

(Decrease)/increase in other liabilities 11,403
Dividend income received 1,680,540
Interest income received 17,219

Interest paid -

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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Statement of cash flows (continued)
AMUNDI MSCI USA UCITS

ETFA
31 December 2024
usD
Withholding tax paid (276,716)
Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities (502,654,987)
Cashflows from financing activities
Proceeds from issuance of redeemable shares 591,024,149
Redemption of redeemable shares (86,923,153)
Decrease/(increase) in due from shareholders -
(Decrease)/increase in due to shareholders -
Net cash (used in)/provided by financing activities 504,100,996
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 1,446,009
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period -
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the financial year 1,446,009

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the financial year is

comprised of:

Cash at bank 1,446,009
Bank overdraft -

Supplementary information:

Interest income received 17,219
Interest expense paid -
Dividends income received 1,680,540
Dividend paid 37,873

AThe sub-fund was launched on 6 March 2024.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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Notes to the financial statements

1. ThelCAV

Amundi ETF ICAV (the “ICAV”), was authorised on 14 April 2022, as an umbrella fund with segregated
liability between sub-funds registered as an Irish Collective Asset-management Vehicle (“ICAV”) pursuant
to the Irish Collective Asset-management Vehicles Act 2015 (as amended) (the “ICAV Act 2015”) with
registration number C461194. The ICAV was authorised as an undertaking for collective investment in
transferable securities pursuant to the European Communities (Undertakings for Collective Investment in
Transferable Securities) Regulations, 2011 (as amended), (the “UCITS Regulations”) and Central Bank
(Supervision and Enforcement) Act 2013 (Section 48(1) (Undertakings for Collective Investment in
Transferable Securities) Regulations 2019 (the “Central Bank UCITS Regulations”) by the Central Bank on
14 April 2022.

The investment objective of a sub-fund may be to track or replicate the performance of a particular index
(orindices) or strategy through (i) direct investment in some or all of the constituents of the relevant Index
or strategy (assuming that those constituents are eligible assets); (ii) direct investments in eligible assets
that provide indirect exposure to the relevant index or strategy (or the constituents thereof); (iii) financial
derivative instruments (FDI) that provide indirect exposure to the relevant Index or the constituents
thereof; (iv) other eligible access instruments, including Depositary Receipts; or (v) a combination of (i) to
(iv) above.

As at 31 December 2024, the ICAV has 38 sub-funds in operation (2023: 25 sub-funds).

The ICAV appointed Amundi Ireland Limited as Management Company (the “Management Company) and
Amundi Ireland Limited appointed Amundi Asset Management (the “Investment Manager”) to act as
Investment Manager for all of the sub-funds. The administration of the ICAV has been delegated to HSBC
Securities Services (Ireland) DAC (the “Administrator”). The ICAV has appointed HSBC Continental Europe
as the depositary (the “Depository”) responsible for providing depositary services to the ICAV for the
purposes of and in compliance with the UCITS Regulations pursuant to the Depositary Agreement.

2. Basis of presentation

The financial statements of the ICAV and its sub funds are prepared in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”), issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”),
as adopted by the European Union and the ICAV Act 2015 and the UCITS Regulations. These financial
statements are prepared on a historical cost basis except for financials assets and financials liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”) (including financial derivative instruments) which have been
measured at fair value.

The financial statements have been prepared on the going concern basis and are based upon the 31
December 2024 Net Asset Value (the “NAV”), as this was the final business day of the year.

(i) Functional and presentation currency
The majority of each sub-fund’s investments and transactions are denominated in either Euro or US
Dollar. Similarly, subscriptions and redemptions are determined based on the net asset value, and
received and paid in Euro or US Dollar. The functional currency of the sub-funds, which is in each case
is the Euro or US Dollar, is shown in the Statement of financial position of each sub-fund. The ICAV has
also adopted these functional currencies as the presentation currency of each sub-fund.
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2. Basis of presentation (continued)

(ii) Translation and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Foreign currency assets and liabilities are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rate prevailing at the Statement of financial position date.
Foreign exchange gains and losses arising from translation are included in the Statement of
comprehensive income.

(iii) Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates and also requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of
applying the ICAV’s accounting policies.

3. Material accounting policies

The material accounting policies applied in preparation of these financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied, unless otherwise stated.

(a) Financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit and loss

(i)

(ii)

Classification
In accordance with IFRS 9, the ICAV classifies its financial assets and financial liabilities at initial
recognition into the categories of financial assets and financial liabilities discussed below.

In applying that classification, a financial asset or financial liability is considered to be held for trading
if:

e It is acquired or incurred principally for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near term, or

¢ On initial recognition, it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that are managed
together and for which, there is evidence of a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking, or

e |t is a derivative (except for a derivative that is a financial guarantee contract or a designated and
effective hedging instrument).

Recognition and initial measurement

Purchases and sales of financial instruments are accounted for at trade date. Financial instruments
categorised at fair value through profit or loss are measured initially at cost, with transaction costs for
such instruments being recognised directly in the Statement of comprehensive income.

The ICAV recognises financial assets and financial liabilities on the date it commits to purchase the

instruments. From this date any gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of the assets
or liabilities are recognised.
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(a) Financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit and loss (continued)

(i) Subsequent measurement

Subsequent to initial recognition, all instruments classified at fair value through profit or loss are
measured at fair value with changes in the fair value recognised in the Statement of comprehensive
income.

Financial instruments are priced as follows: warrants, equities, bonds and investment funds are priced
at last traded price (or if the last traded price is not available, at the mid-market price) that is most
representative of fair value while futures and options are priced at settlement.

(iv) Impairment of financial assets

(v)

Financial assets that are stated at amortised cost are reviewed at each reporting date to determine
whether there is objective evidence of impairment, mainly by introducing a forward looking expected
loss impairment model. If any such indication exists, an impairment loss is recognised in the Statement
of comprehensive income as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate.
If in a subsequent period the amount of an impairment loss recognised on a financial asset carried at
amortised cost decreases and the decrease can be linked objectively to an event occurring after the
write-down, the write-down is reversed through the Statement of comprehensive income.

Fair value measurement principles

The fair value of financial instruments is based on their quoted market prices at the Statement of
financial position date without any deduction for estimated future selling costs. Financial assets are
priced in line with IFRS 13 ‘Fair Value Measurement’ which allows the use of the traded price that is
most representative of fair value rather than only using current bid prices for financial assets and
asking prices for financial liabilities.

(vi) Derecognition

The ICAV derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
financial asset expire or it transfers the financial asset, and the transfer qualifies for derecognition in
accordance with IFRS 9. The ICAV derecognises a financial liability when the obligation specified in the
contract is discharged, cancelled or expires.

(vii) Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the Statement of
financial position when, and only when, the ICAV has legally enforceable right to offset the amounts
and intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the assets and settle the liability
simultaneously. Income and expense are presented on a net basis for gains or losses from financial
instruments at fair value through profit or loss.
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(a)

Financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit and loss (continued)

(viii) Specific instruments

(b)

(c)

(d)

Futures contracts

Futures contracts are commitments either to purchase or sell a designated financial instrument,
currency, commodity or an index at a specified future date for a specified price and may be settled in
cash or another financial asset. Futures are standardised exchange traded contracts. Initial margin
requirements for futures are met in cash or other instruments, and changes in the future contract
values are settled daily. Futures are measured initially at fair value on the date on which the derivative
contract is entered into and subsequently remeasured at fair value. Futures contracts have little credit
risk because the counterparties are futures exchanges. Any changes in fair value are recognised in the
Statement of comprehensive income.

Warrants

A warrant is a financial instrument which is usually issued along with a bond or preferred stock,
entitling the holder to buy a specific amount of securities at a specific price, usually above the current
market price at the time of issuance, for a specified or unspecified period. The listed warrants are
traded on recognised exchanges and all warrants are valued at fair value. Realised and change in
unrealised gains and losses are recorded in the Statement of comprehensive income.

Forward contracts

Forward contracts are contractual agreements to buy or sell a specified financial instrument at a
specific price and date in the future. Forwards are customised contracts transacted in the OTC market.
The ICAV may enter into forward contracts to manage the currency risk arising from the ICAV’s
investment or anticipated investment in investments denominated in foreign currencies. Forward
contracts may be used for hedging and currency management of both local and foreign currencies.

Transaction costs

Transaction costs are incremental costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, issue or
disposal of a financial asset or liability. An incremental cost is one that would not have occurred if the
entity had not acquired, issued or disposed of the financial instrument. Transaction costs, if any, are
expensed to the Statement of comprehensive income as they are incurred. Transaction costs incurred
during the financial year by each sub-fund are detailed in Note 4(e).

Income

Dividends are recognised as income on the dates that securities are first quoted “ex-dividend” to the
extent information thereon is reasonably available to the sub-funds. Deposit interest is recognised as
income on an accruals basis.

Distributions to redeemable participating shareholders
Distributions to holders of redeemable participating shares are recorded in the Statement of

comprehensive income as finance costs when declared (i.e. the decision has been through the final
required approval stage and cannot be reversed).
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(e)

(f)

(8)

(h)

Expenses
Expenses are recognised in the Statement of comprehensive income on an accruals basis and as the
related services are performed.

NAV per share
The NAV per share of each class of share is calculated by dividing the NAV attributable to that class by
the number of shares in issue for that class.

Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable participating shares

Redeemable participating shares are redeemable at the shareholder’s option and are classified as
financial liabilities. The redeemable participating shares can be redeemed at any time for cash equal
to a proportionate share of the ICAV’s net asset value. The participating shares are carried at the
redemption amount that is payable at the Statement of financial position date if the shareholders
exercised their right to put the share back to the ICAV.

IAS 32 requires puttable financial instruments that meet the definition of a financial liability to be

classified as equity where certain criteria are met. Those criteria include:

- the puttable instruments must entitle the holder to a pro-rata share of net assets;

- the puttable instruments must be the most subordinated class and class features must be
identical;

- there must be no contractual obligations to deliver cash or another financial asset other than the
obligation on the issuer to repurchase; and

- the total expected cash flow from the puttable instrument over its life must be based
substantially on the profit or loss of the issuer.

For the single share class sub-funds, redeemable participating shares are classified as equity as they
represent the most subordinate interest in the ICAV’s net assets and provide holders with a pro-rata
share of those assets on liquidation.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash at bank, bank overdrafts and short-term, highly liquid
investments readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to insignificant risk
of changes in value. As at 31 December 2024, cash balances are held with HSBC Bank Plc.

As at 31 December 2024, the following sub-funds held an overdraft balance:

Subfund: Subfund Currency: Overdraft balance:
Amundi MSCI USA ESG Leaders | USD 785,326
UCITS ETF
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(h) Cash and cash equivalents (continued)

(i)

1)

(k)

U

As at 31 December 2023, Amundi MSCI World Climate Net Zero Ambition PAB UCITS ETF sub-fund
held an overdraft balance of USD 83,048.

Due to/from brokers

Amounts due to/from brokers relates to margin cash and cash collateral which is held by or due to
brokers for open futures contracts and represents the exchange traded futures contracts’ margin
deposits held with brokers. This amount is the minimum deemed by the brokers and counterparties
for collateral requirements and is restricted and reported separately to the unrestricted cash on the
sub-funds’ Statement of financial position.

Broker cash balances (restricted cash) held with Societe Generale SA (2023: Societe Generale SA) at
31 December 2024 amounted to EUR 49,306,775 (2023: EUR 10,122,970). None of these balances are
available for withdrawal. Broker cash balances relate to balances due to/from brokers with respect to
open futures contracts.

Receivable/payable for investments sold/purchased

Payables for securities purchased and receivables for securities sold represent purchases and sales
that have been contracted for but not yet delivered by the end of the financial year. These accounts
are measured at amortised cost and presented in the Statement of financial position as part of other
assets and other liabilities.

Capital gains tax

Realised gains on disposals of assets of the ICAV may be subject to capital gains tax imposed by an
assets' country of origin. Tax on such realised gains is recognised as a tax expense in the Statement of
comprehensive income.

Equalisation

Equalisation is operated in connection with the issue and redemption of shares. It represents the
income element included in the price for the issue and redemption of shares. Equalisation
arrangements are intended to ensure that the income per share is not affected by changes in the
number of shares in issue during the financial year.

The buying/selling price of each share contains an amount called equalisation. This is equivalent to
the net income less expenses accrued in the ICAV at the time of purchase/sale. For distributing sub-
funds, equalisation attributable to subscriptions in the sub-funds form part of the distributions to
those shareholders who subscribed to the sub-funds during the distribution year. The equalisation
element of the distributions is not reported to shareholders separately from the net income
distributed.
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(m) Taxation

Under current law and practice, the ICAV qualifies as an investment undertaking as defined in Section
739B of the Taxes Consolidation Act, 1997, as amended. On that basis it is not chargeable to Irish tax
on its income or capital gains.

However, Irish tax may arise on the happening of a "chargeable event" in the ICAV. A chargeable event
includes any distribution payments to shareholders or any encashment, redemption, cancellation or
transfer of shares, and the holding of shares at the end of each eight-year year beginning with the
acquisition of the shares.

No Irish Tax will arise on the ICAV in respect of chargeable events in respect of:

e A shareholder who is neither Irish resident nor ordinarily resident in Ireland for tax purposes, at
the time of the chargeable event, provided that appropriate valid declarations in accordance with
the provisions of the Taxes Consolidation Act, 1997, as amended, are held by the ICAV.

e Certain exempted Irish resident shareholders who have provided the ICAV with the necessary
signed statutory declarations.

Dividends and capital gains (if any) received on investments made by the ICAV may be subject to taxes
imposed by the country from which the investment income or capital gains are received, and such
taxes may not be recoverable by the ICAV or its shareholders.

Amundi MSCI ACWI SRI PAB UCITS ETF (2023: Amundi MSCI ACWI SRI PAB UCITS ETF) sub-fund had
Brazilian capital gains tax exposure in the financial year ended 31 December 2024.

In December 2021, the Organisation for Economic Co-operation and Development (OECD) released
the Pillar Two model rules (the Global Anti-Base Erosion Proposal, or ‘GIoBE’) to reform international
corporate taxation. Large multinational enterprises within the scope of the rules are required to
calculate their GloBE effective tax rate for each jurisdiction where they operate. They will be liable to
pay a top-up tax for the difference between their GloBE effective tax rate per jurisdiction and the 15%
minimum rate.

The Manager has performed an analysis and based on that assessment the ICAV is excluded from the
Pillar Il process.

The ICAV currently incurs withholding taxes imposed by certain countries on investment income and
capital gains. Such income or gains are recorded gross of withholding taxes in the Statement of
comprehensive income. Withholding taxes are shown as a separate line in the Statement of
comprehensive income.
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4,

(n) New standards, amendments and interpretations effective from 1 January 2024

New or amended standards Impact on financial statements

Non-current Liabilities with Covenants — The application of the Amendment resulted in no

Amendments to IAS 1 significant changes to the ICAV’s financial
statements.

Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback - The application of the Amendment resulted in no

Amendments to IFRS 16 and IAS 1 significant changes to the ICAV’s financial
statements.

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an The application of the Amendment resulted in no

Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture — significant changes to the ICAV’s financial

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 statements.

(o) New standards, amendments and interpretations effective for future reporting financial years that

have not been early adopted.

Below are new standards, amendments to standards and interpretations issued but not yet effective
for annual periods beginning after 1 January 2025 which have not been early adopted in preparing
these financial statements.

Lack of Exchangeability — Amendments to IAS 21
Classification and Measurement of Financial Instruments — Amendments to IFRS 9 and IFRS 7
IFRS 18, ‘Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Statements’

None of these are expected to have a material effect on the ICAV’s financial statements.

Fees and expenses

(a)

The ICAV has a fee structure where, in respect of each of the sub-funds, all of the fees and expenses
(except for taxes on sub-funds, brokerage and bank charges on business transactions, costs of
liguidation or winding up the ICAV or terminating any sub-fund; operational costs and fees associated
with efficient portfolio management that are paid separately out of the assets of the relevant sub-
funds) are paid as one single fee. This is referred to as the “Total Expense Ratio” or “TER” in the
Prospectus and is being disclosed in these financial statements as the “Management fee”.

Management fee

The Management Company is entitled to a management fee paid out of the assets of each sub-
fund/share class, accrued on a daily basis at a rate ranging from 0.04% to 0.10% and paid quarterly in
arrears. The Management Company will pay out of its management fee, the fees of the Investment
Manager and such other service providers as may be determined by the Management Company from
time to time, including distributor and sub-distributors. The Management Company may from time to
time, at its sole discretion and out of its own resources, decide to rebate to shareholders part or all of
its management fee.
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(a) Management fee (continued)

The Management Company is also entitled to an administration fee paid out of the assets of each sub-
fund/share class, accrued on a daily basis at a rate ranging from 0.03% to 0.10% and paid monthly in
arrears. The Management Company will pay out of the administration fee, the following charges and
expenses of the ICAV:

fees of the Depositary, Administrator and the ICAV's secretary;

government, regulatory, registration, listing, local agents and representatives and cross-border
marketing expenses;

costs of providing information to shareholders, such as the costs of creating, translating, printing and
distributing shareholder reports, prospectuses, KIIDs and notices to shareholders;

all fees and expenses incurred in connection with the payment of redemption proceeds and dividends
and with the convening and holding of shareholders’ meetings;

any costs related to the information to shareholders including costs related to the publication of prices
of shares in the financial press and the production of information material;

all other costs associated with operation and distribution, including expenses incurred by the
Management Company, Investment Manager, Depositary, Administrator and all service providers in
the course of discharging their responsibilities to the ICAV;

fees of professional services firms, including the auditors, the ICAV's secretary and legal advisers; and
director fees and expenses to be paid to independent board members for their services on the board
of the ICAV.

The management fee percentages and administration fee percentages, paid to the Management

Company, for each class of shares per annum of the Net Asset Value are as follows.

Share Class Management fee % Administration fee %
2024 2023 2024 2023

Amundi S&P 500 Equal Weight ESG Leaders UCITS ETF

USD (ACC) 0.08 0.08 0.10 0.10

Amundi MSCI World UCITS ETF USD (DIST) 0.08 0.08 0.10 0.10

AMUNDI MSCI ACWI SRI PAB UCITS ETF USD (ACC) 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10

Amundi S&P Global Communication Services ESG UCITS

ETF EUR (ACC) 0.08 0.08 0.10 0.10

Amundi S&P Global Communication Services ESG UCITS

ETF EUR (DIST) 0.08 0.08 0.10 0.10

Amundi S&P Global Consumer Discretionary ESG UCITS

ETF EUR (ACC) 0.08 0.08 0.10 0.10

Amundi S&P Global Consumer Discretionary ESG UCITS

ETF EUR (DIST) 0.08 0.08 0.10 0.10

Amundi S&P Global Consumer Staples ESG UCITS ETF

EUR (ACC) 0.08 0.08 0.10 0.10
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(a) Management fee (continued)

Share Class Management fee %  Administration fee %
Amundi S&P Global Consumer Staples ESG UCITS ETF
EUR (DIST) 0.08  0.08 0.10 0.10
Amundi S&P Global Energy Carbon Reduced UCITS ETF
EUR (ACC) 0.08  0.08 0.10 0.10
Amundi S&P Global Energy Carbon Reduced UCITS ETF
EUR (DIST) 0.08  0.08 0.10 0.10
Amundi S&P Global Financials ESG UCITS ETF EUR (ACC) 0.08 0.08 0.10 0.10
Amundi S&P Global Financials ESG UCITS ETF EUR (DIST) 0.08 0.08 0.10 0.10
Amundi S&P Global Health Care ESG UCITS ETF EUR
(ACC) 0.08 0.08 0.10 0.10
Amundi S&P Global Industrials ESG UCITS ETF EUR (ACC) 0.08 0.08 0.10 0.10
Amundi S&P Global Industrials ESG UCITS ETF EUR
(DIST) 0.08 0.08 0.10 0.10
Amundi S&P Global Information Technology ESG UCITS
ETF EUR (ACC) 0.08 0.08 0.10 0.10
Amundi S&P Global Information Technology ESG UCITS
ETF EUR (DIST) 0.08  0.08 0.10 0.10
Amundi S&P Global Materials ESG UCITS ETF EUR (ACC) 0.08 0.08 0.10 0.10
Amundi S&P Global Materials ESG UCITS ETF EUR (DIST) 0.08 0.08 0.10 0.10
Amundi S&P Global Utilities ESG UCITS ETF EUR (ACC) 0.08 0.08 0.10 0.10
Amundi S&P Global Utilities ESG UCITS ETF EUR (DIST) 0.08 0.08 0.10 0.10
Amundi MSCI USA ESG Leaders Extra UCITS ETF USD
(ACC) 0.05 0.05 0.05 0.05
Amundi S&P Small Cap 600 ESG UCITS ETF USD (DIST) 0.25 0.25 0.10 0.10
Amundi S&P 500 Equal Weight ESG Leaders UCITS ETF
EUR Hedged (ACC) 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10
Amundi MSCI World ESG Leaders UCITS ETF USD (ACC) 0.08 0.08 0.10 0.10
Amundi MSCI USA ESG Leaders UCITS ETF USD (ACC) 0.05 0.05 0.10 0.10
Amundi MSCI USA ESG Leaders UCITS ETF EUR Hedged
(ACC) 0.07 0.07 0.10 0.10
Amundi MSCI USA SRI Climate Net Zero Ambition PAB
UCITS ETF EUR (ACC) 0.08 0.08 0.10 0.10
Amundi MSCI USA SRI Climate Net Zero Ambition PAB
UCITS ETF EUR Hedged (ACC) 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10
Amundi S&P 500 ESG UCITS ETF EUR (ACC) 0.05 0.05 0.10 0.10
Amundi S&P 500 ESG UCITS ETF EUR Hedged (ACC) 0.18 0.18 0.10 0.10
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(a) Management fee (continued)

Share Class Management fee %  Administration fee %
2024 2023 2024 2023

Amundi MSCI USA ESG Climate Net Zero Ambition CTB

UCITS ETF EUR (ACC) 0.03 0.03 0.06 0.06

Amundi MSCI USA ESG Climate Net Zero Ambition CTB

UCITS ETF EUR (DIST) 0.03 0.03 0.06 0.06

Amundi MSCI USA ESG Leaders Extra UCITS ETF USD

(DIST) 0.05 0.05 0.10 0.10

Amundi S&P 500 Climate Net Zero Ambition PAB UCITS

ETF EUR Hedged (ACC) 0.15 0.15 0.10 0.10

Amundi S&P 500 Climate Net Zero Ambition PAB UCITS

ETF USD (ACC) 0.04 0.04 0.06 0.06

Amundi S&P 500 Climate Net Zero Ambition PAB UCITS

ETF USD (DIST) 0.04 0.04 0.06 0.06

Amundi MSCI World Climate Net Zero Ambition PAB

UCITS ETF USD (ACC) 0.15 0.15 0.10 0.10

Amundi MSCI World ESG Climate Net Zero Ambition CTB

UCITS ETF EUR (ACC) 0.15 0.15 0.10 0.10

Amundi MSCI World ESG Climate Net Zero Ambition CTB

UCITS ETF EUR (DIST) 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10

Amundi MSCI World Sri Climate Net Zero Ambition PAB

UCITS ETF EUR (ACC) 0.08 N/A 0.10 N/A

Amundi MSCI World Sri Climate Net Zero Ambition PAB

UCITS ETF EUR Hedged (ACC) 0.10 N/A 0.10 N/A

Amundi MSCI World UCITS ETF USD (ACC) 0.08 N/A 0.10 N/A

Amundi MSCI World Sri Climate Net Zero Ambition PAB

UCITS ETF USD (DIST) 0.08 N/A 0.10 N/A

Amundi Prime All Country World UCITS ETF USD (ACC) 0.03 N/A 0.04 N/A

Amundi MSCI USA UCITS ETF USD (ACC) 0.03 N/A 0.02 N/A

Amundi MSCI USA UCITS ETF USD (DIST) 0.03 N/A 0.02 N/A

Amundi MSCI World ESG Leaders UCITS ETF EUR Hedged

(ACC) 0.10 N/A 0.10 N/A

Amundi Prime All Country World UCITS ETF USD (DIST) 0.03 N/A 0.04 N/A

Amundi MSCI USA ESG Leaders Extra UCITS ETF EUR

Hedged (ACC) 0.07 N/A 0.10 N/A

The fees paid to the Management Company for the financial year amounted to EUR 48,353,463 (2023:
EUR 7,669,069) of which EUR 4,633,814 (2023: EUR 4,232,586) was payable at the financial year end.
There are no management fee rebates during the financial year for any of the sub-funds.

Fees paid to the administrator for the financial year amounted to EUR 872,750 (2023: EUR 65,416) of
which EUR 320,427 (2023: EUR 49,733) was payable at the financial year end. Fees paid to the
Depositary for the financial year amounted to EUR 1,693,351 (2023: EUR 393,124) of which EUR
1,693,351 (2023: EUR 141,977) was payable at the financial year end.
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(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Directors’ fee

Unless and until otherwise determined from time to time by the ICAV in a general meeting, the
ordinary remuneration of each Director shall be determined from time to time by resolution of the
Directors. Any Director who holds any executive office (including for this purpose the office of
chairman or deputy chairman), or who otherwise performs services which in the opinion of the
Directors are outside the scope of the ordinary duties of a Director, may be paid such extra
remuneration by way of salary, commission or otherwise as the Directors may determine. The
Directors may be paid all travelling, hotel and other out-of-pocket expenses properly incurred by them
in connection with their attendance at meetings of the Directors or general meetings or separate
meetings of the holders of any class of the ICAV or otherwise in connection with the discharge of their
duties.

The Directors’ fees which are paid out of the Administration fee for the financial year ended 31
December 2024 amounted to EUR 40,000 (2023: EUR 40,000).

Auditor’s fee

Fees for the statutory auditors, PwC, in respect of the financial year ended 31 December 2024, relate
entirely to the audit of the financial statements of the ICAV. Auditors’ fees for the financial year end
amounted to EUR 212,230 (2023: EUR 135,375) excluding VAT. All payments for the statutory auditor
are met from the Administration fee detailed above and levied by the Management Company.

There was no other assurance service rendered during the financial year.and audit fee paid for the
financial year amounted to EUR Nil (2023: EUR 3,500). There were no other non-audit services
provided by the statutory auditor during the financial year.

Setup costs

The cost of establishing the ICAV and the initial sub-funds and the expenses of the initial offer of shares
in the sub-funds, the preparation and printing of the initial prospectus, marketing costs and the fees
of all professionals relating to it will be borne by the Management Company.

Transaction costs

The table below provides an analysis of the total transaction costs on the purchase and sale of
transferable securities such as equities and derivative instruments for each of the ICAV’s sub-funds.

Sub-Funds 31 December 31 December

2024 2023
Amundi S&P 500 Equal Weight ESG Leaders UCITS ETF USD 331,763 USD 140,485
Amundi MSCI World UCITS ETF USD 508,368 uUsD 74,211
Amundi MSCI ACWI SRI PAB UCITS ETF USD 19,258 usD 32,814
Amundi S&P Global Communication Services ESG UCITS ETF EUR 165,940 EUR 27,314
Amundi S&P Global Consumer Discretionary ESG UCITS ETF EUR 121,306 EUR 62,319
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Fees and expenses (continued)

e) Transaction costs (continued)

Sub-Funds 31 December 31 December
2024 2023
Amundi S&P Global Consumer Staples ESG UCITS ETF EUR 227,862 EUR 155,063
Amundi S&P Global Energy Carbon Reduced UCITS ETF EUR 260,637 EUR 368,659
Amundi S&P Global Financials ESG UCITS ETF EUR 428,851 EUR 23,885
Amundi S&P Global Health Care ESG UCITS ETF EUR 184,118 EUR 20,712
Amundi S&P Global Industrials ESG UCITS ETF EUR 156,250 EUR 41,184
Amundi S&P Global Information Technology ESG UCITS ETF EUR 35,846 EUR 12,818
Amundi S&P Global Materials ESG UCITS ETF EUR 145,999 EUR 89,351
Amundi S&P Global Utilities ESG UCITS ETF EUR 404,993 EUR 61,080
Amundi MSCI USA ESG Leaders Extra UCITS ETF USD 154,774 USD 55,502
Amundi S&P Small Cap 600 ESG UCITS ETF USD 28,296 usD 3,410
Amundi MSCI World ESG Leaders UCITS ETF USD 640,584 USD 225,367
Amundi MSCI USA ESG Leaders UCITS ETF UsD 221,237 UsD 69,492
Amundi S&P 500 ESG UCITS ETF USD 384,371 USD 83,494
Amundi MSCI USA SRI Climate Net Zero Ambition PAB
UCITS ETF USD 390,766 USD 29,528
Amundi MSCI USA ESG Climate Net Zero Ambition CTB
UCITS ETF USD 204,989 USD 22,556
Amundi S&P 500 Climate Net Zero Ambition PAB UCITS ETF USD 261,868 UsD 14,800
Amundi MSCI World ESG Climate Net Zero Ambition CTB
UCITS ETF USD 313,201 UsD 173,509
Amundi MSCI World Climate Net Zero Ambition PAB
UCITS ETF USD 346,196 UsSD 187,050
Amundi MSCI World SRI Climate Net Zero Ambition PAB
UCITS ETFA usD 427,513 N/A
Amundi MSCI USA UCITS ETFAAA USD 43,984 N/A

AThe sub-fund was launched on 2 February 2024.
AThe sub-fund was launched on 22 February 2024.
AMThe sub-fund was launched on 6 March 2024.

5. Risks associated with financial instruments
(a) Market risk
The ICAV’s investment activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including price risk,
currency risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The ICAV’s overall risk management

process focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to mitigate potential adverse effects
on the ICAV’s financial performance.
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5. Risks associated with financial instruments (continued)
(a) Market risk (continued)

Market risk arises mainly from uncertainty about future values of financial instruments influenced by
currency, interest rate and price movements. It represents the potential loss each sub-fund may suffer
through holding market positions in the face of market movements. The sub-funds are exposed to market
risk by virtue of their investments in equities and derivatives.

A key metric used by ICAV to measure market risk is Value-at-Risk (“VaR”) which encompasses currency,
interest rate and price risk. VaR is a statistical risk measure that estimates the potential portfolio loss from
adverse market movements in an ordinary market environment. VaR analysis reflects the
interdependencies between risk variables, unlike a traditional sensitivity analysis.

The VaR calculations are based on a model with a confidence level of 95%, a holding period of one week
and a historical observation period of not less than one year (250 days). A VaR number is defined at a
specified probability and a specified time horizon. A 95% one day VaR means that the expectation is that
95% of the time over a one-day period each Fund will lose no more than this number in percentage terms.
Therefore, higher VaR numbers indicate higher risk.

The table below shows the one week VaR values for each sub-fund, as at 31 December 2024 and 31
December 2023.

Sub-Funds 95% 95%
weekly VaR weekly VaR
31 December 31 December
Launch date 2024 2023
Amundi S&P 500 Equal Weight ESG Leaders
UCITS ETF 24 May 2022 2.86% 2.84%
Amundi MSCI World UCITS ETF 9 June 2022 2.45% 2.63%
Amundi MSCI ACWI SRI PAB UCITS ETF 21 July 2022 2.93% 3.25%
Amundi S&P Global Communication Services
ESG UCITS ETF 20 September 2022 3.43% 3.89%
Amundi S&P Global Consumer Discretionary
ESG UCITS ETF 20 September 2022 3.66% 4.18%
Amundi S&P Global Consumer Staples ESG
UCITS ETF 20 September 2022 2.03% 2.34%
Amundi S&P Global Energy Carbon Reduced
UCITS ETF 20 September 2022 3.23% 4.47%
Amundi S&P Global Financials ESG UCITS ETF 20 September 2022 2.08% 3.53%
Amundi S&P Global Health Care ESG UCITS
ETF 20 September 2022 2.78% 3.32%
Amundi S&P Global Industrials ESG UCITS ETF 20 September 2022 3.14% 3.44%
Amundi S&P Global Information Technology
ESG UCITS ETF 20 September 2022 5.66% 3.63%
Amundi S&P Global Materials ESG UCITS ETF 20 September 2022 3.09% 3.53%
Amundi S&P Global Utilities ESG UCITS ETF 20 September 2022 2.72% 2.61%
Amundi MSCI USA ESG Leaders Extra UCITS
ETF 3 November 2022 2.51% 2.79%
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5. Risks associated with financial instruments (continued)

(a) Market risk (continued)

Sub-Funds 95% 95%
weekly VaR weekly VaR
31 December 31 December
Launch date 2024 2023
Amundi S&P Global Information Technology ESG
UCITS ETF 20 September 2022 5.66% 3.63%
Amundi S&P Global Materials ESG UCITS ETF 20 September 2022 3.09% 3.53%
Amundi S&P Global Utilities ESG UCITS ETF 20 September 2022 2.72% 2.61%
Amundi MSCI USA ESG Leaders Extra UCITS ETF 3 November 2022 2.51% 2.79%
Amundi S&P Small Cap 600 ESG UCITS ETF 19 January 2023 4.72% N/A*
Amundi MSCI World ESG Leaders UCITS ETF 6 July 2023 2.90% N/A*
Amundi MSCI USA ESG Leaders UCITS ET 14 September 2023 2.79% N/A*
Amundi S&P 500 ESG UCITS ETF 17 October 2023 2.58% N/A*
Amundi MSCI USA SRI Climate Net Zero
Ambition PAB UCITS ETF 9 November 2023 2.70% N/A*
Amundi MSCI USA ESG Climate Net Zero
Ambition CTB UCITS ETF 16 November 2023 2.73% N/A*
Amundi S&P 500 Climate Net Zero Ambition PAB
UCITS ETF 22 November 2023 2.37% N/A*
Amundi MSCI World ESG Climate Net Zero
Ambition CTB UCITS ETF 4 December 2023 2.91% N/A*
Amundi MSCI World Climate Net Zero Ambition
PAB UCITS ETF 4 December 2023 2.41% N/A*
Amundi MSCI World SRI Climate Net Zero
Ambition PAB UCITS ETF 2 February 2024 N/A* N/A*
Amundi Prime All Country World UCITS ETF 22 February 2024 N/A* N/A*
Amundi MSCI USA UCITS ETF 6 March 2024 N/A* N/A*

*For periods of less than one-year history no ex post VaR is provided as the calculation requires a historical
observation period of not less than one year (250 days).

(i) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate

because of changes in market interest rates.

The majority of the ICAV’s financial assets and liabilities are non-interest bearing. Interest bearing
financial assets and liabilities include cash at bank which matures or reprices in the short-term, no longer

than 3 months.

(ii) Currency risk

Foreign exchange risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument fluctuates as a result of changes

in foreign exchange rates.
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5. Risks associated with financial instruments (continued)
(a) Market risk (continued)
(iii) Currency risk

The ICAV is exposed to foreign exchange risk primarily from its assets and liabilities that derive their
revenues and/or incur expenses in currencies other

The following sets out the total exposure of the other sub-funds’ foreign currency risk as at 31 December
2024 and 31 December 2023. The sub-funds sensitivity to changes in foreign exchange rates is included
in the value at risk amounts included above

Foreign exchange risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument fluctuates as a result of changes
in foreign exchange rates.

The ICAV is exposed to foreign exchange risk primarily from its assets and liabilities that derive their
revenues and/or incur expenses in currencies other than the functional currency.

The following sets out the total exposure of the other sub-funds’ foreign currency risk as at 31 December
2024 and 31 December 2023. The sub-funds sensitivity to changes in foreign exchange rates is included

in the value at risk amounts included above

Amundi S&P 500 Equal Weight ESG Leaders UCITS ETF

Non-monetary Non-monetary
Monetary items Monetary items items items
Local 31 December 2024 31 December 31 December 31 December
Currency 2023 2024 2023
usb usD usD usD

Assets
EUR 537,210 195,348 43,933 -
Total 537,210 195,348 43,933 -

There are no financial liabilities in other currencies as at 31 December 2024 and 2023.
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5. Risks associated with financial instruments (continued)

(a) Market risk (continued)

(i)

Currency risk (continued)

Amundi MSCI World UCITS ETF

Non-monetary

Non-monetary

Monetary items Monetary items items items
Local 31 December 31 December 31 December 2024 31 December
Currency 2024 2023 2023
usbD usD usD usD
Assets
AUD 17,363 45,160 61,057,446 3,677,148
CAD (10,207) 3,844 109,184,798 5,822,055
CHF 6,882 2,319 80,691,518 4,911,692
DKK 588 4,334 24,923,938 1,647,161
EUR 12,352 9,328 274,089,049 16,181,431
GBP 3,221 128,685 122,902,660 7,133,265
HKD 22,102 397 14,288,064 903,161
ILS 2,508 1,301 3,396,701 170,492
JPY 1,443 31,454 194,904,394 10,976,053
NOK 735 3,791 5,510,323 349,034
NzZD 5,147 297 2,469,639 113,809
SEK (879) 422 26,879,292 1,733,004
SGD 49 4,683 10,600,031 537,520
Total 61,304 236,015 930,897,853 54,155,825
Liabilities
AUD - - - (1,146)
CAD - - (82,428) (4,005)
EUR - - (4) (4)
GBP - - (921) (141)
JPY - - (37,796) (2,265)
SEK - - - -
Total - - (121,149) (7,561)
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5. Risks associated with financial instruments (continued)

(a) Market risk (continued)

(ii) Currency risk (continued)

Amundi MSCI ACWI SRI PAB UCITS ETF

Monetary items

Monetary items

Non-monetary

items

Non-monetary

items

Local 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
Currency 2024 2023 2024 2023
uUsD uUsD uUsD uUsD
Assets
AUD 1604 4,610 1,028,182 1,462,785
AED - - 206,672 173,018
BRL 1,039 791 301,187 372,235
CAD 6,927 1,555 2,790,590 3,022,275
CHF 1,473 2,187 1,717,150 1,334,678
CLP - 130 - 13,987
CNY - - 268,735 239,599
cop - - 71,144 55,824
CzZK 157 171 - -
DKK 696 1,914 1,343,855 2,257,760
EUR 594 879 6,061,875 7,084,192
GBP 442 3,918 1,082,811 1,589,869
HKD 5,445 2,124 1,930,337 2,020,760
HUF 246 473 45,918 38,312
IDR - - 43,949 165,921
ILS 532 539 - -
INR 90 - 1,300,290 1,076,382
JPY 3,505 6,475 4,612,073 4,602,146
KRW - - 430,155 542,042
MXN 7,502 4,441 214,477 476,334
MYR 1 1 198,360 183,301
NOK 2,050 923 237,559 288,740
NzZD 756 125 75,355 156,033
PLN 422 260 36,534 32,730
PHP - - 51,130 82,287
QAR - - 137,271 121,237
SAR - - - -
SEK 1,684 712 164,590 242,562
SGD 559 832 337,832 457,385
THB - - 241,316 482,634
TRY 255 4,490 13,292 25,014
TWD 380,988 51,929 4,354,897 2,608,023
ZAR 4,863 46,663 509,038 567,310
Total 421,830 136,142 29,806,574 31,775,375
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(a) Market risk (continued)

(ii) Currency risk (continued)

5. Risks associated with financial instruments (continued)

Amundi MSCI ACWI SRI PAB UCITS ETF (continued)

Non-monetary

Non-monetary

Monetary items Monetary items items items
Local Currency 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2024 2023 2024 2023
usD usD usD usD

Liabilities
AUD - - (411) (4,424)
AED - - - -
BRL - - (1,110) (4,394)
CAD - - - (1,962)
cop - - - -
EUR - - - -
GBP - - - -
HKD - - - -
IDR - . . (122)
INR - - (15,179) (9,258)
JPY - - (467) (403)
KRW - - (58) (1,821)
MYR - - - -
NOK - - - -
THB - - (196) (94)
TWD - - (3,126) (2,381)
Total - - (20,547) (24,859)

Amundi S&P Global Communication Services ESG UCITS ETF

Non-monetary

Non-monetary

Monetary items Monetary items items items
Local Currency 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2024 2023 2024 2023
EUR EUR EUR EUR

Assets
AUD 30,512 1,524 4,138,810 1,086,519
CAD 15,512 12,055 8,201,963 2,246,172
CHF 26,914 7,822 4,630,926 1,338,842
GBP 15,454 12,245 10,631,797 4,329,968
JPY 3,023,490 16,724 47,392,068 8,349,854
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5. Risks associated with financial instruments (continued)

(a) Market risk (continued)

(ii) Currency risk (continued)

Amundi S&P Global Communication Services ESG UCITS ETF (continued)

Non-monetary

Non-monetary

Monetary items Monetary items items items
Local Currency 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 2023
2024 2023 2024
EUR EUR EUR EUR
Assets
NOK 110,115 15,382 1,650,129 575,819
NZD 14,036 1,856 873,970 40,548
SEK 231,235 1,137 3,595,287 604,691
usD 397,570 73,244 193,829,626 77,647,767
Total 3,864,838 141,989 274,944,576 96,220,180
Liabilities
CAD - - (34,568) (9,882)
JPY - - (2,914,545) (805)
NOK - - (98,063) -
SEK - - (219,231) -
usD - - (54,503) (4,734)
Total - - (3,320,910) (15,421)

Amundi S&P Global Consumer Discretionary ESG UCITS ETF

Non-monetary

Non-monetary

Monetary items Monetary items items items
Local Currency 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 2023
2024 2023 2024

EUR EUR EUR EUR

Assets
AUD 39,160 6,320 4,368,889 2,087,248
CAD 14,624 6,272 2,768,769 1,755,961
CHF 1,109 2,016 - 158,584
GBP 16,362 5,220 5,862,031 4,439,701
HKD 10,448 5,059 1,251,569 542,699
JPY 17,709 23,250 49,896,081 23,619,883
SEK 25,449 5,736 1,319,977 539,298
SGD 8,630 3,756 138,906 131,559
usb - 26,765 258,828,180 125,881,365
Total 133,491 84,394 324,434,402 159,156,298
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5. Risks associated with financial instruments (continued)

(a) Market risk (continued)

(ii) Currency risk (continued)

Amundi S&P Global Consumer Discretionary ESG UCITS ETF (continued)

Non-monetary

Non-monetary

Monetary items Monetary items items items
Local Currency 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2024 2023 2024 2023
EUR EUR EUR EUR

Liabilities
CAD - - (29) (24)
GBP - - (11,777) -
JPY - - (3,189,233) (2,847)
SEK - - (100,274) -
usD - - (41,546) (5,616)
Total - - (3,342,859) (8,487)

Amundi S&P Global Consumer Staples ESG UCITS ETF

Non-monetary

Non-monetary

Monetary items Monetary items items items
Local Currency 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2024 2023 2024 2023
EUR EUR EUR EUR

Assets
AUD 6,219 7,344 899,646 1,815,579
CAD 10,302 16,689 1,091,424 1,301,878
CHF 9,034 5,723 15,045,160 16,888,926
DKK 7,460 5,430 338,300 246,728
GBP 87,100 10,224 34,587,361 20,878,541
HKD 9,852 3,312 134,832 180,849
ILS 1,576 - 24,400 -
JPY 5,575 5,263 13,767,339 7,550,296
NOK 3,433 6,695 1,142,439 793,230
NZD 7,643 9,343 - 34,518
SEK 1,409 3,229 54,975 436,901
usb 209,804 9,677 119,899,784 97,841,457
Total 359,407 82,929 186,985,660 147,968,903
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5. Risks associated with financial instruments (continued)

(a) Market risk (continued)

(ii) Currency risk (continued)

Amundi S&P Global Consumer Staples ESG UCITS ETF (continued)

Non-monetary

Non-monetary

Monetary items Monetary items items items
Local Currency 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2024 2023 2024 2023
EUR EUR EUR EUR

Liabilities
CAD - - (129) (837)
JPY - - (8,975) (6,126)
usD - - (50,467) (60,799)
Total . - (59,571) (67,762)

Amundi S&P Global Energy Carbon Reduced UCITS ETF

Non-monetary

Non-monetary

Monetary items Monetary items items items
Local Currency 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2024 2023 2024 2023
EUR EUR EUR EUR
Assets
AUD 8,738 6,607 9,197,662 11,270,289
CAD 13,923 3,915,123 32,003,826 33,010,738
DKK 5,003 - - -
GBP 23,013 (195,048) 26,870,975 29,448,707
JPY 5,071 5,106 963,389 892,806
NOK 4 3,598 1,190,586 12,020,925
usb 242,355 764,244 105,128,068 136,085,341
Total 298,107 4,499,630 175,354,506 222,728,806
Liabilities
CAD - - (22,114) (11,169)
JPY - - (2,957) (2,573)
usD - - (609,322) -
Total - - (634,393) (13,742)
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5. Risks associated with financial instruments (continued)

(a) Market risk (continued)

(ii) Currency risk (continued)

Amundi S&P Global Financials ESG UCITS ETF

Non-monetary

Non-monetary

Monetary items Monetary items items items
Local Currency 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2024 2023 2024 2023
EUR EUR EUR EUR
Assets
AUD (5,008) 6,828 29,453,284 4,627,432
CAD (46,682) 4,139 42,155,786 6,430,532
CHF 6,344 3,229 18,287,356 3,113,577
DKK 13,010 3,651 1,461,284 231,633
GBP 14,145 68,604 30,257,896 4,629,560
HKD 125,768 4,471 8,640,209 1,583,590
ILS 3,853 2,807 2,994,689 283,658
JPY 5,327 6,487 38,473,091 5,189,544
NOK 61,695 2,533 1,661,056 314,385
SEK 24,985 2,769 9,752,827 1,893,631
SGD 7,780 2,863 8,949,376 1,161,129
usb 270,520 16,648 299,454,970 43,254,705
Total 481,737 125,029 491,541,824 72,713,376
Liabilities
AUD - - - -
CAD - - (43,574) (4,337)
ILS - - (168) -
usb - - (68,191) (9,793)
Total - - (111,933) (14,130)

102



5.

AMUNDI ETF ICAV
ANNUAL REPORT AND SWISS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Risks associated with financial instruments (continued)

(a) Market risk (continued)

(ii) Currency risk (continued)

Amundi S&P Global Health Care ESG UCITS ETF

Non-monetary

Non-monetary

Monetary items Monetary items items items
Local Currency 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2024 2023 2024 2023
EUR EUR EUR EUR
Assets
AUD 23,714 3,649 2,986,035 1,515,534
CHF 141,406 15,174 24,800,716 8,635,980
DKK 59,995 8,109 11,154,558 6,046,527
GBP 72,742 9,184 12,763,698 5,641,129
JPY 5,174 4,925 12,863,236 5,162,707
NZD 8,507 4,316 510,077 185,516
SEK 7,927 5,536 305,336 153,272
usD 105,621 101,693 171,601,157 68,289,976
Total 425,086 152,586 236,984,813 95,630,641
Liabilities
AUD - - (87,584) -
CHF - - (814,344) -
DKK - - (370,444) -
JPY - - (432,568) (962)
GBP - - (410,501) -
NzZD - - (25,161) -
SEK - - (25,358) -
usb - - (17,871) (6,203)
Total - - (2,183,831) (7,165)
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Risks associated with financial instruments (continued)

(a) Market risk (continued)

(ii) Currency risk (continued)

Amundi S&P Global Industrials ESG UCITS ETF

Non-monetary

Non-monetary

Monetary items Monetary items items items
Local Currency 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2024 2023 2024 2023
EUR EUR EUR EUR
Assets

AUD 38,553 17,866 5,564,055 2,195,540
CAD 47,320 15,888 18,108,158 6,873,163
CHF 2,407 4,619 11,077,998 4,312,914
DKK 14,700 2,784 4,681,999 2,083,201
GBP 30,792 6,537 15,004,957 5,954,798
HKD 296,162 4,239 2,067,533 919,230
ILS 1,810 1,717 - -
JPY 9,379 15,261 53,605,032 23,769,039
NOK 95,481 5,386 207,568 112,369
NZD 12,978 4,250 793,624 276,473
SEK 18,252 6,201 14,796,932 7,102,032
SGD 4,830 4,875 917,545 331,757
usD 120,769 80,904 158,373,183 61,352,980
Total 693,433 170,527 285,198,584 115,283,496

Liabilities
AUD - - - (6,177)
CAD - - (60,833) (1,558)
DKK - - (374,033) -
HKD - - (285,720) -
JPY - - (1,909,207) (3,446)
NOK - - (87,510) -
SEK - - (1,093,605) -
usb - - (149,834) (15,245)
Total - - (3,960,742) (26,426)
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Risks associated with financial instruments (continued)

(a) Market risk (continued)

(ii) Currency risk (continued)

Amundi S&P Global Information Technology ESG UCITS ETF

Non-monetary

Non-monetary

Monetary items  Monetary items items items
Local Currency 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2024 2023 2024 2023
EUR EUR EUR EUR
Assets

AUD 4,011 2,374 421,244 168,113
CAD 5,037 2,399 1,858,321 522,080
GBP 4,534 2,681 402,265 377,523
HKD 2,250 2,098 - -
ILS 3,493 2,039 23,544 261,562
JPY 105,599 24,629 15,936,668 9,010,741
NOK 7,421 5,774 - 47,206
SEK 6,819 131 987,843 516,286
usb 296,566 12,064 381,598,715 185,952,166
Total 435,730 54,189 401,228,600 196,855,677

Liabilities
AUD - - - (21,949)
JPY - - (2,777) (23,849)
usb - - (39,244) (886,678)
Total - - (42,021) (932,476)
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

5. Risks associated with financial instruments (continued)

(a) Market risk (continued)
(ii) Currency risk (continued)

Amundi S&P Global Materials ESG UCITS ETF

Non-monetary

Non-monetary

Monetary items Monetary items items items
Local Currency 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2024 2023 2024 2023
EUR EUR EUR EUR
Assets
AUD 7,798 12,484 12,026,811 11,122,702
CAD 2,702 83,170 8,653,272 5,509,890
CHF 5,212 4,626 5,355,137 3,933,563
DKK 3,274 3,399 1,145,173 807,016
GBP 5,056 101,725 11,228,039 11,243,784
ILS 1,852 1,756 - -
JPY 13,182 24,037 10,043,506 8,276,061
NOK 6,370 3,817 375,086 639,771
SEK 9,864 3,362 1,002,669 1,068,523
usb 80,739 413,892 55,105,368 36,797,790
Total 136,049 652,268 104,935,061 79,399,100
Liabilities
CAD - - (817) (469)
GBP - - (10,299) -
JPY - - (1,472) (1,303)
usD - - (22,745) (11,278)
Total - - (35,333) (13,050)

106



AMUNDI ETF ICAV
ANNUAL REPORT AND SWISS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

5. Risks associated with financial instruments (continued)

(a) Market risk (continued)
(ii) Currency risk (continued)

Amundi S&P Global Utilities ESG UCITS ETF

Non-monetary

Non-monetary

Monetary items Monetary items items items
Local Currency 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2024 2023 2024 2023
EUR EUR EUR EUR
Assets

AUD 3,903 4,563 809,046 559,555
CAD (36,036) 61,999 4,826,752 3,437,781
DKK 7,038 6,820 1,148,868 771,979
GBP 9,046 123,824 14,837,623 7,693,299
HKD 6,398 6,582 2,575,997 1,636,636
ILS 4,077 2,761 - 74,667
JPY 4,585 6,506 3,508,787 1,351,667
NZD 7,886 3,168 1,490,202 1,249,722
usD 137,523 45,551 42,274,837 21,689,545
Total 144,420 261,774 71,472,112 38,464,851

Liabilities
AUD - - - (5,052)
CAD - - (14,543) (2,427)
usb - - (16,125) (9,639)
Total - - (30,668) (17,118)

Amundi MSCI USA ESG Leaders Extra UCITS ETF

Non-monetary

Non-monetary

Monetary items  Monetary items items items
Local Currency 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2024 2023 2024 2023
usD uUsD uUsD uUsD

Assets
EUR 319,816 8,172 - -
Total 319,816 8,172 - -
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(a) Market risk (continued)

(ii) Currency risk (continued)

5. Risks associated with financial instruments (continued)

Amundi MSCI USA ESG Leaders Extra UCITS ETF (continued)

Monetary items

Local Currency 31 December

Monetary items
31 December
2023

usD

Non-monetary
items

31 December
2024

usD

Non-monetary
items

31 December
2023

usD

(1)

2024
usD
Liability
EUR -
Total -

(1)

Amundi S&P Small Cap 600 ESG UCITS ETF

Non-monetary

Non-monetary

Monetary items  Monetary items items items
Local Currency 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2024 2023 2024 2023
usD usD usD usD

Assets
BRL - - 1,107,475 -
EUR 41 660 - -
Total 41 660 1,107,475 -

There are no financial liabilities in other currencies as at 31 December 2024 and 2023.

Amundi MSCI World ESG Leaders UCITS ETF

Non-monetary

Non-monetary

Monetary items  Monetary items items items
Local Currency 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2024 2023 2024 2023
usD usD usD usD

Assets
AUD 12,267 (2,233) 41,253,095 15,821,741
CAD 6,810 (2,603) 78,776,607 26,850,619
CHF 28,464 4,126 57,526,505 19,500,277
DKK 11,647 369 33,197,001 14,898,818
EUR 139,683 7,527 184,738,884 77,279,166
GBP 60,954 80 82,842,679 33,495,318
HKD 170,520 5,692 10,966,577 5,126,887
ILS 9,743 11,338 745,231 314,617
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5. Risks associated with financial instruments (continued)

(a) Market risk (continued)

(ii) Currency risk (continued)

Amundi MSCI World ESG Leaders UCITS ETF (continued)

Non-monetary

Non-monetary

Monetary items  Monetary items items items
Local Currency 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2024 2023 2024 2023
usD usD usD usD
Assets
JPY 8,689 3,511 160,028,440 58,369,032
NOK 7,899 7,253 6,696,199 2,927,220
NZD 33,061 662 1,355,947 864,132
SEK 19,637 1,297 22,324,645 7,885,023
SGD 9,407 1,815 5,536,315 1,686,651
Total 518,781 38,834 685,988,125 265,019,501
Liabilities
AUD - - (296) (14,108)
CAD - - (37,298) (15,256)
CHF - - (76) -
DKK - - (471,598) -
EUR - - (13,495) (15)
GBP - - (41,644) (8,871)
HKD - - (151,386) -
ILS - - (1,434) -
JPY - - (1,607,914) (8,519)
NOK - - (1,092) -
SEK - - (224,293) -
SGD - - (942) -
Total - - (2,551,468) (46,769)

Amundi MSCI USA ESG Leaders UCITS ETF

Non-monetary

Non-monetary

Monetary items  Monetary items items items
Local Currency 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2024 2023 2024 2023
usD usD usD usD

Assets
EUR 777,505 463,158 636,894 -
Total 777,505 463,158 636,894 -

There are no financial liabilities in other currencies as at 31 December 2024 and 2023.
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(a) Market risk (continued)

(ii) Currency risk (continued)

Amundi S&P 500 ESG UCITS ETF

5. Risks associated with financial instruments (continued)

Non-monetary

Non-monetary

Monetary items  Monetary items items items
Local Currency 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2024 2023 2024 2023
usD usD usD usD
Assets
EUR 712,060 188,836 167,059 1,110,375
Total 712,060 188,836 167,059 1,110,375
Liabilities
EUR - - - (994,185)
Total - - - (994,185)

Amundi MSCI USA SRI Climate Net Zero Ambition PAB UCITS ETF

Non-monetary

Non-monetary

Monetary items  Monetary items items items
Local Currency 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2024 2023 2024 2023
usD usD usD usD
Assets
EUR 1,471,592 (657,134) 83,415 -
Total 1,471,592 (657,134) 83,415 -
Liabilities
EUR - - (1,192,228) -
Total - - (1,192,228) -

Amundi MSCI USA ESG Climate Net Zero Ambition CTB UCITS ETF

Non-monetary

Non-monetary

Monetary items  Monetary items items items
Local Currency 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2024 2023 2024 2023
usbD usD usD usD

Assets
CAD 4,150 - - -
EUR 298,216 177,744 - -
Total 302,366 177,744 - -

There are no financial liabilities in other currencies as at 31 December 2024 and 2023.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Non-monetary

Non-monetary

Monetary items  Monetary items items items
Local Currency 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2024 2023 2024 2023
usD usD usD usD
Assets
EUR 243,209 96,672 68,983 1,105,568
Total 243,209 96,672 68,983 1,105,568
Liabilities
EUR - - - (1,094,206)
Total - - - (1,094,206)

Amundi MSCI World ESG Climate Net Zero Ambition CTB UCITS ETF

Non-monetary

Non-monetary

Monetary items | Monetary items items items
Local Currency 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2024 2023 2024 2023
uUsD uUsD uUsD uUsD

Assets
AUD 10,569 (41,010) 26,546,469 21,784,613
CAD 65,457 273,401 63,638,083 49,307,879
CHF 34,096 3,830 51,790,673 36,499,962
DKK 61,323 2,199 12,170,063 10,874,332
EUR 1,285,465 (101,320) 130,028,984 103,197,529
GBP 10,336 (12,935) 49,306,668 43,596,346
HKD 12,861 (8,975) 9,779,684 7,533,974
ILS 47,435 (1,890) 3,351,809 1,568,847
JPY 22,339 155,905 91,973,017 75,964,501
NOK 38,856 417 6,597,468 5,501,056
NZD 30,984 (262) 949,459 270,362
SEK 39,561 7,195 8,673,988 6,490,140
SGD 7,462 (951) 2,722,595 4,881,178
Total 1,666,744 275,604 457,528,960 367,470,719
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5. Risks associated with financial instruments (continued)

(a) Market

(i)

risk (continued)

Currency risk (continued)

Amundi MSCI World ESG Climate Net Zero Ambition CTB UCITS ETF (continued)

Non-monetary

Non-monetary

Monetary items  Monetary items items items
Local Currency 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2024 2023 2024 2023
usD usD usD usD

Liabilities
AUD - - - (31,027)
CAD - - (53,821) (29,557)
EUR - - - (8)
GBP - - (180) -
ILS - - (66) (141)
JPY - - (12,792) (11,323)
NZD - - (211) (239)
Total - - (67,070) (72,295)

Amundi MSCI World Climate Net Zero Ambition PAB UCITS ETF

Non-monetary

Non-monetary

Monetary items  Monetary items items items
Local Currency 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2024 2023 2024 2023
usD usD usD usD

Assets
AUD 75,533 (83,950) 16,382,215 6,245,046
CAD 51,704 (12,103) 52,149,330 19,672,795
CHF 47,633 2,529 39,508,535 15,082,098
DKK 34,746 2,381 19,038,547 6,906,385
EUR 159,910 4,868 111,201,489 37,988,096
GBP 19,235 (13,413) 31,953,128 11,814,589
HKD 8,689 (5,056) 3,791,161 1,895,504
ILS 704 (551) 881,771 321,023
JPY 71,366 (76,810) 55,362,639 25,341,042
NOK 39,550 41 4,213,249 1,088,326
NZD 344 4,904 1,376,960 690,337
SEK 24,830 1,931 9,057,382 3,587,147
SGD 2,316 3,330 6,373,380 2,615,142
Total 536,560 (171,899) 351,289,786 133,247,530
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5. Risks associated with financial instruments (continued)

(a) Market risk (continued)

(ii) Currency risk (continued)

Amundi MSCI World Climate Net Zero Ambition PAB UCITS ETF (continued)

Non-monetary

Non-monetary

Monetary items  Monetary items items items
Local Currency 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2024 2023 2024 2023
usD usD usD usD

Liabilities
AUD - - - (11,414)
CAD - - (39,465) (14,448)
HKD - - (720) -
ILS - - (61) (62)
JPY - - (11,295) (1,761)
NZD - - (200) (226)
Total . - (51,741) (27,911)

Amundi MSCI World SRI Climate Net Zero Ambition PAB UCITS ETF/

Non-monetary

Non-monetary

Monetary items  Monetary items items items
Local Currency 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2024 2023 2024 2023
usD usD usD usD

Assets
AUD 13,201 - 65,878,142 -
CAD 131,581 - 180,631,381 -
CHF 40,256 - 104,060,204 -
DKK 9,458 - 86,353,799 -
EUR 39,791 - 401,578,229 -
GBP 11,243 - 67,286,938 -
HKD 39,482 - 37,618,069 -
ILS 487 - - -
JPY (13,530) - 311,979,350 -
NOK 106,220 - 15,372,218 -
NZD 8,604 - 4,412,878 -
SEK 10,501 - 11,655,192 -
SGD 23,240 - 18,842,795 -
Total 420,534 - 1,305,669,195 -
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5. Risks associated with financial instruments (continued)
(a) Market risk (continued)

(ii) Currency risk (continued)

Amundi MSCI World SRI Climate Net Zero Ambition PAB UCITS ETF” (continued)

Non-monetary

Non-monetary

Monetary items  Monetary items items items
Local Currency 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2024 2023 2024 2023
usD usD usD usD

Liabilities
CAD - - (69,653) -
EUR - - (15,560) -
GBP - - (43,093) -
HKD - - (81,546) -
JPY - - (43,012) -
SEK - - (7,846) -
SGD - - (4,529) -
Total - - (265,239) -

AThe sub-fund was launched on 2 February 2024.

Amundi Prime All Country World UCITS ETFA

Non-monetary

Non-monetary

Monetary items  Monetary items items items
Local Currency 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2024 2023 2024 2023
usD uUsD uUsD uUsD

Assets
AED - - 5,110,317 -
AUD 21,412 - 35,150,421 -
BRL 11,184 - 8,338,876 -
CAD (18,218) - 59,759,307 -
CLP - - 559,953 -
CNY - - 9,467,778 -
cop - - 54,969 -
CZK 6,536 - 405,067 -
DKK 12,002 - 13,451,742 -
EGP - - 54,457 -
EUR 89,853 - 139,551,837 -
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Risks associated with financial instruments (continued)

(a) Market risk (continued)

(ii) Currency risk (continued)

Amundi Prime All Country World UCITS ETFA (continued)

Non-monetary

Non-monetary

Monetary items  Monetary items items items
Local Currency 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2024 2023 2024 2023
usD usD usD usD
Assets (continued)
GBP 13,584 - 66,111,855 -
HKD 179,499 - 54,262,854 -
HUF 41,319 - 695,460 -
IDR - - 4,353,908 -
INR (7,649) - 44,155,943 -
ILS 296,890 - 4,258,184 -
JPY 33,428 - 120,264,155 -
KRW 2 - 19,529,176 -
KWD - - 1,347,614 -
MXN 70,621 . 4,766,212 .
MYR (2,194) - 5,053,541 -
NOK 115,672 - 3,854,801 -
NZD 14,974 - 1,959,277 -
PHP (406) . 493,444 .
PLN 30,455 - 1,808,598 -
QAR - - 1,209,685 -
SAR (25,045) - 7,664,765 -
SEK 9,107 - 16,232,034 -
SGD 42,093 - 6,383,050 -
THB - - 6,226,707 -
TRY 43,356 - 4,085,219 -
TWB 76,117 - 42,828,170 -
ZAR 149,263 - 5,771,642 -
Total 1,252,395 - 734,203,328 -
Liabilities
BRL - - (23,532) -
CAD - - (45,347) .
DKK - - (302,214) -
EUR - - (51) -
GBP - - (260) -

115



AMUNDI ETF ICAV

ANNUAL REPORT AND SWISS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024
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5. Risks associated with financial instruments (continued)

(a) Market risk (continued)

(ii) Currency risk (continued)

Amundi Prime All Country World UCITS ETFA (continued)

Non-monetary

Non-monetary

Monetary items  Monetary items items items
Local Currency 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2024 2023 2024 2023
usD usD usD usD
Liabilities
(continued)
HKD - - (146,828) -
IDR - . (2,753) -
INR - - (87,212) -
JPY - . (1,197,316) .
KRW - - (247,223) -
MYR - - - -
NOK - - (144,924) -
PHP - - - -
SAR - - - -
SEK - - (243,379) -
THB - - (199,747) -
TRY - - (439) -
TWD - - (17,594) -
ZAR - - (306) -
Total - - (2,659,125) -

AThe sub-fund was launched on 22 February 2024.

Amundi MSCI USA UCITS ETFA

Non-monetary

Non-monetary

Monetary items  Monetary items items items
Local Currency 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2024 2023 2024 2023
usD usD usD usD

Assets
EUR 2,369 - - -
Total 2,369 - - -

There are no financial liabilities in other currencies as at 31 December 2024.
AThe sub-fund was launched on 6 March 2024.
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5. Risks associated with financial instruments (continued)
(b) Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in
financial loss to the sub-funds. The sub-funds are exposed to credit risk on parties with whom they
trade and also bear the risk of settlement default. The sub-funds minimise concentration of credit risk
by undertaking transactions with reputable counterparties with strong credit ratings on recognised
and reputable exchanges. The sub-fund will be exposed to credit risk on the counterparties with which
it trades in relation to OTC financial derivative instruments used to replicate the performance of the
index.

Substantially all security transactions are cleared through and held in custody by the Depositary.
Bankruptcy or insolvency of the Depositary may cause the sub-fund’s rights with respect to securities
to be delayed or limited. The credit ratings of the Depositary at 31 December 2024 in accordance with
Standard & Poor’s is A+ (2023: A+).

The ICAV’s future contracts and related collateral amounts were held with Societe Generale SA (2023:
Societe Generale SA), which is rated as A by Standard & Poor’s as at 31 December 2024 (2023: A).

The ICAV’s forward contracts were held with multiple counterparties and those were rated by
Standard & Poor’s as at 31 December 2024 and 2023 as below.

Counterparty 2024 2023
Goldman Sachs Bank A+ A+
Royal Bank of Canada AA- AA-
BNP Paribas A+ A+
Societe Generale A A
Bank of America A+ A+
JP Morgan Chase Bank A+ A+
Morgan Stanley A- A-
Citi Bank A+ A+
State Street AA- AA-

The ICAV’s debt securities portfolio by credit rating is shown in the following table. All securities were
rated by Standard and Poor’s as at 31 December 2024.
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5. Risks associated with financial instruments (continued)
(c) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the sub-funds will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated
with financial liabilities. The main liability of the sub-funds is the redemption of any shares that
investors wish to sell. Large redemptions of shares in the sub-funds might result in the sub-funds being
forced to sell assets at a time and price at which it would normally prefer not to dispose of those
assets, which could adversely affect the value of the shares.

The sub-funds’ financial instruments comprise mainly of investments in securities which are highly
liquid and are readily realisable as they are all traded on regulated markets. The ICAV has therefore
limited exposure to liquidity risk.

Substantially all of the ICAV’s financial liabilities included in the Statement of financial position at 31
December 2024 and 31 December 2023 of each sub-fund, are payable within one month.

Capital Management

Participating shares in the ICAV provide an investor with the right to request redemption of their shares
for cash at the value proportionate to the investor’s shares in the ICAV’s net assets and are classified as
liabilities. The ICAV’s objective, in managing the participating shares, is to ensure a stable base to
maximise returns to investors and to manage liquidity and to manage liquidity risk arising from
redemptions.
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6. Derivative contracts
Futures contracts

Futures contracts are commitments either to purchase or sell a specific financial instrument, currency,
commodity or anindex at a specified future date for a specified price and may be settled in cash or another
financial asset. Futures are standardised exchange-traded contracts. Initial margin requirements for
futures are met in cash or other instruments, and changes in the future contract values are settled daily
through cash margin accounts.

As at 31 December 2024 and 31 December 2023, the future contracts were held by Societe Generale SA.
Please refer the Schedule of investments for more details.

Forward contracts

Forward contracts are contractual agreements to buy or sell a specified financial instrument at a specific
price and date in the future. Forwards are customised contracts transacted in the OTC market. The ICAV
may enter into forward contracts to manage the currency risk arising from the ICAV’s investment or
anticipated investment in investments denominated in foreign currencies. Forward contracts may be used
for hedging and currency management of both local and foreign currencies.

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the forward contracts were held by Goldman Sachs Bank, Royal
Bank of Canada, BNP Paribas, Societe Generale, Bank of America, JP Morgan Chase Bank, Morgan Stanley,
Citi Bank, State Street (2023: Goldman Sachs Bank, Royal Bank of Canada, BNP Paribas, Societe Generale,
Bank of America, JP Morgan Chase Bank, Morgan Stanley, Citi Bank, State Street).

Offsetting of financial assets and liabilities

The sub-funds are subject to master netting arrangements with the counterparties to the futures and
forward contracts. As of 31 December 2024 and 2023, the sub-funds did not hold financial instruments
and derivative instruments that are eligible for offsetting in the Statement of financial position but did
hold those which are subject to a master netting agreement or similar arrangement. The following table
presents the respective sub-fund’s financial assets and liabilities subject to enforceable master netting
arrangement or similar agreements as at 31 December 2024 and 2023, where applicable:
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

6. Derivative contracts (continued)
Offsetting of financial assets and liabilities (continued)

31 December 2024

Financial assets - futures

Amundi S&P 500 Equal Weight ESG Leaders UCITS ETF
Amundi S&P Global Communication Services ESG UCITS
ETF

Amundi S&P Global Consumer Discretionary ESG UCITS
ETF

Amundi S&P Global Consumer Staples ESG UCITS ETF
Amundi S&P Global Energy Carbon Reduced UCITS ETF
Amundi S&P Global Financials ESG UCITS ETF

Currency
usb

EUR

EUR
EUR
EUR
EUR

Gross
amounts of
recognised
financial
assets

219

1,943
2,254
707

1,162
2,121

120

Gross amounts of
recognised
financial liabilities
offset in the
Statement of
financial position

Net amounts of
financial assets
presented in the
Statement of
financial position
219

1,943

2,254

707
1,162
2,121

available for

Gross amounts not offset

in the Statement of

financial position
Financial

instruments

(including
non-cash
collateral)

offset
(219)

(1,943)

(2,254)

(707)
(1,162)
(2,121)

Cash

collateral
received

Net
amount
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For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Offsetting of financial assets and liabilities (continued)

31 December 2024

Financial assets - futures

Amundi S&P Global Health Care ESG UCITS ETF
Amundi S&P Global Industrials ESG UCITS ETF
Amundi S&P Global Materials ESG UCITS ETF
Amundi S&P Global Utilities ESG UCITS ETF
Amundi MSCI USA UCITS ETF

Currency
EUR
EUR
EUR
EUR
usbD

AMUNDI ETF ICAV
ANNUAL REPORT AND SWISS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Gross
amounts of
recognised
financial
assets

236

3,152

471

707

65

Gross amounts of
recognised financial
liabilities offset in the
Statement of
financial position

121

Net amounts of
financial assets
presented in the

Statement of

financial position

236
3,152
471
707
65

Gross amounts not offset
in the Statement of
financial position

Financial
instruments
(including
non-cash
collateral)
available for
offset

(236)
(3,152)
(471)

(707)

(65)

Cash
collateral
received

Net amount



Notes to the financial statements (continued)

6. Derivative contracts (continued)
Offsetting of financial assets and liabilities (continued)

31 December 2024

Financial liabilities - futures

Currency
Amundi S&P 500 Equal Weight ESG Leaders UCITS
ETF usbD
Amundi MSCI World UCITS ETF usb
Amundi MSCI ACWI Sri Pab UCITS ETF usD
Amundi S&P Global Communication Services ESG
UCITS ETF EUR
Amundi S&P Global Consumer Discretionary ESG
UCITS ETF EUR
Amundi S&P Global Consumer Staples ESG UCITS
ETF EUR
Amundi S&P Global Energy Carbon Reduced
UCITS ETF EUR
Amundi S&P Global Financials ESG UCITS ETF EUR

AMUNDI ETF ICAV
ANNUAL REPORT AND SWISS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

Gross
amounts of
recognised
financial
liabilities

258,575
386,430
11,020
43,288
30,310

24,239

11,695
29,587

Gross amounts of
recognised financial
liabilities offset in
the Statement of
financial position

122

Net amounts of
financial assets
presented in the
Statement of
financial position

258,575
386,430
11,020
43,288
30,310

24,239

11,695
29,587

Gross amounts not offset
in the Statement of
financial position

Financial
instruments
(including
non-cash
collateral)
available for
offset

(219)

(1,943)
(2,254)
(707)

(1,162)
(2,121)

Cash
collateral
pledged

Net amount
258,356
386,430

11,020
41,345
28,056

23,532

10,533
27,466



6. Derivative contracts (continued)

For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Offsetting of financial assets and liabilities (continued)

31 December 2024

Financial liabilities - futures

Amundi S&P Global Health Care ESG UCITS ETF
Amundi S&P Global Industrials ESG UCITS ETF
Amundi S&P Global Information Technology ESG
UCITS ETF

Amundi S&P Global Materials ESG UCITS ETF
Amundi S&P Global Utilities ESG UCITS ETF
Amundi MSCI USA ESG Leaders Extra UCITS ETF
Amundi S&P Small Cap 600 ESG UCITS ETF

Currency
EUR
EUR

EUR
EUR
EUR
usb
usb

AMUNDI ETF ICAV
ANNUAL REPORT AND SWISS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Gross
amounts of
recognised
financial
liabilities
9,067
26,737

31,222
13,310
3,602
153,970
47,508

Gross amounts of
recognised financial
liabilities offset in
the Statement of
financial position

123

Net amounts of
financial assets
presented in the

Statement of

financial position

9,067
26,737

31,222
13,310
3,602
153,970
47,508

Gross amounts not offset
in the Statement of
financial position

Financial
instruments
(including
non-cash
collateral)
available for
offset

(236)

(3,152)

(471)
(707)

Cash
collateral
pledged

Net amount
8,831
23,585

31,222
12,839
2,895
153,970
47,508



AMUNDI ETF ICAV
ANNUAL REPORT AND SWISS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024
Notes to the financial statements (continued)
6. Derivative contracts (continued)
Offsetting of financial assets and liabilities (continued)

31 December 2024

Gross amounts not offset
in the Statement of
financial position

Financial liabilities - futures Financial
instruments
Gross Gross amounts of Net amounts of (including
amounts of recognised financial financial assets non-cash
recognised liabilities offset in presented in the collateral) Cash
financial the Statement of Statement of available for collateral
Currency liabilities financial position financial position offset pledged Net amount
Amundi MSCI World ESG Leaders UCITS ETF usD 49,098 - 49,098 - (49,098) -
Amundi MSCI USA ESG Leaders UCITS ETF usD 343,544 - 343,544 - (343,544) -
Amundi S&P 500 ESG UCITS ETF usD 773,850 - 773,850 - (773,850) -
Amundi MSCI USA SRI Climate Net Zero Ambition
PAB UCITS ETF usD 380,519 - 380,519 - (380,519) -
Amundi MSCI USA ESG Climate Net Zero Ambition
CTB usD 270,285 - 270,285 - - 270,285
Amundi S&P 500 Climate Net Zero Ambition PAB
UCITS ETF usD 550,785 - 550,785 - - 550,785
Amundi MSCI World ESG Climate Net Zero
Ambition CTB UCITS ETF usD 193,131 - 193,131 - - 193,131
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6. Derivative contracts (continued)

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Offsetting of financial assets and liabilities (continued)

31 December 2024

Financial liabilities - futures

Amundi MSCI World Climate Net Zero Ambition
PAB UCITS ETF CTB

AMUNDI MSCI WORLD SRI CLIMATE NET ZERO
AMBITION PAB UCITS ETF

Amundi Prime All Country World UCITS ETF
AMUNDI MSCI USA UCITS ETF

Currency
usb
usb

usD
usb

AMUNDI ETF ICAV
ANNUAL REPORT AND SWISS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

Gross
amounts of
recognised
financial
liabilities

139,812
366,427

124,176
22,945

Gross amounts of
recognised financial
liabilities offset in
the Statement of
financial position

125

Net amounts of
financial assets
presented in the
Statement of
financial position

139,812
366,427

124,176
22,945

Gross amounts not offset
in the Statement of
financial position

Financial
instruments
(including
non-cash
collateral)
available for
offset

(65)

Cash
collateral
pledged

(366,427)

Net amount

139,812

124,111
22,945



6. Derivative contracts (continued)

For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Offsetting of financial assets and liabilities (continued)

31 December 2024

Financial assets — forward contracts

Amundi S&P 500 Equal Weight ESG Leaders
UCITS ETF

Amundi MSCI World ESG Leaders UCITS ETF
Amundi MSCI USA ESG Leaders UCITS ETF
Amundi S&P 500 ESG UCITS ETF

Amundi MSCI USA SRI Climate Net Zero
Ambition PAB UCITS ETF

Amundi S&P 500 Climate Net Zero Ambition PAB
UCITS ETF

AMUNDI MSCI WORLD SRI CLIMATE NET ZERO
AMBITION PAB UCITS ETF

Currency
usb
usb
usb
usb
usb
usD

usb

AMUNDI ETF ICAV
ANNUAL REPORT AND SWISS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Gross
amounts of
recognised
financial
assets

23,223
538,567
372,841
167,059

85,956

68,983

1,344,372

Gross amounts of
recognised financial
liabilities offset in
the Statement of
financial position

126

Net amounts of
financial assets
presented in the

Statement of

financial position

23,223
538,567
372,841
167,059

85,956

68,983

1,344,372

Gross amounts not offset
in the Statement of
financial position

Financial
instruments
(including
non-cash
collateral)
available for
offset

(23,223)
(538,567)
(372,841)
(167,059)

(85,956)

(68,983)

(1,344,372)

Cash
collateral
received

Net amount



AMUNDI ETF ICAV
ANNUAL REPORT AND SWISS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
6. Derivative contracts (continued)
Offsetting of financial assets and liabilities (continued)

31 December 2024

Gross amounts not offset
in the Statement of
financial position

Financial liabilities - forward contracts Financial
instruments
Gross Gross amounts of Net amounts of (including
amounts of recognised financial financial assets non-cash
recognised liabilities offset in presented in the collateral) Cash
financial the Statement of Statement of available for collateral
Currency liabilities financial position financial position offset pledged Net amount
Amundi S&P 500 Equal Weight ESG Leaders
UCITS ETF usD 1,197,379 - 1,197,379 (23,223) - 1,174,156
Amundi MSCI USA ESG Leaders Extra UCITS ETF usD 26,537 - 26,537 - - 26,537
Amundi MSCI World ESG Leaders UCITS ETF usD 2,914,320 - 2,914,320 (538,567)  (1,450,902) 924,851
Amundi MSCI USA ESG Leaders UCITS ETF usD 17,195,793 - 17,195,793 (372,841) (14,336,456) 2,486,496
Amundi S&P 500 ESG UCITS ETF usD 20,930,017 - 20,930,017 (167,059) (13,286,150) 7,476,808
Amundi MSCI USA SRI Climate Net Zero
Ambition PAB UCITS ETF usD 3,799,612 - 3,799,612 (85,956)  (2,649,481) 1,064,175
Amundi S&P 500 Climate Net Zero Ambition PAB
UCITS ETF usD 11,861,674 - 11,861,674 (68,983) - 11,792,691
AMUNDI MSCI WORLD SRI CLIMATE NET ZERO
AMBITION PAB UCITS ETF usD 6,198,654 - 6,198,654 (1,344,372)  (3,193,573) 1,660,709
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AMUNDI ETF ICAV
ANNUAL REPORT AND SWISS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
6. Derivative contracts (continued)
Offsetting of financial assets and liabilities (continued)

31 December 2023

Gross amounts not offset
in the Statement of
financial position

Financial assets - futures Financial
Gross amounts of instruments
Gross recognised Net amounts of (including
amounts of  financial liabilities financial assets non-cash
recognised offset in the presented in the collateral) Cash
financial Statement of Statement of  available for  collateral Net
Currency assets financial position  financial position offset received amount
Amundi S&P 500 Equal Weight ESG Leaders UCITS ETF usb 87,495 - 87,495 - - 87,495
Amundi MSCI World UCITS ETF usD 11,512 - 11,512 - - 11,512
Amundi MSCI ACWI Sri Pab UCITS ETF usD 9,381 - 9,381 - - 9,381
Amundi S&P Global Communication Services ESG UCITS
ETF EUR 5,718 - 5,718 (5) - 5,713
Amundi S&P Global Consumer Discretionary ESG UCITS
ETF EUR 6,239 - 6,239 (1,610) - 4,629
Amundi S&P Global Consumer Staples ESG UCITS ETF EUR 6,372 - 6,372 - - 6,372
Amundi S&P Global Energy Carbon Reduced UCITS ETF EUR 9,314 - 9,314 - - 9,314
Amundi S&P Global Financials ESG UCITS ETF EUR 4,961 - 4,961 (1,150) - 3,811
Amundi S&P Global Health Care ESG UCITS ETF EUR 6,713 - 6,713 - - 6,713
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AMUNDI ETF ICAV
ANNUAL REPORT AND SWISS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
6. Derivative contracts (continued)
Offsetting of financial assets and liabilities (continued)

31 December 2023

Gross amounts not offset
in the Statement of
financial position

Financial assets - futures Financial
instruments
Gross Gross amounts of Net amounts of (including
amounts of recognised financial financial assets non-cash
recognised liabilities offset in the presented in the collateral) Cash
financial Statement of Statement of available for collateral
Currency assets financial position financial position offset received Net amount
Amundi S&P Global Industrials ESG UCITS ETF EUR 10,952 - 10,952 - - 10,952
Amundi S&P Global Information Technology ESG
UCITS ETF EUR 12,918 - 12,918 (605) - 12,313
Amundi S&P Global Materials ESG UCITS ETF EUR 9,700 - 9,700 (65) - 9,635
Amundi S&P Global Utilities ESG UCITS ETF EUR 1,647 - 1,647 (1,060) - 587
Amundi MSCI USA ESG Leaders Extra UCITS ETF usD 108,260 - 108,260 - - 108,260
Amundi S&P Small Cap 600 ESG UCITS ETF usD 21,738 - 21,738 - - 21,738
Amundi MSCI World ESG Leaders UCITS ETF usD 43,670 - 43,670 - - 43,670
Amundi MSCI USA ESG Leaders UCITS ETF usb 475,985 - 475,985 - - 475,985
Amundi S&P 500 ESG UCITS ETF usD 436,265 - 436,265 - - 436,265
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AMUNDI ETF ICAV
ANNUAL REPORT AND SWISS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
6. Derivative contracts (continued)
Offsetting of financial assets and liabilities (continued)

31 December 2023

Gross amounts not offset
in the Statement of
financial position

Financial assets - futures Financial
instruments
Gross Gross amounts of Net amounts of (including
amounts of recognised financial financial assets non-cash
recognised liabilities offset in the presented in the collateral) Cash
financial Statement of Statement of available for collateral
Currency assets financial position financial position offset received Net amount
Amundi MSCI USA SRI Climate Net Zero Ambition
PAB UCITS ETF usD 194,088 - 194,088 - - 194,088
Amundi MSCI USA ESG Climate Net Zero
Ambition CTB usD 140,220 - 140,220 - - 140,220
Amundi S&P 500 Climate Net Zero Ambition PAB
UCITS ETF usD 532,740 - 532,740 - - 532,740
Amundi MSCI World ESG Climate Net Zero
Ambition CTB UCITS ETF usD 11,310 - 11,310 - - 11,310
Amundi MSCI World Climate Net Zero Ambition
PAB UCITS ETF CTB usD 11,740 - 11,740 - - 11,740
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AMUNDI ETF ICAV
ANNUAL REPORT AND SWISS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024
Notes to the financial statements (continued)
6. Derivative contracts (continued)
Offsetting of financial assets and liabilities (continued)

31 December 2023

Gross amounts not offset
in the Statement of
financial position

Financial liabilities - futures Financial
instruments
Gross Gross amounts of Net amounts of (including
amounts of recognised financial financial assets non-cash
recognised liabilities offset in presented in the collateral) Cash
financial the Statement of Statement of available for collateral
Currency liabilities financial position financial position offset pledged Net amount
Amundi S&P Global Communication Services ESG
UCITS ETF EUR 5 - 5 (5) - -
Amundi S&P Global Consumer Discretionary ESG
UCITS ETF EUR 1,610 - 1,610 (1,610) - -
Amundi S&P Global Financials ESG UCITS ETF EUR 1,150 - 1,150 (1,150) - -
Amundi S&P Global Information Technology ESG
UCITS ETF EUR 605 - 605 (605) - -
Amundi S&P Global Materials ESG UCITS ETF EUR 65 - 65 (65) - -
Amundi S&P Global Utilities ESG UCITS ETF EUR 1,060 - 1,060 (1,060) - -
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6. Derivative contracts (continued)

AMUNDI ETF ICAV

ANNUAL REPORT AND SWISS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Offsetting of financial assets and liabilities (continued)

31 December 2023

Financial assets — forward contracts

Amundi S&P 500 Equal Weight ESG Leaders
UCITS ETF

Amundi MSCI USA ESG Leaders UCITS ETF
Amundi S&P 500 ESG UCITS ETF

Amundi MSCI USA SRI Climate Net Zero
Ambition PAB UCITS ETF

Amundi S&P 500 Climate Net Zero Ambition PAB
UCITS ETF

Currency
usbD
usbD
usbD
usb

usb

Gross Gross amounts of
amounts of recognised financial
recognised liabilities offset in
financial the Statement of
assets financial position
400,841 -
3,829,785 -
8,787,063 -
2,487,774 -
4,649,311 -

132

Net amounts of
financial assets
presented in the
Statement of
financial position

400,841
3,829,785
8,787,063
2,487,774

4,649,311

Gross amounts not offset
in the Statement of
financial position

Financial
instruments
(including
non-cash
collateral)
available for
offset

(21,658)
(104,625)
(614,224)
(153,932)

(138,397)

Cash
collateral
received

Net amount
379,183
3,725,160
8,172,839
2,333,842

4,510,914



6. Derivative contracts (continued)

AMUNDI ETF ICAV

ANNUAL REPORT AND SWISS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Offsetting of financial assets and liabilities (continued)

31 December 2023

Financial liabilities - forward contracts

Amundi S&P 500 Equal Weight ESG Leaders
UCITS ETF

Amundi MSCI USA ESG Leaders UCITS ETF
Amundi S&P 500 ESG UCITS ETF

Amundi MSCI USA SRI Climate Net Zero Ambition
PAB UCITS ETF

Amundi S&P 500 Climate Net Zero Ambition PAB
UCITS ETF

Gross Gross amounts of

amounts of recognised financial

recognised liabilities offset in

financial the Statement of

Currency liabilities financial position
usD 21,658 -
usD 104,625 -
usD 614,224 -
usD 153,932 -
usD 138,397 -
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Net amounts of
financial assets
presented in the
Statement of
financial position

21,658
104,625
614,224
153,932

138,397

Gross amounts not offset
in the Statement of
financial position

Financial
instruments
(including
non-cash
collateral)
available for
offset

(21,658)
(104,625)
(614,224)
(153,932)

(138,397)

Cash
collateral
pledged

Net amount



AMUNDI ETF ICAV
ANNUAL REPORT AND SWISS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
Fair value of assets and liabilities

IFRS 13- Fair Value Measurement, establishes a three-tier fair value hierarchy that prioritises the inputs to
valuation techniques to measure fair value. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted
prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1 measurement) and lowest priority to
unobservable inputs (Level 3 measurement). Investments measured and reported at fair value are
classified and disclosed in one of the following fair value hierarchy levels based on the significance of the
inputs used in measuring their fair value:

Level 1- Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets that are accessible at the measurement date for
identical, unrestricted assets or liabilities.

Level 2- Quoted prices in markets that are not active or financial instruments for which all significant
inputs are observable, either directly or indirectly. Fair value is determined through the use
of models or other valuation methodologies.

Level 3- Prices or valuations that require inputs that are both significant to the fair value measurement
and are unobservable. Unobservable inputs are developed based on the best information
available in the circumstances and reflect the sub-funds’ own assumptions about how market
participants would be expected to value the asset or liability.

An investment is always categorised as Level 1, 2 or 3 in its entirety. In certain cases, the fair value
measurement for an investment may use a number of different inputs that fall into different levels of the
fair value hierarchy. In such cases, an investment’s level within the fair value hierarchy is based on the
lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value measurement. The ICAV’s financial instruments are
measured at fair value and it is usually possible to determine their fair values within a reasonable range
of estimates. Fair value estimates are made at a specific point in time, based on market conditions and
information about the financial instrument. These estimates are subjective in nature and involve
uncertainties that may require significant judgement (e.g., interest rates, volatility, estimated cash flows
etc.) Actual results could differ from these estimates.

The financial instruments as at 31 December 2024 and 31 December 2023 were classified as follows:

Equities Level 1
Futures contracts Level 1
Fixed Income Level 1
Forward contracts Level 2
Warrants Level 2

Cash and cash equivalents and due to/from broker are classified as level 1. All other assets and liabilities
other than financial assets above have been classified as level 2.

The following table presents the fair value hierarchy of the ICAV’s financial assets and liabilities measured
at 31 December 2024.
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7.

For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

AMUNDI ETF ICAV
ANNUAL REPORT AND SWISS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Fair value of assets and liabilities (continued)

Amundi S&P 500 Equal Weight ESG Leaders UCITS ETF

At 31 December 2024
Financial assets at FVTPL

Equities

Transferable securities
Futures contracts
Forward contracts
Total

Financial liabilities at FVTPL
Future contracts

Forward contracts

Total

Amundi MSCI World UCITS ETF

At 31 December 2024
Financial assets at FVTPL

Equities

Transferable securities
Futures contracts
Warrants

Total

Financial liabilities at FVTPL
Futures contracts

Forward Contracts

Total

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

usD usD usD usD
2,714,379,232 - - 2,714,379,232
2,714,379,232 - - 2,714,379,232
219 - - 219

- 23,223 - 23,223
2,714,379,451 23,223 - 2,714,402,674
(258,575) - - (258,575)

- (1,197,379) - (1,197,379)

(258,575) (1,197,379) - (1,455,954)
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

usD usD usD usD
3,619,193,652 - - 3,619,193,652
3,619,193,652 - - 3,619,193,652
- 241 241
3,619,193,652 241 - 3,619,193,893

(386,430)

(386,430)

(386,430)

(386,430)
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AMUNDI ETF ICAV
ANNUAL REPORT AND SWISS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Fair value of assets and liabilities (continued)

Amundi MSCI ACWI SRI PAB UCITS ETF

At 31 December 2024

Financial assets at FVTPL Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
usD usD usD usD
Equities 75,595,971 - - 75,595,971
Transferable securities 75,595,971 - - 75,595,971
Futures contracts - - - -
Total 75,595,971 - - 75,595,971
Financial liabilities at FVTPL
Futures contracts (11,020) - - (11,020)
Total (11,020) - - (11,020)
Amundi S&P Global Communication Services ESG UCITS ETF
At 31 December 2024
Financial assets at FVTPL Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
EUR EUR EUR EUR
Equities 296,867,120 - - 296,867,120
Transferable securities 296,867,120 - - 296,867,120
Futures contracts 1,943 - - 1,943
Total 296,869,063 - - 296,869,063
Financial liabilities at FVTPL
Futures contracts (43,288) - - (43,288)
Total (43,288) - - (43,288)

136



7.

AMUNDI ETF ICAV
ANNUAL REPORT AND SWISS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Fair value of assets and liabilities (continued)

Amundi S&P Global Consumer Discretionary ESG UCITS ETF

At 31 December 2024

Financial assets at FVTPL Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
EUR EUR EUR EUR
Equities 370,795,243 - - 370,795,243
Transferable securities 370,795,243 - - 370,795,243
Futures contracts 2,254 - - 2,254
Total 370,797,497 - - 370,797,497
Financial liabilities at FVTPL
Futures contracts (30,310) - - (30,310)
Total (30,310) - - (30,310)
Amundi S&P Global Consumer Staples ESG UCITS ETF
At 31 December 2024
Financial assets at FVTPL Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
EUR EUR EUR EUR
Equities 205,896,426 - - 205,896,426
Transferable securities 205,896,426 - - 205,896,426
Futures contracts 707 - - 707
Total 205,897,133 - - 205,897,133
Financial liabilities at FVTPL
Futures contracts (24,239) - - (24,239)
Total (24,239) - - (24,239)
Amundi S&P Global Energy Carbon Reduced UCITS ETF
At 31 December 2024
Financial assets at FVTPL Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
EUR EUR EUR EUR
Equities 194,819,591 - - 194,819,591
Transferable securities 194,819,591 - - 194,819,591
Futures contracts 1,162 - - 1,162
Total 194,820,753 - - 194,820,753
Financial liabilities at FVTPL
Futures contracts (11,695) - - (11,695)
Total (11,695) - - (11,695)
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For the financial year ended 31 December 2024
Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Fair value of assets and liabilities (continued)

Amundi S&P Global Financials ESG UCITS ETF

At 31 December 2024

Financial assets at FVTPL Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
EUR EUR EUR EUR
Equities 554,107,922 - - 554,107,922
Transferable securities 554,107,922 - - 554,107,922
Futures contracts 2,121 - - 2,121
Total 554,110,043 - - 554,110,043
Financial liabilities at FVTPL
Futures contracts (29,587) - - (29,587)
Total (29,587) - - (29,587)
Amundi S&P Global Health Care ESG UCITS ETF
At 31 December 2024
Financial assets at FVTPL Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
EUR EUR EUR EUR
Equities 245,970,660 - - 245,970,660
Transferable securities 245,970,660 - - 245,970,660
Futures contracts 236 - - 236
Total 245,970,896 - - 245,970,896
Financial liabilities at FVTPL
Futures contracts (9,067) - - (9,067)
Total (9,067) - - (9,067)
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For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Fair value of assets and liabilities (continued)

Amundi S&P Global Industrials ESG UCITS ETF

At 31 December 2024

Financial assets at FVTPL Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
EUR EUR EUR EUR
Equities 334,907,185 - - 334,907,185
Transferable securities 334,907,185 - - 334,907,185
Futures contracts 3,152 - - 3,152
Total 334,910,337 - - 334,910,337
Financial liabilities at FVTPL
Futures contracts (26,737) - - (26,737)
Total (26,737) - - (26,737)
Amundi S&P Global Information Technology ESG UCITS ETF
At 31 December 2024
Financial assets at FVTPL Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
EUR EUR EUR EUR
Equities 440,394,683 - - 440,394,683
Transferable securities 440,394,683 - - 440,394,683
Futures contracts - - - -
Total 440,394,683 - - 440,394,683
Financial liabilities at FVTPL
Futures contracts (31,222) - - (31,222)
Total (31,222) - - (31,222)
Amundi S&P Global Materials ESG UCITS ETF
At 31 December 2024
Financial assets at FVTPL Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
EUR EUR EUR EUR
Equities 117,122,439 - - 117,122,439
Transferable securities 117,122,439 - - 117,122,439
Futures contracts 471 - - 471
Total 117,122,910 - - 117,122,910
Financial liabilities at FVTPL
Futures contracts (13,310) - - (13,310)
Total (13,310) - - (13,310)

139



7.

AMUNDI ETF ICAV
ANNUAL REPORT AND SWISS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Fair value of assets and liabilities (continued)

Amundi S&P Global Utilities ESG UCITS ETF

At 31 December 2024

Financial assets at FVTPL Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
EUR EUR EUR EUR
Equities 106,506,438 - - 106,506,438
Transferable securities 106,506,438 - - 106,506,438
Futures contracts 707 - - 707
Total 106,507,145 - - 106,507,145
Financial liabilities at FVTPL
Futures contracts (3,602) - - (3,602)
Total (3,602) - - (3,602)
Amundi MSCI USA ESG Leaders Extra UCITS ETF
At 31 December 2024
Financial assets at FVTPL Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
usD usD usD usbD
Equities 1,032,496,582 - - 1,032,496,582
Transferable securities 1,032,496,582 - - 1,032,496,582
Futures contracts -
Total 1,032,496,582 - - 1,032,496,582

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Futures contracts (153,970) - - (153,970)
Forward contracts - (26,537) - (26,537)
Total (153,970) (26,537) - (180,507)
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Fair value of assets and liabilities (continued)

Amundi S&P Small Cap 600 ESG UCITS ETF

At 31 December 2024
Financial assets at FVTPL

Equities

Transferable securities
Futures contracts
Total

Financial liabilities at FVTPL
Futures contracts
Total

Amundi MSCI World ESG Leaders UCITS ETF

At 31 December 2024
Financial assets at FVTPL

Equities

Transferable securities
Futures contracts
Forward contracts
Total

Financial liabilities at FVTPL
Futures contracts

Forward contracts

Total

Amundi MSCI USA ESG Leaders UCITS ETF

At 31 December 2024
Financial assets at FVTPL

Equities

Transferable securities
Futures contracts
Forward contracts
Total

Financial liabilities at FVTPL
Future Contracts

Forward contracts

Total

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

uUsD uUsD uUsD uUsD
418,854,493 - - 418,854,493
418,854,493 - - 418,854,493
418,854,493 - - 418,854,493
(47,508) - - (47,508)
(47,508) - - (47,508)

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

usD usD usD usD
2,414,067,317 - - 2,414,067,317
2,414,067,317 - - 2,414,067,317
- 538,567 - 538,567
2,414,067,317 538,567 - 2,414,605,884
(49,098) - - (49,098)

- (2,914,320) - (2,914,320)

(49,098) (2,914,320) - (2,963,418)

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

usbD usbD usbD usbD
1,414,265,703 - - 1,414,265,703
1,414,265,703 - - 1,414,265,703
- 372,841 - 372,841
1,414,265,703 372,841 - 1,414,638,544

(343,544) - - (343,544)
- (17,195,793) - (17,195,793)
(343,544) (17,195,793) - (17,539,337
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Fair value of assets and liabilities (continued)

Amundi S&P 500 ESG UCITS ETF

At 31 December 2024
Financial assets at FVTPL

Equities

Transferable securities
Futures contracts
Forward contracts
Total

Financial liabilities at FVTPL
Future Contracts

Forward contracts

Total

Amundi MSCI USA SRI Climate Net Zero Ambition PAB UCITS ETF

At 31 December 2024
Financial assets at FVTPL

Equities

Transferable securities
Futures contracts
Forward contracts
Total

Financial liabilities at FVTPL
Future contracts

Forward contracts

Total

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

usD usD usD usD
6,508,052,615 - - 6,508,052,615
6,508,052,615 - - 6,508,052,615
- 167,059 - 167,059
6,508,052,615 167,059 - 6,508,219,674
(773,850) - - (773,850)

- (20,930,017) - (20,930,017)

(773,850) (20,930,017) - (21,703,867)
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

usD usD usD usD

1,470,105,893 -

1,470,105,893

1,470,105,893 -

1,470,105,893

- 85,956 - 85,956
1,470,105,893 85,956 - 1,470,191,849
(380,519) - - (380,519)

- (3,799,612) - (3,799,612)

(380,519) (3,799,612) - (4,180,131)
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Fair value of assets and liabilities (continued)

Amundi MSCI USA ESG Climate Net Zero Ambition CTB UCITS ETF

At 31 December 2024

Financial assets at FVTPL Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
usD usD usD usD
Equities 5,427,075,802 - - 5,427,075,802
Transferable securities 5,427,075,802 - - 5,427,075,802
Futures contracts - - - -
Total 5,427,075,802 - - 5,427,075,802
Financial liabilities at FVTPL
Future contracts (270,285) - - (270,285)
Total (270,285) - - (270,285)
Amundi S&P 500 Climate Net Zero Ambition PAB UCITS ETF
At 31 December 2024
Financial assets at FVTPL Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
usD usD usD usD
Equities 5,218,473,401 - - 5,218,473,401
Transferable securities 5,218,473,401 - - 5,218,473,401
Futures contracts - - - -
Forward contracts - 68,983 - 68,983
Total 5,218,473,401 68,983 - 5,218,542,384
Financial liabilities at FVTPL
Future contracts (550,785) - - (550,785)
Forward contracts - (11,861,674) - (11,861,674)
Total (550,785) (11,861,674) - (12,412,459)
Amundi MSCI World ESG Climate Net Zero Ambition CTB UCITS ETF
At 31 December 2024
Financial assets at FVTPL Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
uUsD uUsD uUsD uUsD
Equities 1,596,187,951 - - 1,596,187,951
Transferable securities 1,596,187,951 - - 1,596,187,951
Futures contracts - - - -
Warrants - 357 - 357
Total 1,596,187,951 357 - 1,596,188,308

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Future contracts
Total

(193,131) -

(193,131)

(193,131) -

(193,131)
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Fair value of assets and liabilities (continued)

Amundi MSCI World Climate Net Zero Ambition PAB UCITS ETF CTB

At 31 December 2024
Financial assets at FVTPL

Equities

Transferable securities
Futures contracts
Total

Financial liabilities at FVTPL
Future contracts
Total

Amundi MSCI World SRI Climate Net Zero Ambition PAB UCITS ETF CTB

At 31 December 2024
Financial assets at FVTPL

Equities

Transferable securities
Futures contracts
Forward contracts
Total

Financial liabilities at FVTPL
Future contracts

Forward contracts

Total

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

usD usD usD usD
1,363,952,445 - - 1,363,952,445
1,363,952,445 - - 1,363,952,445
1,363,952,445 - - 1,363,952,445
(139,812) - - (139,812)
(139,812) - - (139,812)
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

usD usD uUsD usD
4,176,602,199 - - 4,176,602,199
4,176,602,199 - - 4,176,602,199
- 1,344,372 - 1,344,372
4,176,602,199 1,344,372 - 4,177,946,571
(366,427) - - (366,427)

- (6,198,654) - (6,198,654)

(366,427) (6,198,654) - (6,565,081)
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7. Fair value of assets and liabilities (continued)

Amundi Prime All Country World UCITS ETF

At 31 December 2024

Financial assets at FVTPL Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
usD usD usD usD
Equities 2,127,767,168 - - 2,127,767,168
Transferable securities 2,127,767,168 - - 2,127,767,168
Futures contracts - - - -
Total 2,127,767,168 - - 2,127,767,168
Financial liabilities at FVTPL
Future contracts (124,176) - - (124,176)
Total (124,176) - - (124,176)
AMUNDI MSCI USA UCITS ETF
At 31 December 2024
Financial assets at FVTPL Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
usD usD usD usD
Equities 518,328,141 - - 518,328,141
Transferable securities 518,328,141 - - 518,328,141
Futures contracts 65 - - 65
Total 518,328,206 - - 518,328,206
Financial liabilities at FVTPL
Future contracts (22,945) - - (22,945)
Total (22,945) - - (22,945)

145



7.

For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

AMUNDI ETF ICAV
ANNUAL REPORT AND SWISS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Fair value of assets and liabilities (continued)

The following table presents the fair value hierarchy of the ICAV’s financial assets and liabilities measured

at 31 December 2023.

Amundi S&P 500 Equal Weight ESG Leaders UCITS ETF

At 31 December 2023
Financial assets at FVTPL

Equities

Transferable securities
Futures contracts
Forward contracts
Total

Financial liabilities at FVTPL
Forward contracts
Total

Amundi MSCI World UCITS ETF

At 31 December 2023
Financial assets at FVTPL

Equities

Transferable securities
Futures contracts
Warrants

Total

There are no financial liabilities at FVTPL as at year ended 31 December 2023.

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

usD usD usD usD
738,657,073 - - 738,657,073
738,657,073 - - 738,657,073
87,495 - - 87,495

- 400,841 - 400,841
738,744,568 400,841 - 739,145,409
- (21,658) - (21,658)

- (21,658) - (21,658)

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

usD usD usD usD
180,965,516 - - 180,965,516
180,965,516 - - 180,965,516
11,512 - - 11,512

- 263 - 263
180,977,028 263 - 180,977,291
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Fair value of assets and liabilities (continued)

Amundi MSCI ACWI SRI PAB UCITS ETF

At 31 December 2023

Financial assets at FVTPL Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
uUsD uUsD uUsD uUsD
Equities 71,854,758 - - 71,854,758
Transferable securities 71,854,758 - - 71,854,758
Futures contracts 9,381 - - 9,381
Total 71,864,139 - - 71,864,139
There are no financial liabilities at FVTPL as at year ended 31 December 2023.
Amundi S&P Global Communication Services ESG UCITS ETF
At 31 December 2023
Financial assets at FVTPL Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
EUR EUR EUR EUR
Equities 104,786,753 - - 104,786,753
Transferable securities 104,786,753 - - 104,786,753
Futures contracts 5,718 - - 5,718
Total 104,792,471 - - 104,792,471
Financial liabilities at FVTPL
Futures contracts (5) - - (5)
Total (5) - - (5)
Amundi S&P Global Consumer Discretionary ESG UCITS ETF
At 31 December 2023
Financial assets at FVTPL Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
EUR EUR EUR EUR
Equities 190,347,717 - - 190,347,717
Transferable securities 190,347,717 - - 190,347,717
Futures contracts 6,239 - - 6,239
Total 190,353,956 - - 190,353,956
Financial liabilities at FVTPL
Futures contracts (1,610) - - (1,610)
Total (1,610) - - (1,610)
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Fair value of assets and liabilities (continued)

Amundi S&P Global Consumer Staples ESG UCITS ETF

At 31 December 2023

Financial assets at FVTPL Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
EUR EUR EUR EUR

Equities 168,454,602 - - 168,454,602

Transferable securities 168,454,602 - - 168,454,602

Futures contracts 6,372 - - 6,372

Total 168,460,974 - - 168,460,974

There are no financial liabilities at FVTPL as at year ended 31 December 2023.

Amundi S&P Global Energy Carbon Reduced UCITS ETF

At 31 December 2023

Financial assets at FVTPL Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
EUR EUR EUR EUR

Equities 255,051,979 - - 255,051,979

Transferable securities 255,051,979 - - 255,051,979

Futures contracts 9,314 - - 9,314

Total 255,061,293 - - 255,061,293

There are no financial liabilities at FVTPL as at year ended 31 December 2023.

Amundi S&P Global Financials ESG UCITS ETF

At 31 December 2023

Financial assets at FVTPL Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
EUR EUR EUR EUR

Equities 82,590,731 - - 82,590,731

Transferable securities 82,590,731 - - 82,590,731

Futures contracts 4,961 - - 4,961

Total 82,595,692 - - 82,595,692

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Futures contracts (1,150) - - (1,150)

Total (1,150) - - (1,150)
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Fair value of assets and liabilities (continued)

Amundi S&P Global Health Care ESG UCITS ETF

At 31 December 2023

Financial assets at FVTPL Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
EUR EUR EUR EUR

Equities 99,992,306 - - 99,992,306

Transferable securities 99,992,306 - - 99,992,306

Futures contracts 6,713 - - 6,713

Total 99,999,019 - - 99,999,019

There are no financial liabilities at FVTPL as at year ended 31 December 2023.

Amundi S&P Global Industrials ESG UCITS ETF

At 31 December 2023

Financial assets at FVTPL Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
EUR EUR EUR EUR

Equities 133,474,146 - - 133,474,146

Transferable securities 133,474,146 - - 133,474,146

Futures contracts 10,952 - - 10,952

Total 133,485,098 - - 133,485,098

There are no financial liabilities at FVTPL as at year ended 31 December 2023.

Amundi S&P Global Information Technology ESG UCITS ETF

At 31 December 2023

Financial assets at FVTPL Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
EUR EUR EUR EUR

Equities 213,498,891 - - 213,498,891

Transferable securities 213,498,891 - - 213,498,891

Futures contracts 12,918 - - 12,918

Total 213,511,809 - - 213,511,809

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Futures contracts (605) - - (605)

Total (605) - - (605)
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Fair value of assets and liabilities (continued)

Amundi S&P Global Materials ESG UCITS ETF
At 31 December 2023

Financial assets at FVTPL Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
EUR EUR EUR EUR
Equities 90,709,436 - - 90,709,436
Transferable securities 90,709,436 - - 90,709,436
Futures contracts 9,700 - - 9,700
Total 90,719,136 - - 90,719,136
Financial liabilities at FVTPL
Futures contracts (65) - - (65)
Total (65) - - (65)
Amundi S&P Global Utilities ESG UCITS ETF
At 31 December 2023
Financial assets at FVTPL Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
EUR EUR EUR EUR
Equities 59,635,450 - - 59,635,450
Transferable securities 59,635,450 - - 59,635,450
Futures contracts 1,647 - - 1,647
Total 59,637,097 - - 59,637,097
Financial liabilities at FVTPL
Futures contracts (1,060) - - (1,060)
Total (1,060) - - (1,060)
Amundi MSCI USA ESG Leaders Extra UCITS ETF
At 31 December 2023
Financial assets at FVTPL Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
uUsD uUsD uUsD uUsD
Equities 800,016,129 - - 800,016,129
Transferable securities 800,016,129 - - 800,016,129
Futures contracts 108,260 - - 108,260
Total 800,124,389 - - 800,124,389

There are no financial liabilities at FVTPL as at year ended 31 December 2023.
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Fair value of assets and liabilities (continued)

Amundi S&P Small Cap 600 ESG UCITS ETF*
At 31 December 2023

Financial assets at FVTPL Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
usD usb usD usbD

Equities 91,124,751 - - 91,124,751

Transferable securities 91,124,751 - - 91,124,751

Futures contracts 21,738 - - 21,738

Total 91,146,489 - - 91,146,489

There are no financial liabilities at FVTPL as at year ended 31 December 2023.

*The sub-fund was launched on 19 January 2023.

Amundi MSCI World ESG Leaders UCITS ETF*

At 31 December 2023

Financial assets at FVTPL Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
usD usD usD usD

Equities 858,117,778 - - 858,117,778

Transferable securities 858,117,778 - - 858,117,778

Futures contracts 43,670 - - 43,670

Total 858,161,448 - - 858,161,448

There are no financial liabilities as at year ended 31 December 2023.
*The sub-fund was launched on 6 July 2023.
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7. Fair value of assets and liabilities (continued)

Amundi MSCI USA ESG Leaders UCITS ETF*

At 31 December 2023
Financial assets at FVTPL

Equities

Transferable securities
Futures contracts
Forward contracts
Total

Financial liabilities at FVTPL
Forward contracts
Total

*The sub-fund was launched on 14 September 2023.

Amundi S&P 500 ESG UCITS ETF*

At 31 December 2023
Financial assets at FVTPL

Equities

Transferable securities
Futures contracts
Forward contracts
Total

Financial liabilities at FVTPL
Forward contracts
Total

*The sub-fund was launched on 17 October 2023.

Amundi MSCI USA SRI Climate Net Zero Ambition PAB UCITS ETF*

At 31 December 2023
Financial assets at FVTPL

Equities

Transferable securities
Futures contracts
Forward contracts
Total

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

usD usD usD usD
2,741,620,201 - - 2,741,620,201
2,741,620,201 - - 2,741,620,201
475,985 - - 475,985

- 3,829,785 - 3,829,785
2,742,096,186 3,829,785 - 2,745,925,971
- (104,625) - (104,625)

- (104,625) - (104,625)

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

usD usD usD usD
3,222,535,248 - - 3,222,535,248
3,222,535,248 - - 3,222,535,248
436,265 - - 436,265

- 8,787,063 - 8,787,063
3,222,971,513 8,787,063 - 3,231,758,576
- (614,224) - (614,224)

- (614,224) - (614,224)

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

uUsD uUsD uUsD uUsD
6,039,980,286 - - 6,039,980,286
6,039,980,286 - - 6,039,980,286
194,088 - - 194,088

- 2,487,774 - 2,487,774
6,040,174,374 2,487,774 - 6,042,662,148
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Fair value of assets and liabilities (continued)

Amundi MSCI USA SRI Climate Net Zero Ambition PAB UCITS ETF* (continued)

At 31 December 2023

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Forward contracts
Total

*The sub-fund was launched on 9 November 2023.

At 31 December 2023
Financial assets at FVTPL

Equities

Transferable securities
Futures contracts
Total

There are no financial liabilities as at year ended 31 December 2023.

*The sub-fund was launched on 16 November 2023.

Amundi S&P 500 Climate Net Zero Ambition PAB UCITS ETF*

At 31 December 2023
Financial assets at FVTPL

Equities

Transferable securities
Futures contracts
Forward contracts

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
usD usD usD usD
- (153,932) - (153,932)
- (153,932) - (153,932)

Amundi MSCI USA ESG Climate Net Zero Ambition CTB UCITS ETF*
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
usD usD usD usD
1,836,657,104 - - 1,836,657,104
1,836,657,104 - - 1,836,657,104
140,220 - - 140,220
1,836,797,324 - - 1,836,797,324
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
usD usD usD usD
2,707,501,336 - - 2,707,501,336
2,707,501,336 - - 2,707,501,336
532,740 - - 532,740
- 4,649,311 - 4,649,311
2,708,034,076 4,649,311 - 2,712,683,387

Total
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Amundi S&P 500 Climate Net Zero Ambition PAB UCITS ETF (continued)*

At 31 December 2023

Financial liabilities at FVTPL Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
usbD usb usD usD

Forward contracts - (138,397) - (138,397)

Total - (138,397) - (138,397)

*The sub-fund was launched on 22 November 2023.

Amundi MSCI World ESG Climate Net Zero Ambition CTB UCITS ETF*

At 31 December 2023

Financial assets at FVTPL Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
usD usD usD usbD

Equities 1,126,963,478 - - 1,126,963,478

Transferable securities 1,126,963,478 - - 1,126,963,478

Futures contracts 11,310 - - 11,310

Warrants - 389 - 389

Total 1,126,974,788 389 - 1,126,975,177

There are no financial liabilities as at year ended 31 December 2023.
*The sub-fund was launched on 4 December 2023.

Amundi MSCI World Climate Net Zero Ambition PAB UCITS ETF CTB*
At 31 December 2023

Financial assets at FVTPL Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

uUsD uUsD uUsD uUsD
Equities 409,763,452 - - 409,763,452
Transferable securities 409,763,452 - - 409,763,452
Futures contracts 11,740 - - 11,740
Total 409,775,192 - - 409,775,192

There are no financial liabilities as at year ended 31 December 2023.
*The sub-fund was launched on 4 December 2023.

There were no level 3 securities or transfers between the levels during the financial year (2023: None).
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

The following table presents a breakdown of gains/(losses) on financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss in the Statement of comprehensive income

for the year ended 31 December 2024 and 2023.

Net realised gains/(losses) on financial assets and
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Net gain/(loss) on transferable securities
Net (loss)/gain on futures
Net gain on forward contracts

Net realised gain/(loss) on financial assets and
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Net unrealised (losses)/gains on financial assets
and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Net (loss)/gain on transferable securities
Net (loss)/gain on futures

Net gain on forward contracts

Net unrealised (loss)/gain on financial assets and
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Amundi S&P 500 Equal Weight ESG

Amundi MSCI World

Amundi MSCI ACWI Sri Pab

Leaders UCITS ETF UCITS ETF UCITS ETF
2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023
78,767,955 (6,435,635) 16,444,824 1,043,005 4,052,968 1,706,795
622,096 108,407 2,714,227 14,756 102,930 18,084
(1,733,125) 853 - - - -
77,656,926 (6,326,375) 19,159,051 1,057,761 4,155,898 1,724,879
(65,908,606) 36,999,166 393,687,833 21,168,480 2,783,279 7,227,786
(258,356) 87,495 (386,430) 11,512 (11,020) 9,381
(1,553,339) 379,183 - - - -
(67,720,301) 37,465,844 393,301,403 21,179,992 2,772,259 7,237,167
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Net realised (losses)/gains on financial assets and
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Net (loss)/gain on transferable securities
Net (loss)/gain on futures

Net realised (loss)/gain on financial assets and
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Net unrealised (losses)/gains on financial assets
and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Net (loss)/gain on transferable securities
Net (loss)/gain on futures

Net unrealised (loss)/gain on financial assets and
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

AMUNDI ETF ICAV

Amundi S&P Global Communication

Services ESG UCITS ETF

ANNUAL REPORT AND SWISS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Amundi S&P Global Consumer
Discretionary ESG UCITS ETF

Amundi S&P Global Consumer
Staples ESG UCITS ETF

2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023
34,331,080 6,259,945 18,412,152 542,146 1,790,184 212,688
177,522 78,236 139,665 78,546 2,182 (24,198)
34,508,602 6,338,181 18,551,817 620,692 1,792,366 188,490
30,095,102 25,682,145 61,083,233 26,872,329 10,449,194 (5,227,475)
(41,345) 5,712 (28,056) 4,629 (23,532) 6,371
30,053,757 25,687,857 61,055,177 26,876,958 10,425,662 (5,221,104)
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7. Fair value of assets and liabilities (continued)

Net realised gains/(losses) on financial assets and
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Net gain/(loss) on transferable securities
Net gain/(loss) on futures

Net realised gain/(loss) on financial assets and
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Net unrealised gains/(losses) on financial assets
and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Net gain/(loss) on transferable securities
Net (loss)/gain on futures

Net unrealised gain/(loss) on financial assets and
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

AMUNDI ETF ICAV

Amundi S&P Global Energy Carbon

Reduced UCITS ETF

ANNUAL REPORT AND SWISS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Amundi S&P Global Financials

ESG UCITS ETF

Amundi S&P Global Health Care
ESG UCITS ETF

2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023
2,098,226 (1,472,394) 36,579,613 232,754 10,711,483 649,816
(17,237) (9,090) 252,200 39,574 (35,027) 4,231
2,080,989 (1,481,484) 36,831,813 272,328 10,676,456 654,047
9,997,126 (6,863,047) 49,253,738 6,754,798 (1,377,922) 967,531
(10,533) 9,314 (27,466) 3,811 (8,831) 6,713
9,986,593 (6,853,733) 49,226,272 6,758,609 (1,386,753) 974,244
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7. Fair value of assets and liabilities (continued)

Net realised (losses)/gains on financial assets and
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Net gain on transferable securities
Net (loss)/gain on futures

Net realised gain on financial assets and liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss

Net unrealised (losses)/gains on financial assets
and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Net (loss)/gain on transferable securities
Net (loss)/gain on futures

Net unrealised (loss)/gain on financial assets and
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

AMUNDI ETF ICAV

Amundi S&P Global Industrials ESG

ANNUAL REPORT AND SWISS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Amundi S&P Global Information

Amundi S&P Global Materials

UCITS ETF Technology ESG UCITS ETF ESG UCITS ETF
2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023
12,693,851 2,362,462 34,620,775 13,725,900 3,834,005 72,195
92,063 48,789 193,734 170,202 4,018 (13,636)
12,785,914 2,411,251 34,814,509 13,896,102 3,838,023 58,559
22,606,445 15,038,017 64,618,820 65,437,085 (7,530,358) 5,224,481
(23,585) 10,952 (45,836) 12,313 (12,839) 9,635
22,582,860 15,048,969 64,572,984 65,449,398 (7,543,197) 5,234,116
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7. Fair value of assets and liabilities (continued)

Net realised (losses)/gains on
financial assets and liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss
Net (loss)/gain on transferable
securities

Net gain/(loss) on futures
Gain/loss on Forward Exchange
Contracts

Net realised (loss)/gain on
financial assets and liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss

Net unrealised gains/(losses) on
financial assets and liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss
Net gain/(loss) on transferable
securities

Net (loss)/gain on futures
Gain/loss on Forward Exchange
Contracts

Net unrealised gain/(loss) on
financial assets and liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss

AMUNDI ETF ICAV
ANNUAL REPORT AND SWISS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Amundi S&P Global Utilities

Amundi MSCI USA ESG Leaders Extra

Amundi S&P Small Cap 600

ESG UCITS ETF UCITS ETF ESG UCITS ETF
2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023
8,684,693 91,857 112,250,906 22,480,487 6,080,240 (417,934)
20,907 (6,767) 922,580 198,146 274,812 (7,234)

- - (67,437) - - -
8,705,600 85,090 113,106,049 22,678,633 6,355,052 (425,168)
585,662 (1,392,456) 86,852,318 75,693,299 (7,699,459) 10,351,857
(2,895) 587 (153,970) 108,260 (47,508) 21,738

- - (26,537) - - -

582,767 (1,391,869) 86,671,811 75,801,559 (7,746,967) 10,373,595
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7.

Net realised gains/(losses) on
financial assets and liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss

Net gain/(loss) on transferable
securities

Net gain/(loss) on futures

Net gain on forward contracts

Net realised gain/(loss) on financial
assets and liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss

Net unrealised gains on financial
assets and liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss

Net gain on transferable securities
Net gain on futures

Net gain on forward contracts

Net unrealised gain on financial
assets and liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss

ANNUAL REPORT AND SWISS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

Fair value of assets and liabilities (continued)

AMUNDI ETF ICAV

Amundi MSCI World ESG

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Amundi MSCI USA ESG

Amundi S&P 500 ESG

Leaders UCITS ETF Leaders UCITS ETF UCITS ETF
2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023
40,935,499 1,010,496 291,854,828 (2,418,518) 229,670,412 7,778,636
960,528 116,204 1,299,798 (115,703) 3,261,837 600,127
(5,106,640) - (29,532,385) 4,890,226 (44,160,220) 17,117,897
36,789,387 1,126,700 263,622,241 2,356,005 188,772,029 25,496,660
146,784,272 58,393,967 1,407,864 166,392,762 760,154,661 256,209,462
(49,098) 43,670 (343,544) 475,985 (773,825) 436,265
(2,375,753) - (20,548,112) 3,725,160 (28,935,797) 8,172,839
144,359,421 58,437,637 (19,483,792) 170,593,907 730,445,039 264,818,566
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7.

Net realised (losses)/gains on
financial assets and liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss
Net (loss)/gain on transferable
securities

Net (loss)/gain on futures

Net gain on forward contracts
Net realised (loss)/gain on
financial assets and liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss

Net unrealised (losses)/gains on
financial assets and liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss
Net gain on transferable
securities

Net gain on futures

Net gain on forward contracts
Net unrealised gain on financial
assets and liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss

ANNUAL REPORT AND SWISS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

Fair value of assets and liabilities (continued)

AMUNDI ETF ICAV

Amundi MSCI USA SRI Climate Net Zero

Ambition PAB UCITS ETF

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Amundi MSCI USA ESG Climate Net

Zero Ambition CTB

Amundi S&P 500 Climate Net Zero
Ambition PAB UCITS ETF

2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023
729,622,780 23,662,016 167,385,002 4,006,982 343,096,983 9,679,558
3,170,472 1,786,018 2,330,823 15,660 2,898,998 85,453
(9,549,554) 3,443,063 - - (24,063,512) 1,265,306
723,243,698 28,891,097 169,715,825 4,022,642 321,932,469 11,030,317
(520,316,307) 692,425,573 644,689,166 99,833,215 550,318,461 117,565,990
(380,519) 194,088 (270,285) 140,220 (550,785) 532,740
(6,047,498) 2,333,842 - - (16,303,606) 4,510,914
(526,744,324) 694,953,503 644,418,881 99,973,435 533,464,070 122,609,644
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7. Fair value of assets and liabilities (continued)

Net realised (losses)/gains on financial assets and
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Net gain on transferable securities
Net gain on futures
Net gain on forward contracts

Net realised gain on financial assets and liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss

Net unrealised gains on financial assets and
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Net gain on transferable securities
Net gain on futures
Net gain on forward contracts

Net unrealised gain on financial assets and
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

*The sub-fund was launched on 2 February 2024.

AMUNDI ETF ICAV

ANNUAL REPORT AND SWISS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Amundi MSCI World ESG Climate
Net Zero Ambition CTB UCITS ETF

Amundi MSCI World Climate Net Zero
Ambition PAB UCITS ETF CTB

Amundi MSCI World SRI
Climate Net Zero
Ambition PAB UCITS ETF*

2024 2023 2024 2023 2024
67,375,799 6,925,251 13,840,736 16,962,660 181,030,181
1,097,142 54,820 482,638 188,042 3,464,925

_ - - - (10,489,746)
68,472,941 6,980,071 14,323,374 17,150,702 174,005,360
113,886,953 43,835,848 81,330,713 15,850,181 281,961,109
(193,131) 11,310 (139,812) 11,740 (366,427)

_ - - - (4,854,282)
113,693,822 43,847,158 81,190,901 15,861,921 276,740,400
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AMUNDI ETF ICAV
ANNUAL REPORT AND SWISS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

7. Fair value of assets and liabilities (continued)

Amundi Prime All
Country World UCITS

Amundi MSCI USA

ETF** UCITS ETF***

2024 2024
Net realised gains/(losses) on financial assets and
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Net gain on transferable securities 1,927,645 2,893,118
Net gain on futures (124,369) 92,942
Net gain on forward contracts - -
Net realised gain on financial assets and liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss 1,803,276 2,986,060
Net unrealised gains/(losses) on financial assets
and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Net gain on transferable securities 89,965,352 11,506,011
Net gain on futures (124,176) (22,880)
Net gain on forward contracts - -
Net unrealised gain on financial assets and
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 89,841,176 11,483,131

**The sub-fund was launched on 22 February 2024.
***The sub-fund was launched on 6 March 2024.
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AMUNDI ETF ICAV
ANNUAL REPORT AND SWISS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
Net asset value

The NAV as at 31 December 2024 was prepared for financial reporting purposes. As the Investment
Manager observed a dealing holiday on that date, no official dealing NAV was struck. Accordingly, the
NAV disclosed in these financial statements does not reflect a dealing NAV and is not available for
subscriptions or redemptions. The NAV on 30 December 2024 was used for capital activity.

Share Class Functional NAV Per Share Total NAV
Currency 31 December 31 December
2024 2024
Amundi S&P 500 Equal Weight ESG Leaders UCITS ETF USD (ACC) usbD 12.34 2,582,188,982
Amundi MSCI World UCITS ETF USD (DIST) usD 13.88 1,138,543,597
AMUNDI MSCI ACWI SRI PAB UCITS ETF USD(ACC) usD 13.09 75,957,704
Amundi S&P Global Communication Services ESG UCITS ETF EUR
(ACC) EUR 17.36 285,932,882
Amundi S&P Global Communication Services ESG UCITS ETF EUR
(DIST) EUR 17.20 12,049,381
Amundi S&P Global Consumer Discretionary ESG UCITS ETF EUR
(ACC) EUR 14.10 363,013,512
Amundi S&P Global Consumer Discretionary ESG UCITS ETF EUR
(DIST) EUR 13.84 8,490,826
Amundi S&P Global Consumer Staples ESG UCITS ETF EUR (ACC) EUR 10.77 194,114,638
Amundi S&P Global Consumer Staples ESG UCITS ETF EUR (DIST) EUR 10.29 12,725,627
Amundi S&P Global Energy Carbon Reduced UCITS ETF EUR (ACC) EUR 11.59 183,598,125
Amundi S&P Global Energy Carbon Reduced UCITS ETF EUR (DIST) EUR 11.07 12,311,483
Amundi S&P Global Financials ESG UCITS ETF EUR (ACC) EUR 15.29 513,613,640
Amundi S&P Global Financials ESG UCITS ETF EUR (DIST) EUR 14.96 42,100,734
Amundi S&P Global Health Care ESG UCITS ETF EUR (ACC) EUR 11.67 220,523,169
Amundi S&P Global Health Care ESG UCITS ETF EUR (DIST) EUR 11.15 33,344,685
Amundi S&P Global Industrials ESG UCITS ETF EUR (ACC) EUR 14.45 328,802,980
Amundi S&P Global Industrials ESG UCITS ETF EUR (DIST) EUR 14.57 7,703,369
Amundi S&P Global Information Technology ESG UCITS ETF EUR
(ACC) EUR 20.04 396,214,656
Amundi S&P Global Information Technology ESG UCITS ETF EUR
(DIST) EUR 19.92 45,101,633
Amundi S&P Global Materials ESG UCITS ETF EUR (ACC) EUR 12.02 116,645,513
Amundi S&P Global Materials ESG UCITS ETF EUR (DIST) EUR 11.65 4,986,497
Amundi S&P Global Utilities ESG UCITS ETF EUR (ACC) EUR 10.96 104,738,994
Amundi S&P Global Utilities ESG UCITS ETF EUR (DIST) EUR 10.48 6,402,307
Amundi MSCI USA ESG Leaders Extra UCITS ETF USD (ACC) usbD 16.82 672,812,584
Amundi S&P Small Cap 600 ESG UCITS ETF USD (DIST) usb 73.29 420,640,293
Amundi S&P 500 Equal Weight ESG Leaders UCITS ETF EUR
Hedged (ACC) EUR 11.64 50,182,393
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ANNUAL REPORT AND SWISS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the financial year ended 31 December 2024
Notes to the financial statements (continued)

8. Net asset value (continued)

Share Class Functional
Currency

Amundi MSCI World ESG Leaders UCITS ETF USD (ACC) usD

Amundi MSCI USA ESG Leaders UCITS ETF USD (ACC) usD

Amundi MSCI USA ESG Leaders UCITS ETF EUR Hedged (ACC) EUR

Amundi MSCI USA SRI Climate Net Zero Ambition PAB UCITS

ETF EUR (ACC) EUR

Amundi MSCI USA SRI Climate Net Zero Ambition PAB UCITS

ETF EUR Hedged (ACC) EUR

Amundi S&P 500 ESG UCITS ETF EUR (ACC) EUR

Amundi S&P 500 ESG UCITS ETF EUR Hedged (ACC) EUR

Amundi MSCI USA ESG Climate Net Zero Ambition CTB UCITS

ETF EUR (ACC) EUR

Amundi MSCI USA ESG Climate Net Zero Ambition CTB UCITS

ETF EUR (DIST) EUR

Amundi MSCI USA ESG Leaders Extra UCITS ETF USD (DIST) usD

Amundi S&P 500 Climate Net Zero Ambition PAB UCITS ETF

EUR Hedged (ACC) EUR

Amundi S&P 500 Climate Net Zero Ambition PAB UCITS ETF

USD (ACC) usb

Amundi S&P 500 Climate Net Zero Ambition PAB UCITS ETF

USD (DIST) usD

Amundi MSCI World Climate Net Zero Ambition PAB UCITS

ETF USD (ACC) usD

Amundi MSCI World ESG Climate Net Zero Ambition CTB

UCITS ETF EUR (ACC) EUR

Amundi MSCI World ESG Climate Net Zero Ambition CTB

UCITS ETF EUR (DIST) EUR
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NAV Per Share
31 December
2024

96.72

104.84

79.11

111.97
76.52
163.10
84.42

579.00

539.51
45.88

29.83

37.89

25.40

80.57

522.17

8.67

Total NAV

31 December
2024
2,185,623,226
659,017,297
728,920,127

1,271,354,450
157,136,514
5,384,281,724
909,183,147

2,654,558,922

2,594,890,874
351,217,917

539,236,669

1,973,896,397

2,542,272,994

1,329,560,436

1,278,381,712

272,659,950



AMUNDI ETF ICAV

ANNUAL REPORT AND SWISS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Net asset value (continued)

Share Class

Amundi MSCI World SRI Climate Net Zero Ambition PAB
UCITS ETF EUR (ACC)A

Amundi MSCI World SRI Climate Net Zero Ambition PAB
UCITS ETF EUR Hedged (ACC)»

Amundi MSCI World UCITS ETF USD (ACC)*

Amundi MSCI World SRI Climate Net Zero Ambition PAB
UCITS ETF USD (DIST)AA

Amundi Prime All Country World UCITS ETF USD (ACC)AA
Amundi MSCI USA UCITS ETF USD (ACC)ArAA

Amundi MSCI USA UCITS ETF USD (DIST)AAAA

Amundi MSCI World ESG Leaders UCITS ETF EUR Hedged
(ACC)I\I\/\/\/\

Amundi Prime All Country World UCITS ETF USD
(DIST)AAAAAA

Amundi MSCI USA ESG Leaders Extra UCITS ETF EUR
Hedged (ACC)****

AThe share class launched on 17 January 2024.
ANThe share class launched on 1 February 2024.
ANThe share class launched on 21 February 2024.
ANAAThe share class launched on 5 March 2024.
ANNMAAThe share class launched on 25 April 2024.
ANNAAAThe share class launched on 5 June 2024.
****The share class launched on 17 October 2024.
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Functional
Currency

EUR

EUR
usb

usb
usb
usb
usb

EUR
usb

EUR

NAV Per Share
31 December
2024

105.29

71.46
135.09

22.57
10.65
36.41
45.04

11.48

11.40

10.56

Total NAV
31 December
2024

3,748,513,025

392,996,879
2,510,924,517

46,293,059
81,925,647
471,181,054
32,285,533

233,071,881

2,049,982,570

1,186,719



8.

AMUNDI ETF ICAV

ANNUAL REPORT AND SWISS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the financial year ended 31 December 2024
Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Net asset value (continued)

Share Class Functional
Currency
Amundi S&P 500 Equal Weight ESG Leaders UCITS ETF USD
(ACC) usD
Amundi MSCI World UCITS ETF USD (DIST) usD
AMUNDI MSCI ACWI SRI PAB UCITS ETF USD(ACC) usD
Amundi S&P Global Communication Services ESG UCITS ETF
EUR (ACC) EUR
Amundi S&P Global Communication Services ESG UCITS ETF
EUR (DIST) EUR
Amundi S&P Global Consumer Discretionary ESG UCITS ETF
EUR (ACC) EUR
Amundi S&P Global Consumer Discretionary ESG UCITS ETF
EUR (DIST) EUR
Amundi S&P Global Consumer Staples ESG UCITS ETF EUR
(ACC) EUR
Amundi S&P Global Financials ESG UCITS ETF EUR (ACC) EUR
Amundi S&P Global Financials ESG UCITS ETF EUR (DIST) EUR
Amundi S&P Global Health Care ESG UCITS ETF EUR (ACC) EUR
Amundi S&P Global Health Care ESG UCITS ETF EUR (DIST) EUR
Amundi S&P Global Industrials ESG UCITS ETF EUR (ACC) EUR
Amundi S&P Global Industrials ESG UCITS ETF EUR (DIST) EUR
Amundi S&P Global Information Technology ESG UCITS ETF
EUR (ACC) EUR
Amundi S&P Global Information Technology ESG UCITS ETF
EUR (DIST) EUR
Amundi S&P Global Materials ESG UCITS ETF EUR (ACC) EUR
Amundi S&P Global Materials ESG UCITS ETF EUR (DIST) EUR
Amundi S&P Global Utilities ESG UCITS ETF EUR (ACC) EUR
Amundi S&P Global Utilities ESG UCITS ETF EUR (DIST) EUR
Amundi MSCI USA ESG Leaders Extra UCITS ETF USD (ACC) usbD
Amundi S&P Small Cap 600 ESG UCITS ETF USD (DIST)» usD
Amundi S&P 500 Equal Weight ESG Leaders UCITS ETF EUR
Hedged (ACC)AA EUR
Amundi MSCI World ESG Leaders UCITS ETF USD (ACC)AAA usD

AThe share class launched on 19 January 2023.
ANThe share class launched on 22 June 2023.
ANAThe share class launched on 7 July 2023.
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NAV Per Share

31 December
2023

11.55
11.86

11.85

12.77

12.72

10.88

10.79

9.83
11.34
11.32
10.46
10.44
12.33
12.19

14.38

14.36
11.60
11.56

9.57

9.52
13.60
67.92

10.72
83.05

Total NAV
31 December
2023

722,281,218
190,953,551

72,209,303

102,458,671

2,568,051

186,654,716

3,973,408

165,316,099
80,699,544
2,173,237
95,446,201
4,811,224
130,495,924
3,445,698

200,498,566

13,381,485
87,687,372
3,294,840
58,937,825
1,094,578
515,171,052
91,843,530

15,783,780
860,407,824
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AMUNDI ETF ICAV
ANNUAL REPORT AND SWISS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Net asset value (continued)

Share Class Functional NAV Per Share

Currency 31 December
2023

Amundi MSCI USA ESG Leaders UCITS ETF USD (ACC)» usD 87.45

Amundi MSCI USA ESG Leaders UCITS ETF EUR Hedged

(ACC)r EUR 67.03

Amundi MSCI USA SRI Climate Net Zero Ambition PAB

UCITS ETF EUR (ACC)AA EUR 98.98

Amundi MSCI USA SRI Climate Net Zero Ambition PAB

UCITS ETF EUR Hedged (ACC)AM EUR 73.43

Amundi S&P 500 ESG UCITS ETF EUR (ACC)AAA EUR 123.17

Amundi S&P 500 ESG UCITS ETF EUR Hedged (ACC)AMA EUR 69.15

Amundi MSCI USA ESG Climate Net Zero Ambition CTB

UCITS ETF EUR (ACC)AAAA EUR 438.29

Amundi MSCI USA ESG Climate Net Zero Ambition CTB

UCITS ETF EUR (DIST)AAAA EUR 412.33

Amundi MSCI USA ESG Leaders Extra UCITS ETF USD

(DIST)AAAAA usD 38.46

Amundi S&P 500 Climate Net Zero Ambition PAB UCITS ETF

EUR Hedged (ACC)AMAAA EUR 24.02

Amundi S&P 500 Climate Net Zero Ambition PAB UCITS ETF

USD (ACC)AAAAA usD 31.07

Amundi S&P 500 Climate Net Zero Ambition PAB UCITS ETF

USD (DIST)AAAAA usD 21.06

Amundi MSCI World Climate Net Zero Ambition PAB UCITS

ETF USD (ACC)AAAAAA usD 70.71

Amundi MSCI World ESG Climate Net Zero Ambition CTB

UCITS ETF EUR (ACC)AAAAAAA EUR 415.32

Amundi MSCI World ESG Climate Net Zero Ambition CTB

UCITS ETF EUR (DIST)AAAAAAA EUR 6.90

AThe share class launched on 15 September 2023.
ANAThe share class launched on 18 October 2023.
ANMAThe share class launched on 20 November 2023.
ANAAThe share class launched on 24 November 2023.
ANAAAAThe share class launched on 5 December 2023.
ANAAAAAThe share class launched on 15 December 2023.
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Total NAV
31 December
2023

2,402,610,657
321,990,974
5,257,362,147
210,186,406
2,224,321,891
716,536,843
461,108,154
1,205,102,474
288,957,873
375,546,310
825,732,828
1,492,889,466
411,071,614

809,178,389

213,384,880
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

8. Net asset value (continued)

Share Class

Amundi S&P 500 Equal Weight ESG Leaders UCITS ETF USD
(ACC)
Amundi MSCI World UCITS ETF USD (DIST)

Amundi MSCI ACWI SRI PAB UCITS ETF USD (ACC)

Amundi S&P Global Communication Services ESG UCITS ETF
EUR (ACC)

Amundi S&P Global Communication Services ESG UCITS ETF
EUR (DIST)

Amundi S&P Global Consumer Discretionary ESG UCITS ETF
EUR (ACC)

Amundi S&P Global Consumer Discretionary ESG UCITS ETF
EUR (DIST)

Amundi S&P Global Consumer Staples ESG UCITS ETF EUR
(ACC)

Amundi S&P Global Consumer Staples ESG UCITS ETF EUR
(DIST)

Amundi S&P Global Energy Carbon Reduced UCITS ETF EUR
(ACC)

Amundi S&P Global Energy Carbon Reduced UCITS ETF EUR
(DIST)

Amundi S&P Global Financials ESG UCITS ETF EUR (ACC)
Amundi S&P Global Financials ESG UCITS ETF EUR (DIST)
Amundi S&P Global Health Care ESG UCITS ETF EUR (DIST)
Amundi S&P Global Industrials ESG UCITS ETF EUR (ACC)

Amundi S&P Global Industrials ESG UCITS ETF EUR (DIST)
Amundi S&P Global Information Technology ESG UCITS ETF
EUR (ACC)

Amundi S&P Global Information Technology ESG UCITS ETF
EUR (DIST)

Amundi S&P Global Materials ESG UCITS ETF EUR (ACC)
Amundi S&P Global Materials ESG UCITS ETF EUR (DIST)
Amundi S&P Global Utilities ESG UCITS ETF EUR (ACC)
Amundi S&P Global Utilities ESG UCITS ETF EUR (DIST)
Amundi MSCI USA ESG Leaders Extra UCITS ETF USD (ACC)
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Functional
Currency

usb
usb

usb
EUR
EUR
EUR
EUR
EUR
EUR
EUR

EUR
EUR
EUR
EUR
EUR
EUR

EUR

EUR
EUR
EUR
EUR
EUR
usbD

NAV Per Share
31 December
2022

10.17
9.64

9.64

8.79

8.79

8.38

8.38

9.98

9.98

10.60

10.60
10.10
10.11
10.24
10.27
10.27

9.25

9.25
10.49
10.49

9.38

9.38
10.51

Total NAV
31 December
2022

342,065,830
11,655,371

22,005,827

73,041,137

439,465

83,353,360

251,433

39,372,833

59,852

23,172,213

943,159
48,807,526
372,361
388,977
89,485,393
569,851

171,233,289

934,654
13,053,806
954,691
28,413,611
1,078,385
275,869,102
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Net asset value (continued)
As at 31 December 2024, the single share class sub-funds’ redeemable participating shares are classified

as equity as they represent the most subordinate interest in the ICAV’s net assets and provide holders
with a pro-rata share of those assets on liquidation. The following is a breakdown of the sub-funds’ equity

balances as at 31 December 2024:

Share Retained
capital earnings Total
Amundi MSCI ACWI SRI PAB UCITS ETF usD usD usD
Equity at start of financial year 62,923,490 9,285,813 72,209,303
Total comprehensive income for the financial
year - 7,990,057 7,990,057
Issue of shares 19,174,723 - 19,174,723
Redemption of shares (23,416,379) - (23,416,379)
Equity at end of financial year 58,681,834 17,275,870 75,957,704
Share Retained
capital earnings Total
Amundi S&P Small Cap 600 ESG UCITS ETF usD usD usD
Equity at start of financial year 81,015,556 10,827,974 91,843,530
Total comprehensive income for the financial
year - (423,297) (423,297)
Issue of shares 344,805,702 - 344,805,702
Redemption of shares (15,585,641) - (15,585,641)
Equity at end of financial year 410,235,617 10,404,677 420,640,294
Share Retained
Amundi MSCI World Climate Net Zero capital earnings Total
Ambition PAB UCITS ETF usb uUsD uUsD
Equity at start of financial year 377,469,736 33,601,878 411,071,614
Total comprehensive income for the financial
year - 106,259,053 106,259,053
Issue of shares 982,296,359 - 982,296,359
Redemption of shares (122,867,195) - (122,867,195)
Equity at end of financial year 1,236,898,900 139,860,931 1,376,759,831
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Net asset value (continued)

The following is a breakdown of the sub-funds’ equity balances as at 31 December 2023:

Amundi MSCI ACWI SRI PAB UCITS ETF
Equity at start of financial year

Total comprehensive income for the financial
year

Issue of shares

Redemption of shares

Equity at end of financial year

Amundi S&P Small Cap 600 ESG UCITS ETF
Equity at start of financial year

Total comprehensive income for the financial
year

Issue of shares

Redemption of shares

Equity at end of financial year

Amundi MSCI World Climate Net Zero
Ambition PAB UCITS ETF

Equity at start of financial year

Total comprehensive income for the financial
year

Issue of shares

Redemption of shares

Equity at end of financial year

Share Retained
capital earnings Total
usD usD usD
22,321,203 (315,376) 22,005,827
- 9,601,189 9,601,189
51,823,287 - 51,823,287
(11,221,000) - (11,221,000)
62,923,490 9,285,813 72,209,303
Share Retained
capital earnings Total
usD usD usD
- 10,827,974 10,827,974
92,800,160 - 92,800,160
(12,784,604) - (11,784,604)
81,015,556 10,827,974 91,843,530
Share Retained
capital earnings Total
usD usD usD
- 33,601,878 33,601,878
942,962,350 - 942,962,350
(565,492,614) - (565,492,614)
377,469,736 33,601,878 411,071,614
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Securities Lending

A Securities Financing Transaction (“SFT”) is defined as per Article 3(11) of the Securities Financing
Transaction Regulation (“SFTR”) as:

- a repurchase transaction;

- securities or commodities lending and securities or commodities borrowing;
- a buy-sell back transaction or sell-buy back transaction; or

- a margin lending transaction.

At year end 31 December 2024, securities lending was used by the following subfunds to generate
additional income from the securities held:

- Amundi MSCI World UCITS ETF

- Amundi S&P Global Industrials ESG UCITS ETF

- Amundi S&P Global Communication Services ESG UCITS ETF

- Amundi S&P Global Consumer Discretionary ESG UCITS ETF

- Amundi S&P Global Financials ESG UCITS ETF

- Amundi S&P Global Energy Carbon Reduced UCITS ETF

- Amundi S &P Global Materials ESG UCITS ETF

- Amundi S&P Global Utilities ESG UCITS ETF

- - Amundi MSCI World ESG Climate Net Zero Ambition CTB UCITS ETF
- Amundi MSCI World Climate Net Zero Ambition PAB UCITS ETF
- Amundi Prime All Country World UCITS ETF

Securities lent are not derecognised from the Statement of Net Assets at year end.

Securities lending commission is allocated to the following parties:

65% of the gross revenue on securities lending is allocated to the relevant sub-fund.
35% of the gross revenue on securities lending is allocated to the Securities Lending Agent, Amundi
Intermediation.

As at 31 December 2024, the amount of securities on loan as a proportion of total lendable assets was:
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9. Securities Lending (continued)

Amundi MSCI World UCITS ETF
Securities issued on loan
usD

Total assets
usD

Securities on loan as a percentage of
total lendable assets

27,942,369 3,619,193,652
Amundi S&P Global Industrials ESG UCITS ETF
Securities issued on loan

usD

Total assets
usD

0.77%

Securities on loan as a percentage of
total lendable assets

8,454,160 334,907,185
Amundi S&P Global Communication Services ESG UCITS ETF

Securities issued on loan Total assets
usD usD

2.52%

Securities on loan as a percentage of
total lendable assets

4,753,905 296,867,120

Amundi S&P Global Consumer Discretionary ESG UCITS ETF
Securities issued on loan Total assets
usD usD

1.60%

Securities on loan as a percentage of
total lendable assets

454,316 370,795,244

Amundi S&P Global Financials ESG UCITS ETF
Securities issued on loan
usD

Total assets
usD

0.12%

Securities on loan as a percentage of
total lendable assets

7,522,145 554,107,922
Amundi S&P Global Energy Carbon Reduced UCITS ETF

Securities issued on loan Total assets
usbD usbD

1.36%

Securities on loan as a percentage of
total lendable assets

26,289,944 194,819,591

Amundi S & P Global Materials ESG UCITS ETF
Securities issued on loan
usD

Total assets
usD

13.49%

Securities on loan as a percentage of
total lendable assets

3,331,367 117,122,439
Amundi S&P Global Utilities ESG UCITS ETF
Securities issued on loan

usbD

Total assets
usD

2.84%

Securities on loan as a percentage of
total lendable assets

650,093 106,506,438
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9. Securities Lending (continued)

Amundi MSCI World ESG Climate Net Zero Ambition CTB UCITS ETF

Securities issued on loan Total assets  Securities on loan as a percentage of
usD uUsD total lendable assets
19,500,441 1,596,187,951 1.22%

Amundi MSCI World Climate Net Zero Ambition PAB UCITS ETF

Securities issued on loan Total assets  Securities on loan as a percentage of
usD usD total lendable assets
9,167,752 1,363,952,445 0.67%

Amundi Prime All Country World UCITS ETF

Securities issued on loan Total assets  Securities on loan as a percentage of
usD usD total lendable assets
15,251,785 2,127,767,168 0.72%

As at 31 December 2024, the amount of securities on loan as a proportion of total investments was:

Amundi MSCI World UCITS ETF

Securities issued on loan Total investments Securities on loan as a percentage of
usD uUsD total investments
27,942,369 3,618,807,463 0.77%

Amundi S&P Global Industrials ESG UCITS ETF

Securities issued on loan Total investments Securities on loan as a percentage of
usD usD total investments
8,454,160 334,883,600 2.52%

Amundi S&P Global Communication Services ESG UCITS ETF

Securities issued on loan Total investments Securities on loan as a percentage of
usD usD total investments
4,753,905 296,825,775 1.60%

Amundi S&P Global Consumer Discretionary ESG UCITS ETF

Securities issued on loan Total investments Securities on loan as a percentage of
usD uUsD total investments
454,316 370,767,187 0.12%

Amundi S&P Global Financials ESG UCITS ETF

Securities issued on loan Total investments Securities on loan as a percentage of
usD usD total investments
7,522,145 554,080,456 1.36%
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Securities Lending (continued)

Amundi S&P Global Energy Carbon Reduced UCITS ETF

Securities issued on loan Total investments Securities on loan as a percentage of
usD usD total investments
26,289,944 194,809,058 13.50%

Amundi S & P Global Materials ESG UCITS ETF

Securities issued on loan Total investments  Securities on loan as a percentage of
usD usD total investments
3,331,367 117,109,600 2.84%

Amundi S&P Global Utilities ESG UCITS ETF

Securities issued on loan Total investments Securities on loan as a percentage of
usD uUsD total investments
650,093 106,503,543 0.61%

Amundi MSCI World ESG Climate Net Zero Ambition CTB UCITS ETF

Securities issued on loan Total investments Securities on loan as a percentage of
usD uUsD total investments
19,500,441 1,595,995,177 1.22%

Amundi MSCI World Climate Net Zero Ambition PAB UCITS ETF

Securities issued on loan Total investments Securities on loan as a percentage of
usD uUsD total investments
9,167,752 1,363,812,633 0.67%

Amundi Prime All Country World UCITS ETF

Securities issued on loan Total investments Securities on loan as a percentage of
usD uUsD total investments
15,251,785 2,127,642,992 0.72%
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9. Securities Lending (continued)

At the year ended December 2024, the following cash collateral was received by the subfunds:

Currency Cash
Amundi MSCI World Climate Net Zero Ambition PAB UCITS ETF usb 9,796,348
Amundi MSCI World ESG Climate Net Zero Ambition CTB UCITS ETF usbD 20,843,268
Amundi MSCI World UCITS ETF usbD 921,750
Amundi Prime All Country World UCITS ETF usbD 16,314,457
Amundi S&P Global Communication Services ESG UCITS ETF EUR 5,081,501
Amundi S&P Global Consumer Discretionary ESG UCITS ETF EUR 481,835
Amundi S&P Global Energy Carbon Reduced UCITS ETF EUR 8,101,611
Amundi S&P Global Financials ESG UCITS ETF EUR 8,040,504
Amundi S&P Global Industrials ESG UCITS ETF EUR 9,036,745
Amundi S & P Global Materials ESG UCITS ETF EUR 3,560,935
Amundi S&P Global Utilities ESG UCITS ETF EUR 694,891

Securities

34,295,065

The funds generated revenues arising from efficient portfolio management techniques and instruments

during the year ended 31 December 2024:

Currency Revenue
Amundi MSCI World Climate Net Zero Ambition PAB UCITS ETF usD 3,196
Amundi MSCI World ESG Climate Net Zero Ambition CTB UCITS ETF usD 1,940
Amundi MSCI World UCITS ETF usD 33,091
Amundi S&P Global Consumer Staples ESG UCITS ETF EUR 34
Amundi S&P Global Communication Services ESG UCITS ETF EUR 13,379
Amundi S&P Global Consumer Discretionary ESG UCITS ETF EUR 867
Amundi S&P Global Energy Carbon Reduced UCITS ETF EUR 77,979
Amundi S&P Global Materials ESG UCITS ETF EUR 607
Amundi S&P Global Industrials ESG UCITS ETF EUR 223
Amundi S&P Small Cap 600 ESG UCITS ETF usD 614
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10. Share capital and redeemable participating shares

The authorised share capital of the ICAV is 2 subscriber shares of €1 each and 1,000,000,000,000,000
Shares of no par value initially designated as unclassified shares. The unclassified shares are available for
issue as shares. There are no rights of pre-emption attaching to the shares in the ICAV.

As at year end, neither the Directors nor any person closely associated have any beneficial interest in the
share capital of the ICAV or any options in respect of such capital. The Directors are generally and
unconditionally authorised to exercise all powers of the ICAV to allot relevant securities up to an amount
equal to the authorised but as yet unissued share capital of the ICAV. The ICAV may from time to time by
ordinary resolution increase the share capital by such amount and/or number as the resolution may
prescribe.

The movement in the number of redeemable participating shares during the financial year ended 31
December 2024 is as follows:

31 December 2024

Issued Redeemed

At  during the during the At
beginning financial financial The end of the
Share Class of the year year year financial year
(units) (units) (units) (units)
Amundi S&P 500 Equal Weight ESG Leaders
UCITS ETF USD (ACC) 62,518,996 230,716,716 (84,031,557) 209,204,155
Amundi MSCI World UCITS ETF USD (DIST) 16,101,153 74,179,950 (8,251,001) 82,030,102
AMUNDI MSCI ACWI SRI PAB UCITS ETF
USD(ACC) 6,094,830 1,584,000 (1,875,000) 5,803,830
Amundi S&P Global Communication
Services ESG UCITS ETF EUR (ACC) 8,020,618 21,416,428 (12,969,895) 16,467,151
Amundi S&P Global Communication
Services ESG UCITS ETF EUR (DIST) 201,908 1,318,177 (819,466) 700,619
Amundi S&P Global Consumer Discretionary
ESG UCITS ETF EUR (ACC) 17,152,256 15,855,858 (7,261,960) 25,746,154
Amundi S&P Global Consumer Discretionary
ESG UCITS ETF EUR (DIST) 368,221 538,360 (292,990) 613,591
Amundi S&P Global Consumer Staples ESG
UCITS ETF EUR (ACC) 16,816,493 13,359,459 (12,156,355) 18,019,597
Amundi S&P Global Consumer Staples ESG
UCITS ETF EUR (DIST) 385,708 1,273,414 (423,000) 1,236,122
Amundi S&P Global Energy Carbon Rshare
capital educed UCITS ETF EUR (ACC) 23,909,535 12,885,054 (20,956,034) 15,838,555
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10. Share capital and redeemable participating shares (continued)

31 December 2024

Issued Redeemed

At during the during the At
beginning financial financial The end of the
Share Class of the year year year financial year
(units) (units) (units) (units)
Amundi S&P Global Energy Carbon Reduced
UCITS ETF EUR (DIST) 405,657 1,327,393 (620,550) 1,112,500
Amundi S&P Global Financials ESG UCITS
ETF EUR (ACC) 7,114,397 52,230,793 (25,756,321) 33,588,869
Amundi S&P Global Financials ESG UCITS
ETF EUR (DIST) 191,953 2,857,031 (235,690) 2,813,294
Amundi S&P Global Health Care ESG UCITS
ETF EUR (ACC) 9,128,325 27,154,943 (17,394,716) 18,888,552
Amundi S&P Global Health Care ESG UCITS
ETF EUR (DIST) 461,001 2,886,252 (356,893) 2,990,360
Amundi S&P Global Industrials ESG UCITS
ETF EUR (ACC) 10,582,000 18,736,183 (6,556,745) 22,761,438
Amundi S&P Global Industrials ESG UCITS
ETF EUR (DIST) 282,661 381,224 (135,000) 528,885
Amundi S&P Global Information Technology
ESG UCITS ETF EUR (ACC) 13,945,083 9,187,348 (3,360,192) 19,772,239
Amundi S&P Global Information Technology
ESG UCITS ETF EUR (DIST) 932,181 3,199,295 (1,867,197) 2,264,279
Amundi S&P Global Materials ESG UCITS
ETF EUR (ACC) 7,560,501 11,752,831 (9,610,048) 9,703,284
Amundi S&P Global Materials ESG UCITS
ETF EUR (DIST) 285,001 347,466 (204,597) 427,870
Amundi S&P Global Utilities ESG UCITS ETF
EUR (ACC) 6,157,036 25,666,766 (22,268,965) 9,554,837
Amundi S&P Global Utilities ESG UCITS ETF
EUR (DIST) 115,000 1,878,388 (1,382,766) 610,622
Amundi MSCI USA ESG Leaders Extra UCITS
ETF USD (ACC) 37,888,945 20,800,475 (18,694,607) 39,994,813
Amundi S&P Small Cap 600 ESG UCITS ETF
USD (DIST) 1,352,258 4,606,840 (219,726) 5,739,372
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10. Share capital and redeemable participating shares (continued)

31 December 2024

Issued Redeemed
At during the during the At
beginning financial financial The end of the
Share Class of the year year year financial year
(units) (units) (units) (units)
Amundi S&P 500 Equal Weight ESG Leaders
UCITS ETF EUR Hedged (ACC) 1,472,667 3,781,620 (944,765) 4,309,522
Amundi MSCI World ESG Leaders UCITS ETF
uUsD (ACC) 10,360,018 13,304,902 (1,067,326) 22,597,594
Amundi MSCI USA ESG Leaders UCITS ETF
uUsD (ACC) 27,474,182 4,419,955 (25,608,442) 6,285,695
Amundi MSCI USA ESG Leaders UCITS ETF
EUR Hedged (ACC) 4,803,626 7,677,120 (3,266,401) 9,214,345
Amundi MSCI USA SRI Climate Net Zero
Ambition PAB UCITS ETF EUR (ACC) 53,115,452 3,179,368 (44,940,122) 11,354,698
Amundi MSCI USA SRI Climate Net Zero
Ambition PAB UCITS ETF EUR Hedged (ACC) 2,862,573 410,197 (1,219,271) 2,053,499
Amundi S&P 500 ESG UCITS ETF EUR (ACC) 18,058,381 23,241,086 (8,287,912) 33,011,555
Amundi S&P 500 ESG UCITS ETF EUR
Hedged (ACC) 10,361,593 8,725,608 (8,317,159) 10,770,042
Amundi MSCI USA ESG Climate Net Zero
Ambition CTB UCITS ETF EUR (ACC) 1,052,062 4,176,123 (643,465) 4,584,720
Amundi MSCI USA ESG Climate Net Zero
Ambition CTB UCITS ETF EUR (DIST) 2,922,699 2,274,083 (387,028) 4,809,754
Amundi MSCI USA ESG Leaders Extra UCITS
ETF USD (DIST) 7,513,297 11,211,791 (11,070,643) 7,654,445
Amundi S&P 500 Climate Net Zero Ambition
PAB UCITS ETF EUR Hedged (ACC) 15,637,910 8,137,567 (5,697,396) 18,078,081
Amundi S&P 500 Climate Net Zero Ambition
PAB UCITS ETF USD (ACC) 26,574,856 32,098,742 (6,573,724) 52,099,874
Amundi S&P 500 Climate Net Zero Ambition
PAB UCITS ETF USD (DIST) 70,886,490 34,855,714 (5,646,056) 100,096,148
Amundi MSCI World Climate Net Zero
Ambition PAB UCITS ETF USD (ACC) 5,813,523 12,240,846 (1,552,561) 16,501,808
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31 December 2024

Share Class

Amundi MSCI World ESG Climate Net Zero
Ambition CTB UCITS ETF EUR (ACC)

Amundi MSCI World ESG Climate Net Zero
Ambition CTB UCITS ETF EUR (DIST)

Amundi MSCI World SRI Climate Net Zero
Ambition PAB UCITS ETF EUR (ACC)»

Amundi MSCI World SRI Climate Net Zero
Ambition PAB UCITS ETF EUR Hedged
(ACC)A

Amundi MSCI World UCITS ETF USD (ACC)»

Amundi MSCI World SRI Climate Net Zero
Ambition PAB UCITS ETF USD (DIST)AA

Amundi Prime All Country World UCITS ETF
USD (ACC)AAn

Amundi MSCI USA UCITS ETF USD
(ACC)/\/\I\/\

Amundi MSCI USA UCITS ETF USD
(DIST)AAAA

Amundi MSCI World ESG Leaders UCITS ETF
EUR Hedged (ACC)AMAAA

Amundi Prime All Country World UCITS ETF
USD (DIST)AAAAAA

Amundi MSCI USA ESG Leaders Extra UCITS
ETF EUR Hedged (ACC)AAAAAAA

AThe share class launched on 17 January 2024.
ANThe share class launched on 1 February 2024.

ANAThe share class launched on 21 February 2024.

AAAAThe share class launched on 5 March 2024.

ANNMAAThe share class launched on 25 April 2024.
AAAANAThe share class launched on 5 June 2024.

At
beginning
of the year
(units)

1,948,328

30,946,720

AAAANNAThe share class launched on 17 October 2024
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10. Share capital and redeemable participating shares (continued)

Issued
during the
financial
year
(units)

1,236,088

27,370,320

56,877,557

10,458,116

20,890,072

2,632,919

8,678,756

13,705,339

2,066,179

20,734,696

185,753,734

207,100

Redeemed
during the
financial
year
(units)

(736,202)

(26,859,536)

(21,275,673)

(4,958,687)

(2,303,166)

(581,681)

(983,153)

(763,845)

(1,349,430)

(428,854)

(6,000,276)

(94,700)

At

The end of the
financial year
(units)

2,448,214

31,457,504

35,601,884

5,499,429

18,586,906

2,051,238

7,695,603

12,941,494

716,749

20,305,842

179,753,458
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31 December 2023

Share Class

Amundi S&P 500 Equal Weight ESG Leaders
UCITS ETF USD (ACC)

Amundi MSCI World UCITS ETF USD (DIST)

AMUNDI MSCI ACWI SRI PAB UCITS ETF
USD(ACC)

Amundi S&P Global Communication
Services ESG UCITS ETF EUR (ACC)

Amundi S&P Global Communication
Services ESG UCITS ETF EUR (DIST)

Amundi S&P Global Consumer Discretionary

ESG UCITS ETF EUR (ACC)

Amundi S&P Global Consumer Discretionary

ESG UCITS ETF EUR (DIST)

Amundi S&P Global Consumer Staples ESG
UCITS ETF EUR (ACC)

Amundi S&P Global Consumer Staples ESG
UCITS ETF EUR (DIST)

Amundi S&P Global Energy Carbon Reduced
UCITS ETF EUR (ACC)

Amundi S&P Global Energy Carbon Reduced
UCITS ETF EUR (DIST)

Amundi S&P Global Financials ESG UCITS
ETF EUR (ACC)

Amundi S&P Global Financials ESG UCITS
ETF EUR (DIST)

Amundi S&P Global Health Care ESG UCITS
ETF EUR (ACC)

Amundi S&P Global Health Care ESG UCITS
ETF EUR (DIST)

Amundi S&P Global Industrials ESG UCITS
ETF EUR (ACC)

Amundi S&P Global Industrials ESG UCITS
ETF EUR (DIST)

At
beginning

of the year

(units)

33,649,806

1,209,033

2,283,188

8,310,000

50,000

9,944,000

30,000

3,946,651

6,000

2,186,924

89,001

4,833,132

36,843

7,618,861

38,001

8,714,931

55,500
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10. Share capital and redeemable participating shares (continued)

Issued
during the
financial
year
(units)

80,850,140
15,892,120

4,811,642

3,517,282

482,088

9,076,573

646,866

14,617,854

683,658

34,237,449

819,772

3,068,864

290,110

2,700,354

423,000

5,381,322

417,161

Redeemed
during the
financial
year
(units)

(51,980,950)
(1,000,000)

(1,000,000)

(3,806,664)

(330,180)

(1,868,317)

(308,645)

(1,748,012)

(303,950)

(12,514,838)

(503,116)

(787,599)

(135,000)

(1,190,890)

(3,514,253)

(190,000)

At

The end of the
financial year
(units)

62,518,996
16,101,153

6,094,830

8,020,618

201,908

17,152,256

368,221

16,816,493

385,708

23,909,535

405,657

7,114,397

191,953

9,128,325

461,001

10,582,000

282,661



AMUNDI ETF ICAV
ANNUAL REPORT AND SWISS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024
Notes to the financial statements (continued)

10. Share capital and redeemable participating shares (continued)

31 December 2023

Issued Redeemed
At  during the during the At
beginning financial financial The end of the
Share Class of the year year year financial year
(units) (units) (units) (units)
Amundi S&P Global Information Technology
ESG UCITS ETF EUR (ACC) 18,507,928 1,821,917 (6,384,762) 13,945,083
Amundi S&P Global Information Technology
ESG UCITS ETF EUR (DIST) 101,001 1,238,823 (407,643) 932,181
Amundi S&P Global Materials ESG UCITS
ETF EUR (ACC) 1,244,310 8,282,958 (1,966,767) 7,560,501
Amundi S&P Global Materials ESG UCITS
ETF EUR (DIST) 91,001 284,000 (90,000) 285,001
Amundi S&P Global Utilities ESG UCITS ETF
EUR (ACC) 3,030,000 4,390,938 (1,263,902) 6,157,036
Amundi S&P Global Utilities ESG UCITS ETF
EUR (DIST) 115,000 - - 115,000
Amundi MSCI USA ESG Leaders Extra UCITS
ETF USD (ACC) 26,252,143 26,683,615 (15,046,813) 37,888,945
Amundi S&P Small Cap 600 ESG UCITS ETF
USD (DIST) - 1,547,258 (195,000) 1,352,258
Amundi S&P 500 Equal Weight ESG Leaders
UCITS ETF EUR Hedged (ACC) - 1,676,787 (204,120) 1,472,667
Amundi MSCI World ESG Leaders UCITS ETF
UsD (ACC) - 10,873,412 (513,394) 10,360,018
Amundi MSCI USA ESG Leaders UCITS ETF
UsD (ACC) - 28,810,560 (1,336,378) 27,474,182
Amundi MSCI USA ESG Leaders UCITS ETF
EUR Hedged (ACC) - 5,263,454 (459,828) 4,803,626
Amundi MSCI USA SRI Climate Net Zero
Ambition PAB UCITS ETF EUR (ACC) - 55,102,181 (1,986,729) 53,115,452
Amundi MSCI USA SRI Climate Net Zero
Ambition PAB UCITS ETF EUR Hedged (ACC) - 3,057,027 (194,454) 2,862,573
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

10. Share capital and redeemable participating shares (continued)

31 December 2023

At
beginning
of the year
(units)

Amundi S&P 500 ESG UCITS ETF EUR (ACC) -

Amundi S&P 500 ESG UCITS ETF EUR -
Hedged (ACC)

Amundi MSCI USA ESG Climate Net Zero
Ambition CTB UCITS ETF EUR (ACC) -

Amundi MSCI USA ESG Climate Net Zero
Ambition CTB UCITS ETF EUR (DIST) -

Amundi MSCI USA ESG Leaders Extra UCITS
ETF USD (DIST) -

Amundi S&P 500 Climate Net Zero Ambition
PAB UCITS ETF EUR Hedged (ACC) -

Amundi S&P 500 Climate Net Zero Ambition
PAB UCITS ETF USD (ACC) -

Amundi S&P 500 Climate Net Zero Ambition
PAB UCITS ETF USD (DIST) -

Amundi MSCI World Climate Net Zero
Ambition PAB UCITS ETF USD (ACC) -

Amundi MSCI World ESG Climate Net Zero
Ambition CTB UCITS ETF EUR (ACC) -

Amundi MSCI World ESG Climate Net Zero
Ambition CTB UCITS ETF EUR (DIST) -

Share Class
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Issued
during the
financial
year
(units)

19,732,576

11,051,346

1,058,908

3,035,847

7,603,497

16,080,624

28,036,078

72,267,490

13,927,930

2,213,151

30,946,720

Redeemed
during the
financial
year
(units)

(1,674,195)

(689,753)

(6,846)

(113,148)

(90,200)

(442,714)

(1,461,222)

(1,381,000)

(8,114,407)

(264,823)

At

The end of the
financial year
(units)

18,058,381
10,361,593
1,052,062
2,922,699
7,513,297
15,637,910
26,574,856
70,886,490
5,813,523
1,948,328

30,946,720
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
11. Distributions to redeemable participating shareholders

The Directors decide the dividend policy and arrangements relating to each sub-fund. Under the
instrument of incorporation, the Directors are entitled to declare dividends out of net income (i.e. income
less expenses) and/or capital. The ICAV will be obliged and entitled to deduct an amount in respect of Irish
taxation from any dividend payable to a shareholder in any sub-fund who is or is deemed to be a taxable
Irish person and pay such sum to the Irish revenue commissioners. For each distributing share class,
dividends are paid in the currency of such share class or in such other currency as may be determined by
the Directors.

The following are the distributions for the financial year ended 31 December 2024.

Share Class Dividend Ex-Date  Dividend Rate per Share
Amundi MSCI World UCITS ETF USD (DIST) 14-Feb-24 0.1846
Amundi S&P Global Communication Services ESG

UCITS ETF EUR (DIST) 14-Feb-24 0.0747
Amundi S&P Global Consumer Discretionary ESG UCITS

ETF EUR (DIST) 14-Feb-24 0.1152
Amundi S&P Global Consumer Staples ESG UCITS ETF

EUR (DIST) 14-Feb-24 0.2075
Amundi S&P Global Energy Carbon Reduced UCITS ETF

EUR (DIST) 14-Feb-24 0.3956
Amundi S&P Global Financials ESG UCITS ETF EUR

(DIST) 14-Feb-24 0.2287
Amundi S&P Global Health Care ESG UCITS ETF EUR

(DIST) 14-Feb-24 0.1018
Amundi S&P Global Industrials ESG UCITS ETF EUR

(DIST) 14-Feb-24 0.1895
Amundi S&P Global Information Technology ESG UCITS

ETF EUR (DIST) 14-Feb-24 0.0720
Amundi S&P Global Materials ESG UCITS ETF EUR

(DIST) 14-Feb-24 0.3035
Amundi S&P Global Utilities ESG UCITS ETF EUR (DIST) 14-Feb-24 0.3439
Amundi MSCI USA ESG Leaders Extra UCITS ETF USD

(DIST) 14-Feb-24 0.0393
Amundi S&P Small Cap 600 ESG UCITS ETF USD (DIST) 14-Feb-24 0.6471
Amundi MSCI USA ESG Climate Net Zero Ambition CTB

UCITS ETF EUR (DIST) 14-Feb-24 4.6379
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11. Distributions to redeemable participating shareholders (continued)

Share Class Dividend Ex-Date  Dividend Rate per Share
Amundi S&P 500 Climate Net Zero Ambition PAB UCITS

ETF USD (DIST) 14-Feb-24 0.2426
Amundi MSCI World ESG Climate Net Zero Ambition

CTB UCITS ETF EUR (DIST) 14-Feb-24 0.0029

31 December 2023

Share Class Dividend Ex-Date  Dividend Rate per Share
Amundi MSCI World UCITS ETF USD (DIST) 15-Feb-23 0.0708
Amundi S&P Global Communication Services ESG

UCITS ETF EUR (DIST) 15-Feb-23 0.0433
Amundi S&P Global Consumer Discretionary ESG UCITS

ETF EUR (DIST) 15-Feb-23 0.0792
Amundi S&P Global Consumer Staples ESG UCITS ETF

EUR (DIST) 15-Feb-23 0.237
Amundi S&P Global Energy Carbon Reduced UCITS ETF

EUR (DIST) 15-Feb-23 0.0823
Amundi S&P Global Financials ESG UCITS ETF EUR

(DIST) 15-Feb-23 0.0286
Amundi S&P Global Health Care ESG UCITS ETF EUR

(DIST) 15-Feb-23 0.0181
Amundi S&P Global Industrials ESG UCITS ETF EUR

(DIST) 15-Feb-23 0.1263
Amundi S&P Global Information Technology ESG UCITS

ETF EUR (DIST) 15-Feb-23 0.0196
Amundi S&P Global Materials ESG UCITS ETF EUR

(DIST) 15-Feb-23 0.0359
Amundi S&P Global Utilities ESG UCITS ETF EUR (DIST) 15-Feb-23 0.0538
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
Related parties
The Directors and Investment Manager are related parties to the ICAV.

Fees payable to the Investment Manager and the amounts due at the year-end is included in the accrued
expenses on the Statement of financial position. The fees earned by the Investment Manager is included
in the Management fees in the Statement of comprehensive income. The fees paid during the year and
payable at year end are disclosed in note 4 (a). The Directors will seek to ensure any conflict of interest of
which they are aware is resolved fairly.

There are no service contracts in existence between the ICAV and any of its Directors, nor are any such
contracts proposed. The Directors had no interest, direct or indirect, in any assets which have been or are
proposed to be acquired or disposed of by, or issued to, the ICAV and no Director is materially interested
in any contract or arrangement subsisting at the date hereof which is unusual in its nature and conditions
or significant in relation to the business of the ICAV. Directors’ fee paid during the year are disclosed in
note 4 (b).

Graham Fox and Mehdi Balafref are employees of the Investment Manager.
Significant shareholders

The table below represents the number of shareholders who had entitlement of 10% or more in the shares
in issue of the sub-funds of the ICAV at 31 December 2024 and 31 December 2023.

Number of shareholders who own 10% or more in the secondary market are as follows:

Numbers of Numbers of
shareholders who shareholders who
own 10% or more own 10% or more

31 December 2024 31 December 2023

Sub-Funds

Amundi S&P 500 Equal Weight ESG Leaders UCITS ETF 7 3
Amundi MSCI World UCITS ETF 7 1
Amundi MSCI ACWI Sri Pab UCITS ETF 3 2
Amundi S&P Global Communication Services ESG UCITS ETF 3 5
Amundi S&P Global Consumer Discretionary ESG UCITS ETF 3 8
Amundi S&P Global Consumer Staples ESG UCITS ETF 3 5
Amundi S&P Global Energy Carbon Reduced UCITS ETF 4 6
Amundi S&P Global Financials ESG UCITS ETF 6 5
Amundi S&P Global Health Care ESG UCITS ETF 4 5
Amundi S&P Global Industrials ESG UCITS ETF 3 8
Amundi S&P Global Information Technology ESG UCITS ETF 5 6
Amundi S&P Global Materials ESG UCITS ETF 4 3
Amundi S&P Global Utilities ESG UCITS ETF 5 6
Amundi MSCI USA ESG Leaders Extra UCITS ETF 9 5
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13. Significant shareholders (continued)

Numbers of Numbers of
Sub-Funds shareholders who shareholders who
own 10% or more own 10% or more
31 December 2024 31 December 2023
Amundi S&P Small Cap 600 ESG UCITS ETF 1 3
Amundi MSCI World ESG Leaders UCITS ETF 6 2
Amundi MSCI USA ESG Leaders UCITS ETF 6 3
Amundi S&P 500 ESG UCITS ETF 4 4
Amundi MSCI USA SRI Climate Net Zero Ambition PAB UCITS ETF 4 5
Amundi MSCI USA ESG Climate Net Zero Ambition CTB UCITS ETF 5 4
Amundi S&P 500 Climate Net Zero Ambition PAB UCITS ETF 10 8
Amundi MSCI World ESG Climate Net Zero Ambition CTB UCITS 3
ETF 4
Amundi MSCI World Climate Net Zero Ambition PAB UCITS ETF 2 3
AMUNDI MSCI WORLD SRI CLIMATE NET ZERO AMBITION PAB 7
UCITS ETFA _
Amundi Prime All Country World UCITS ETFA/ 5 -
AMUNDI MSCI USA UCITS ETFAAA 3 -

AThe sub fund was launched on 2 February 2024.
ANThe sub fund was launched on 22 February 2024.
ANAThe sub fund was launched on 3 March 2024.
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Significant events during the financial year

The following sub-funds were launched during the year:

Sub - fund Name: Launch date:
Amundi MSCI World SRI Climate Net Zero Ambition PAB UCITS ETF 2 February 2024
Amundi Prime All Country World UCITS ETF 22 February 2024
Amundi MSCI USA UCITS ETF 6 March 2024

During the period the following Authorised Participants placed their first order on the primary market:
- Virtu Financial Ireland Limited on 3 April 2024
- DRW Europe B.V. on 21 June 2024
- Goldman Sachs Bank Europe SE on 23 July 2024
- Old Mission Europe LLP on 1 August 2024

During the year, the ICAV launched hedged share classes. A sub-fund may engage in currency hedging at
a share class level to hedge against currency fluctuations between the currency of a class and the
currencies in which the investments of the sub-fund are denominated. Further details on currency
hedging at share class level are set out in the prospectus section titled "More About Derivatives and
Techniques - Techniques and Instruments on Securities".

An updated prospectus was issued on 29 August 2024,

There were no other significant events during the financial year to report.

Significant events post the financial year end

During the period from 1 January 2025 to 23 April 2025, the following share classes had subscriptions and
redemptions in excess of 20% of the 31 December 2024 Net Asset Value.

- Amundi MSCI USA UCITS ETF USD (ACC)

- Amundi S&P Global Health Care ESG UCITS ETF EUR (ACC)
- Amundi S&P Global Utilities ESG UCITS ETF EUR (DIST)
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Significant events post the financial year end (continued)

On 21 February 2025, Amundi MSCI World V, a sub-fund of Multi Units Luxembourg, merged with Amundi
MSCI World UCITS ETF.

On 21 March 2025, the following sub-funds changed names:

Old name: New name:

Amundi MSCI ACWI Sri PAB UCITS ETF Amundi MSCI ACWI SRI Climate PAUCITS ETF

Amundi MSCI USA ESG Climate Net Zero Ambition | Amundi MSCI USA ESG Broad Trans UCITSETF
CTB UCITS ETF

Amundi MSCI USA SRI Climate Net Zero Ambition Amundi MSCI USA SRI Climate PA UCITS ETF
PAB UCITS ETF

Amundi MSCI World Climate Net Zero Ambition Amundi MSCI WORLD CLIMATE PA UCITS ETF
PAB UCITS ETF

Amundi MSCI World ESG Climate Net Zero Amundi MSCI WORLD ESG BROAD TRANS UCITS
Ambition CTB UCITS ETF
AMUNDI MSCI WORLD SRI CLIMATE NET ZERO Amundi MSCI WORLD SRI CLIMATE PA UCITETF

AMBITION PAB UCITS ETF

Amundi S&P 500 Climate Net Zero Ambition PAB Amundi S&P 500 CLIMATE PA UCITS ETF
UCITS ETF

Amundi S&P 500 ESG UCITS ETF Amundi S&P 500 SCREENED UCITS ETF

Amundi S&P Small Cap 600 ESG UCITS ETF Amundi S&P SmallCap600 ScreenedUCITS ETF

On 11 April 2025, Amundi Core S&P 500 UCITS ETF was launched.

The investment impact on the ICAV and its Sub-Funds due to the conflict in the Middle East since early
October 2023 and the Russian invasion of Ukraine during the year 2022, has been minimal due to (i) its
diverse holding across instrument type and geography and (ii) having no exposure to Russian assets and
therefore no forced disposal of any assets. All instruments continue to be marked at fair value using a
directly observable price in the relevant market. The ICAV and the Sub-Fund’s investment profile has not
changed as a result of these conflicts. As at 31 December 2024 (31 December 2023: None), there were
no Russian or Ukrainian Securities held or receivables from Russian or Ukrainian Securities.

There are no other significant events post year end that need to be disclosed in these financial
statements.

Approval of the financial statements

These financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 23 April
2025.
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AMUNDI S&P 500 EQUAL WEIGHT ESG LEADERS UCITS ETF

Schedule of investments
as at 31 December 2024

% of Net
Fair Value Asset
Holdings  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss Currency uUsD Value
Equities
Ireland
Basic Materials (31 December 2023: 0.54%)
35,858 Linde uUsb 15,012,669 0.55
15,012,669 0.55
Healthcare (31 December 2023: 0.53%)
190,501 Medtronic usD 15,217,220 0.56
15,217,220 0.56
Industrial (31 December 2023: 0.54%)
43,416  Accenture usD 15,273,315 0.56
39,478 Trane Technologies usb 14,581,199 0.53
29,854,514 1.09
Technology (31 December 2023: Nil)
105,429 TE Connectivity usD 15,073,184 0.55
15,073,184 0.55
Netherlands
Basic Materials (31 December 2023: 0.53%)
206,624  Lyondell Basell Industries usb 15,345,964 0.56
15,345,964 0.56
United States
Basic Materials (31 December 2023: 5.03%)

50,571  Air Products & Chemicals usb 14,667,613 0.54
152,122  Albemarle USD 13,094,661 0.48
380,636 Dow USD 15,274,923 0.56

64,354  Ecolab uUsb 15,079,429 0.55
367,358 Freeport-McMoRan Copper & Gold usbD 13,988,993 0.51
155,354  Ingersoll Rand usD 14,053,323 0.52
590,078 Mosaic USD 14,504,117 0.53
373,614 Newmont Mining UsD 13,905,913 0.51
128,855 PPG Industries uUsb 15,391,730 0.57

129,960,702 4.77

Consumer Goods (31 December 2023: 9.56%)
268,235  Aptiv Holdings UsD 16,222,853 0.60
298,495 Archer-Daniels-Midland usD 15,079,967 0.56
367,358 Campbell Soup usD 15,384,953 0.57
170,293  Colgate-Palmolive uUsb 15,481,337 0.57
77,074  Deckers Outdoor usb 15,652,959 0.57
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AMUNDI S&P 500 EQUAL WEIGHT ESG LEADERS UCITS ETF

Schedule of investments (continued)
as at 31 December 2024

% of Net
Fair Value Asset
Holdings  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss Currency uUsD Value
Equities (continued)
United States (continued)
Consumer Goods (31 December 2023: 9.56%)
(continued)
102,787 DR Horton Usb 14,371,678 0.53
194,489  Estee Lauder Cos USD 14,582,785 0.53
241,166  General Mills uUsb 15,379,156 0.56
303,543 General Motors usD 16,169,736 0.59
245,362  Hasbro Usb 13,718,189 0.50
89,245  Hershey uUsb 15,113,641 0.55
195,888 Kellogg usb 15,861,051 0.58
504,838 Kraft Heinz uUsb 15,503,575 0.57
194,154  McCormick UsD 14,802,301 0.54
250,260 Mondelez International usD 14,948,030 0.55
200,335 NIKE uUsb 15,159,349 0.56
100,762  PepsiCo usb 15,321,870 0.56
92,577 Procter & Gamble usD 15,520,534 0.57
188,501 Stanley Black & Decker usD 15,134,745 0.56
289,408,709 10.62
Consumer Services (31 December 2023: 13.69%)
181,422  Best Buy UsD 15,566,008 0.57
593,626  Carnival com USD 14,793,160 0.54
397,794 Comcast UsD 14,929,209 0.55
305,185 CVS Caremark UsbD 13,699,755 0.50
250,061 eBay UsD 15,491,279 0.57
61,476  Hilton Worldwide Holdings usD 15,194,408 0.56
37,487 Home Depot usD 14,582,068 0.53
524,797 Interpublic Group of Companies usD 14,704,812 0.54
188,007 Johnson Controls usD 14,839,393 0.54
58,649 Lowe's Cos usD 14,474,573 0.53
54,147 Marriott International usD 15,103,764 0.55
532,314 News UsD 15,014,626 0.55
174,065 PayPal Holdings USD 14,856,448 0.55
69,462  Ralph Lauren usD 16,044,333 0.59
64,338 Royal Caribbean Cruises usD 14,842,133 0.54
160,500  Starbucks USD 14,645,625 0.54
116,167 Target Usb 15,703,455 0.58
124,567 TIX Cos UsD 15,048,939 0.55
276,654  Tractor Supply usD 14,679,261 0.54
1,411,652 ViacomCBS usD 14,765,880 0.54
1,605,323  Walgreens Boots Alliance usD 14,977,664 0.55
166,348 Wal-Mart Stores usD 15,029,542 0.55
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AMUNDI S&P 500 EQUAL WEIGHT ESG LEADERS UCITS ETF

Schedule of investments (continued)
as at 31 December 2024

% of Net
Fair Value Asset
Holdings Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss Currency uUsD Value
Equities (continued)
United States (continued)
Consumer Services (31 December 2023: 13.69